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First Keystone Financial, Inc.
Mission Statement

The mission of First Keystone Financial, Inc. is to deliver value-added financial

services that will produce a superior long-term return on investments, thereby

meeting the interdependent needs of the shareholders, customers, employees and the

communities it serves.

FIRST
KEYSTONE

Financial, Inc.




At or For the Jear Ended September 30,

(dollars in thousands, except per share data)

B

2003 2002 2001

Selected Financial Data:
Total assets $558,667 $518,346 $489,050
Loans receivable, net 286,421 288,776 247,664
Mortgage-related securities available for sale 124,656 85,674 117,608
Investment securities available for sale 77,700 80,624 62,564
Deposits 362,605 330,765 311,601
Borrowings 136,272 126,384 126,234
Stockholders’ equity 32,388 32,795 30,621
Selected Operations Data:
Net interest income $ 12,876 $ 13,581 $ 11,516
Provision for loan losses 715 540 540
Non-interest income 3,246 2,223 1,914
Non-interest expenses 12,015 12,090 9,960
Income tax expense 653 448 459
Net income $ 2,739 $ 2,726 $ 2,471
Selected Operating Ratios:
Return on average assets 0.51% 0.54% 0.52%
Return on average equity 8.39 8.77 8.42
Net interest margin 2.64 2.95 2.68
Allowance for loan losses as &

percent of non-performing loans 127.63 45.89 94,74
Ratio of average equity to average asseis 6.12 6.17 6.22
Diluted earnings per share $ 1.35 $ 1.34 $ 1.18
Cash dividends per share $ 0.40 $ 0.36 $ 032
Closing market price per share $ 26.50 $ 15.50 $ 13.25




A Message to Our Shareholders

“‘Accomplishment will
prove to be

a journey, not

a destination.”

Dwight D. Eisenhower

First Keystone Financial, Inc., the holding company for
First Keystone Bank, succeeded in maintaining its
earnings while increasing core deposits and non-interest
income despite a challenging vear due to the historically
low interest rate environment which impacted its net

interest margin throughout fiscal 2003.

According to economist Milton Friedman, there are two
essential requisites for success in business. One is that
you maintain the essence of the ideal upon which your
business was built. The other is that you remain
receptive to change, and move your business forward to

meet the demands of the marketplace.

The management, board of directors and employees of
First Keystone are ever mindful of the important role our
institution plays in the community and continually strive
hard to maintain the goals set by our founders. We are
also guided by our responsibilities to our shareholders
and act accordingly to achieve a results-oriented
strategy.

It is this understanding of the dynamics of business that

allows our organization to be receptive to change and

meet challenges head on.

A Name Respecthul o} our Past,
Rejlective of our Future

In 2003 we conducted extensive market research to
glean the opinions of customers and non-customers
alike to objectively evaluate how the Bank is

perceived in a very competitive marketplace and to

determine First Keystone's ranking against our peers.

Management learned much about how to compete as
a full-service bank including the need to update our
image to be more reflective of the products and
services we offer today. In the Fall of this year, we
shortened the Bank’s name from “First Keystone

Federal Savings Bank” to “First Keystone Bank” and




developed a new logo mark to complement our new identity. To further
enhance the image, we added a slogan which expresses our feeling for
what we are and what we hope to be for the years ahead: “The

Community Bank for a New Generation.”

Enhanced Shareholder Value

First Keystone Financial's shareholders had a rewarding year. The
Company's common stock closed at $26.50 per share on September 30,
2003 compared to $15.50 per share at the end of the previous fiscal year.

This $11.00 increase per share represents a 71% increase in value.

For the last five years, shareholders have earned a compounded annual
growth rate, including dividends paid of 15.4% per share. Shareholders
also benefited from an increase in the Company’s dividend rate of over

11% from the rate at the end of the prior year.

To further enhance shareholder value, management will continue to

prudently leverage the Company’s balance sheet and implement capital
management strategies as appropriate. Early in fiscal 2003, the Board of
Directors authorized an additional 5% stock repurchase program of the

issued and outstanding common stock of the Company. The Company

repurchased 136,219 shares at an average price of $21.92 during fiscal 2003.

Market Challenges and Balance Sheet Strategies

Despite a 73% increase in residential originations, the Company's net loan
portfolio decreased slightly at September 30, 2003 compared to the same
period last year. The decline was the result of the prolonged low interest
rate environment that fueled the accelerated rate of repayment and
prepayment of loans and mortgage-related securities. The Bank's
management, however, has remained focused on its long-term strategic
plan to continue to shift its Joan composition toward commercial business,
consumer lending and construction loans in order to provide a more
balanced and higher yielding portfolio. However, we were unable to grow
the commercial loan portfolio in fiscal 2003. Contributing factors were
pricing and prudent underwriting standards in an uncertain economy. In
addition, the commercial loan portfolio was also affected by the wave of
refinances. At September 30, 2003, commercial real estate and multi-family
residential loans comprised 20% of the loan portfolio while single-family

loans represented only 56% of the loan portfolio.

The Company continued to aggressively promote home equity loans and
equity lines of credit through the branch network. This effort to keep
shorter term loans in portfolio resulted in a $5.9 million increase in
outstanding balances at fiscal year end, representing a 21.3% increase in

home equity loans and equity lines of credit over the previous year.

Construction loans also had a solid year, posting an 8.1% increase in the

net outstanding balance as of September 30, 2003 compared to September
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30, 2002. This division consistently produces higher yielding loans for the

Company in addition to fostering relationship lending.

Net interest income decreased approximately 5% and our net interest margin
also decreased slightly as a result of the low interest rate environment existing
throughout fiscal 2003. The compression in the net interest margin was
primarily the result of limited reinvestment choices that could produce
satisfactory returns for the Company's increased cash flows which resulted
from the large volume of repayments and prepayments of loans and
mortgage-related securities throughout the year. The ongoing challenge
throughout the year was to find investment vehicles that produced acceptable
levels of returns with minimal risk as assets continued to reprice downward

more rapidly than the Company's interest-bearing liabilities.

As a result of market rates, management incorporated a more defensive
strategy in fiscal 2003 to protect against interest rate risk by electing to sell
newly originated 30-year fixed-rate single-family residential loans in the
secondary market producing short-term gains for the Company. In addition,
to enhance earnings while prudently maintaining our interest rate risk profile,
the Company was able to take advantage of the steep yield curve by
leveraging the Company’s assets with purchases of fixed mortgage-related

securities.

Building Our Franchise

Our branch expansion strategy calls for careful planning and patience in
order to optimize the Company’s return on its investment and grow the
franchise. First Keystone is fortunate to be headquartered in Delaware
County, Pennsylvania in a strong and vibrant growth area of the region just
16 miles west of Philadelphia. The Bank also benefits from the rapid
development and close proximity to neighboring Chester County,
Pennsylvania and Wilmington, Delaware and the many new businesses,

corporations and personnel that are attracted to these areas.

In anticipation of the continued growth trends in Chester County, First
Keystone has chasen to exercise its option to expand its branch facilities at
its Willowdale Office to include a stand-alone office complete with a drive-
through ATM and additional parking. In addition, First Keystone also signed
a lease in a prime corner location for a new full-service branch office in Aston
Township, Delaware County, a densely populated area in the heart of the
Bank's market area. Both branches are expected to be opened in early summer

2004.

At fiscal year end, the Company's total assets were $558.7 million compared
to $518.3 million at September 30, 2002, primarily from an increase in
mortgage-related securities available for sale. We are pleased that our asset
growth continues to be supported through deposit growth. Total deposits
increased $31.8 million at September 30, 2003 compared to the end of the



prior fiscal year. At September 30, 2003, core deposits had increased by
$29.6 million or 19% to $184.1 million, in part, as a result of the
Company's continued emphasis on developing commercial business
accounts and related non-interest bearing checking accounts. Demand
deposit accounts also increased, which in part, we attribute to the
uncertain investment climate which currently exists in the equities market.
In accordance with our business model, we will continue to actively
promote our business transaction accounts in an effort to grow this area of

the business and to help maintain the Bank's overall cost of funds.

First Keystone is also enhancing its relationships with its insurance affiliate
and investment services company in order to better serve its customers and
grow the Company's non-interest income. In addition, the Company has
an equity interest in a title insurance agency company and with the robust
year in refinancing, this strategic partnership enhanced the Company's

non-interest income.

Focusing on the Future

The bank merger mania resurfaced this year. As large conglomerate banks
continue to expand into unfamiliar neighborhoods with corporate
headquarters far removed from their satellite offices, First Keystone
welcomes the new business opportunities that this presents to us. We
clearly see our niche as a progressive community bank that can compete
against our larger competitors by offering innovative and often tailor-made
products, an array of financial services and a choice of state-of-the art

delivery channels in a much more personal and responsive manner.

We know, however, to compete effectively, we need to reduce our
dependency on interest rate sensitive products, enhance our non-interest
income and continue to gain market share. The groundwork has been laid

and management is committed to its success.

To conclude, as we move into a new year with new challenges, we will
seek guidance and insight from the Company's Board of Directors. This
year we are pleased to report that the owner of several successful automobile
dealerships, Bruce C. Hendrixson, was appointed to the holding company
as a director. Our personal investments are aligned with you, our

shareholders, and we remain respectful of the trust you have placed in us.

On behalf of our fellow board members, senior management and our entire

team of employees, we will continue to work hard on your behalf.

Respecttully yours,

%//4%

Donald S. Guthrie
Chairman of the Board

N nne
/ Thomasf\{eﬂy /&vﬂh

President
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Fail to honor
people,

they pail to
honor you.

“At First Keystone Bank, we
truly understand that our
employees are our most
valuable asset. Qur customers
and shareholders are only best
served when our employees
enter ouy doors each day
because they ‘want to come to
work’ not because they ‘*have
to come to work.” My
contribution is to help create
a ‘team’ atmosphere that
empowers our department
managers to instill such a
contagious attitude.”

Betty Mulcaby
Senior Vice President

Human Resources

For several years, the Bank has had a Customer Service Team which meets
regularly and has representation from every department within our organization.
The results have been that employees, not management, set the standards for both
internal and external communication. This year the team instituted our "CARE"
campaign which states “Customers Are the Reason we Exist.” It is our strong belief
that optimum results can only be achieved when all employees work toward a
common goal and one that they helped define.

Another result of this customer service group was the development of the Bank's
new Employee Recognition Program. Employees created the guidelines and criteria
on how to win this quarterly recognition and we look forward to receiving many
on-going nominations from both employees and customers.

Although the Bank has always prided itself on having an exceptional group of
dedicated and professional employees, we find that utilizing this inter-
departmental “team” approach allows us to better serve our customers, clients and
in turn, our shareholders.

As Ken Blanchard and Sheldon Bowles state in their best selling book, Gung Ho!,
"...as leaders, we have an obligation to not let our employees' spirits die at the
office door.” If we want to maximize our profitability, we must engage our

employees and work as a team for the common goal.




Propit is in the Cross-Selling

“As our employees worked
difigently to keep up with
the volume of originations
in both residential and
consumer loans, we were
reminded of a valuable
lesson. When people apply
for a loan, they often are
evaluating other financial
matters such as optimizing
their cash flow, hudgets
and investments. People
have more than one
financial need. The lending
team has to be committed
to helping our customers
satisfy several financial
needs, and only in doing
so, does our team optimize

our contribution to the
Company’s bottom line.”
Steve Henderson
Senior Vice President, Lending

The rate environment throughout fiscal 2003 led to a
record year of loan originations for the Bank. This gave
our loan officers the opportunity to become
reacquainted with repeat customers and also to create
new relationships. In addition, it became the perfect
segue to personally educate customers about how we
can also provide such services as insurance and
investment products through the Bank's affiliates.

The branch network exceeded its dollar goals in the
originations of home equity and lines of credit. As a
result, the Bank’s outstanding loan balances in this
category increased $5.9 million or 21.3% in fiscal
year 2003.

The Construction Loan Department also exceeded its goals, ending the year with an

8.1% increase in the net outstanding balance.

B Net construction loans
increased outstanding
balances by 8.1%

B Home equity loans and
lines of credit increased
outstanding balances by
21.3%

“As we move into fiscal
2004, our focus will
remain on strengthening
our interest rate margin by
investing in higher yielding
commercial and multi-
family residential loans
supported through the
continued growth in core
deposits.”

Rose M. DiMarco

Senior Vice President, Finance



Providing M

In this jast-paced,
modern world, it
only takes a
jraction of the time
it used to for a
luxury to become a
neceasity.

“Today, hanking is about
providing easier and faster
ways to conduct financial
transactions. The challenges
that my group has is to
malke those delivery
channels user-friendly,
efficient and almost
seamless to the customer.”

Rob Hosier
Senior Vice President
Information Technology

Since its inception in June of 2000, customers have steadily grown to enjoy and rely
on First Keystone's internet banking capabilities. With the click of a mouse, customers
can easily access account information, transfer balances and download transaction
activity to other account reconciliation software. They can apply for loans on-line in
the convenience of their home and receive a response in minutes. Electronic bill
payment has also become a must have service for many Bank customers, providing
even greater flexibility in the time management of everyday finances.

In 2003, the [T team launched the Bank's Intranet to alert employees to news within
the Company such as new products, up-coming seminars, on-line training and other
valuable information. The other technology enhancements in fiscal 2003 included a
new Windows-based software system in the collections department and the
installation of a state-of-the art loan processing system to help increase employee

efficiencies.

Enhanced technology has also contributed to the growth of First Keystone’s non-
interest bearing checking accounts by providing a competitive internet banking
product featuring on-line real time data to better monitor transactions and cash flow
throughout the day.




aining Market Share

“Recognizing that in today’s
banking environment it can be
difficult to acquire a new account
because of direct deposit and
other electronic banking
arrangements, we developed a
‘Switch Kit’ for customers to
easily switch accounts to First
Keystone Bank. To further
reinforce the ease of banking with
us, our business development
officer’s pledge is to ‘pick up and
deliver’ timely banking
correspondence from the client’s
place of business in order to
provide the highest level of
convenience and value-added
service for our business
customers.”

Robin Otto
Senior Vice President

Marketing and Business Development

To be successful in the on-going challenge of increasing the Bank's market share,
one has to first understand the fact that both retail and business customers often
perceive changing banks as inconvenient and a hassle.

Our marketing team attacks this problem with a five step approach. First, we
educate potential customers on just how easy it is to “switch” to First Keystone.
Second, our offices are strategically located to make it convenient for customers to
do business with our Bank. Third, we provide both delivery channels and an array of
products to meet customers’ needs. Fourth, we must consistently provide
outstanding customer service and great back office support.

The fifth step is that we strive to make banking with First Keystone an enjoyable
experience and not a necessary chore.

We further foster customer relationships by encouraging our branch managers to
invite both customers and potential clients to join bank management at sporting
events, live theatre, golf outings and educational seminars. The Bank’s senior
executives, as well as all of the Bank's personnel, are local and accessible, and these
events provide a very relaxed atmosphere in which to get to know one another.

There is only one
way under high
heaven to get
anybody to do
anything. And
that is by making
the other person
want to do it.

Transaction Account Mix
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Building A Commercial Strongholo

“Big enough to be competitive
and small enough to be
personable is the Bank’s plan
to grow its business
relationships. Commercial
lending is primarily about
relationship building. Our job
is to develop the relationship
S0 our customer calls us first
for any financial need. As
commercial loan officers, the
more we understand the
custometr’s business including
cash receivable patterns,
equipment needs and seasonal
influxes, the better financial
assistance we can provide
including value-added services
tike commercial insurance,
retirement plans and other
investment opportunities
available through our
affiliates.”
Bud Amentt
Senior Vice President

Commercial Lending

In a declining rate environment, the Bank's Commercial Lending Department worked
diligently to avoid portfolio runoff from competitive pressures. Throughout the year, a
proactive plan was initiated to ensure that those customers with higher rates were
offered market rates in order to compete effectively with the stiff competition that
entered the marketplace and to promote customer loyalty.

The branch network helped develop new commercial lending relationships, which
included mechanical contractors, manufacturers representative companies, local
retailers and real estate investment partnerships. Cooperation between the branches
and loan officers is essential for the Bank to maximize customer relationships.

First Keystone's ability to offer state-of-the art cash management services, including
on-line real time and monthly account statements on CD-ROM, has enabled the Bank
to offer customers more than just a business loan. We have developed into a complete
financial resource, one that saves businesses time, offers a particularly high degree of
personalized service and can effectively compete for larger business and municipal

accounts.




ic Alliances

“In forming alliances, we
believe that ‘trust’ between
those parties involved is the
most important factor.
Working as a team with the
Bank and the Company, we
share a responsibility to
mutually advance each other’s
goals and work toward each

. other’s successes.”
Management remains

focused on increasing

Brian Beldyk
non-interest income by LPL Financial Services

pramoting sales of insurance

and investment products Joe Fleming

through the Company's First Keystone Insurance Services
affiliate relationships in

these areas. LPL Financial

Services can offer our clients
the services of a professional
financial advisor, backed by
a company whose capital
ratio has been historically
among the highest of all

independent brokerage firms. First Keystone Insurance Services is also an
independent brokerage insurance agency, of which the Company is the majority
owner, and as such, enables its agents to shop for the best product and value to
meet the customer’s needs. In keeping with the Company's philosophy of cross-
selling services with other complementary products, First Keystone Insurance
Services provides a diverse range of products to satisfy the needs of homeowners as

well as its commercial customers.

To generate sales leads for these income producing entities, a simple template was
designed for internal referrals enabling Bank employees to refer business leads
electronically in an efficient, organized and trackable manner. Regular sales
meetings further encourage the “share-a-customer” philosophy between departments
to create additional sales opportunities and maximize customer relationships.

First Keystone is also a partner in a local title insurance agency and with the robust
year in refinancing, this strategic partnership proved worthwhile to our bottom line.
These efforts, through our strategic alliances, enable the Bank to provide its
customers with value-added service, competitive prices and timesaving convenience
on many financial products while providing the Company with a more diversified
income stream that is less dependent on interest income.



“The Bank’s management has always recognized its
responsibility to contribute time, resources and energy
toward creating a positive presence in the community.
It’s one of the core values upon which the Company was
founded, and remains today a driving force in reaching
out into new markets and seeking new opportunities.”

Carol Walsh
Corporate Secretary

Some of the ways we participate in our communities include:

Aston

Brookhaven

Chester

Chester Heights
Chadds Ford

Media

Swarthmore

Willowdale

Aston Community Day
Brookhaven Family Day

City Team Ministries
Habitat for Humanity
Mayor's City Wide Cleanup
Chester Housing Authority

Pennsbury Land Trust

Chadds Ford Pumpkin Carve
Chadds Ford Days

Society of the Performing Arts
Delaware County Halloween Parade
Media Arts & Crafts Fair

Community Arts Center
Delaware County Historical Society

Willowdale Steeplechase

YMCAs in Kennett Square and Rocky Run
Delaware County Special Olympics

Rotary Events
United Way

March of Dimes WalkAmerica

American Red Cross

Community Action Agency of Delaware County

Administrative Offices
22 West State Street
Media PA 19063
610.565.6210

Aston
Pennell & Marionville Roads
Aston, PA * 610.364.7800

Brookhaven
3218 Edgmont Avenue
Brookhaven, PA ¢ $610.876.6293

Chadds Ford

Routes 1 & 100

Chadds Ford, PA * 610.388.3150
Chester

23 East Fifth Street
Chester, PA » 610.876.8131

Chester Heights
Route 1 & Stoney Bank Road
Chester Heights, PA * 610.361.1300

Media
22 West State Street
Media, PA * 610.565.6210

Swarthmore

330 Dartmouth Avenue

Swarthmore, PA * 610.328.9998
Willowdale

Routes 82 & 926

Kennett Square, PA ¢ 610.444,9800
Loan Office

22 West State Street

Media, PA * 610.565.7236

Each year, First Keystone

Bank supports dozens of
worthwhile programs and
ordanizations in Delaware
and Chester Counties. The
Bankss presence reflects its
strong allegiance to the
comimunity and to the
belief that its success is
based on the financial
strength and well being of

the people it serves.
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PART L.
Item 1. BUSINESS.

General

First Keystone Financial, Inc. (the "Company”) is a Pennsylvania corporation and sole shareholder of First Keystone
Bank, a federally chartered stock savings bank (the "Bank”), which converted to the stock form of organization in January
1995. The only significant assets of the Company are the capital stock of the Bank, the Company's loan to its employee stock
ownership plan, and various equity and other investments. See Note 18 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2003 set forth in Item 8, “Financial Statements and Supplememary Data.” The business of
the Company primarily consists of the business of the Bank.

The Bank is a community oriented bank emphasizing customer service and convenience. The Bank’s primary business
is attracting deposits from the general public and using those funds together with other available sources of funds, primarily
borrowings, to originate loans. A substantial portion of the Bank's deposits are comprised of core deposits consisting of NOW,
non-interest-bearing accounts, money market (“MMDA") and passbook. Core deposits amounted to $184.1 million or 50.8%
of the Bank's total deposits at September 30, 2003. The Bank's primary Jending emphasis is the origination of loans secured by
first and second liens on single-family (one-to-four units) residences located in Delaware and Chester Counties, Pennsylvania
and to a lesser degree, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania and New Castle County, Delaware. The Bank originates residential
first mortgage loans with either fixed and/or adjustable rates. Adjustable-rate loans are retained for the Bank's portfolio while
fixed-rate loans may be sold in the secondary market depending on the Bank’s asset/liability strategy, cash flow needs and
current market conditions. The Bank also originates for portfolio, due to their generally shorter terms, adjustable or variable
interest rates and generally higher yields, loans secured by commercial and multi-family residential real estate properties as
well as residential and commercial construction loans secured by properties located in the Bank's market area. The Bank’s
management, however, remains focused on its long-term strategic plan to continue to shift to its loan composition toward
commercial business, construction and home equity loans and lines of credit in order to provide a higher yielding portfolio with
generally shorter terms. This effort to keep shorter term loans in portfolio resulted in a $5.9 million increase in outstanding
balances in home equity loans and equity lines of credit at fiscal year end, representing a 21.3% increase in this category
compared to the previous fiscal year. Multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans amounted to $59.0 million or
19.7% of the total loan portfolio at September 30, 2003 as compared to $60.4 million or 19.9% at September 30, 2002. The
Bank has onoccasion purchased loan participation interests in both residential and commercial real estate loans depending on
market conditions and portfolio needs, although no such purchases were made during the fiscal year ended September 30,
2003. <

~ In addition to its deposit gathering and lending activities, the Bank invests in mortgage-related securities, which are
issued or guaranteed by U.S. Government agencies and government sponsored or private enterprises, as well as U.S. Treasury
and federal government agency obligations, corporate bonds and municipal obligations. At September 30, 2003, the Bank's
mortgage-related securities (both available for sale and held to’ maturity) amounted to $128.2 million, or 22.9% of the
Company's total assets, and investment securities (both available for sale and held to maturity) amounted to $84.0 million, or
15.0% of total assets. :




Market Area and Competition

The Bank's primary market area is in Delaware and Chester Counties, which is located in the southeastern corner
of Pennsylvania between two metropolitan areas, Philadelphia, Pennsylvania and Wilmington, Delaware. There is easy
access to 1-95, the Philadelphia International Airport and the Delaware River. The Bank is fortunate to be located in
such a desirable geographic area. New York City is just 92 miles away from the Bank’s headquarters in Media,
Pennsylvania, Baltimore, Maryland is only 80 miles away, and the distance 1o Washington, DC is just 127 miles.

Through an extensive highway and telecommunications network, the Delaware County’s econoiny is knitted tightly
into a regional economy of more than 2.5 million workers. Census 2000 lists Delaware County as having 14,394 business
establishments with the number of jobs in the County (258,922) at an all time high. Most of the businesses are in
corporate and professional services, distributive services and the manufacturing sector. Census 2000 shows Delaware
County has a large, well-educated, and skilled local labor force of 258,782, Nearly one quarter of the County’s
population is 25 years or older and has earned a four-year college degree. The total number of people employed as
executives, managers, professionals, and technicians is 101,646. Philadelphia’s central location in the Northeast corridor,
infrastructure and other factors has made the Bank's market area attractive to many large corporate employers including
Comcast Corp., Boeing, State Farm Insurance, United Parcel Service, PECO Energy, SAP America, Inc., Wawa and
many others.

The Philadelphia area economy is typical of many large Northeastern cities where the traditional manufacturing
based economy has declined and has been replaced by the service sector including the health care market.
Crozer/Keystone Health System and Mercy Health Corp are amongst the larger employers within the Bank's market area.
According to the Delaware County Chamber of Commerce, there are 82 degree-granting institutions and 47,000
graduates annually in the region, representing more colleges and universities than any other area in the United States.
Delaware County also has one of the nation’s Jowest unemployment rates and one of the most active Chamber of
Commerce Offices in the State. The U.S. Small Business Administration, Philadelphia District Office, named the
Delaware County Chamber the Eastern Region Chamber of the Year in 2001. This is the second time the Chamber
received this level of recognition.

According to the 2000 Census, the population of Delaware County is 550,864, a modest 0.6% increase since 1990,
During the year 2000, Delaware County Planning Commission reviewed proposals for almost twice as many residential
units compared to 1997. Due to the availability of land still suitable for development, the majority of this growth has
occurred in the western part of Delaware County, and its contiguous neighbor Chester County. The Bank had benefited
from this growth with the opening of its Chester Heights office in December 1999 which has exceeded the Company's
deposit and consumer loan projections. Chester County’s continual growth is expected to increase further in the next
decade. The communities in Chester County that are experiencing growth are East Marlborough Township, New Garden
Township and East Goshen which surround the Bank's Chester County office. As a result of the continual anticipated
growth, the Bank is expanding its Willowdale Branch, Chester County to a full-service free-standing office to be
completed in fiscal 2004. ‘

The Bank faces strong competition both in attracting deposits and making real estate loans. Its most direct
competition for deposits has historically come from other savings associations, credit unions and commercial banks
located in its market area including many large regional financial institutions which have greater financial and marketing
resources available to them. The ability of the Bank to attract and retain core deposits depends on its ability to provide a
competitive rate of return, liquidity and risk comparable to that offered by competing investment opportunities.

The Bank experiences strong competition for real estate loans principally from other savings associations,
commercial banks and mortgage-banking companies. The Bank competes for loans principally through the interest rates
and loan fees it charges, the efficiency and quality of the services it provides borrowers and the convenient locations of
its branch office network. Recognizing that convenience, as it relates to branch locations, is still a primary motivator in
attracting new deposits, the Bank is undergoing construction of a new full-service free-standing branch on a corner
property in Aston Township, Delaware County, a densely populated area in the heart of the Bank’s marketplace.




Forward Looking Statements

In this Annual Report on Form 10-K, the Company has included certain forward-looking statements concerning
the future operations of the Company. It is management’s desire to take advantage of the safe harbor provisions of the
Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995. This statement is for the express purpose of availing the Company of
the protections of such safe harbor with respect to all forward-looking statements contained in this Annual Report. Such
forward-looking statements are subject to risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially
from those currently anticipated due to a number of factors. Such forward-looking statements may be identified by the use
of words such as believe, expect, should, estimated, potential and similar expressions. Examples of forward-looking
statements include, but are not limited to, estimates with respect to the financial condition, business strategy, expected or
anticipated revenue, results of operations and the business of the Company that are subject to various factors which could
cause actual results to differ materially from these estimates. Factors that could affect results include interest rate trends,
deposit flows, competition, the general economic climate in Delaware and Chester counties, the mid-Atlantic region and
the United States as a whole, loan demand, real estate values, loan delinquency rates, levels of non-performing assets,
changes in federal and state regulation, changes in accounting policies and practices and other uncertainties described in
the Company’s filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission, including its Form 10-K for the year ended
September 30, 2003. These factors should be considered in evaluating the forward-looking statements, and undue
reliance should not be placed on such statements. The Company assumes no obligation to update or revise forward-
looking statements to reflect any changed assumptions, any unanticipated events or any changes in the future.
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Scheduled contractual amortization of loans does not reflect the expected term of the Bank's loan portfolio. The
average life of loans is substantially less than their contractual terms because of prepayments and due-on-sale clauses,
which give the Bank the right to declare a conventional loan immediately due and payable in the event, among other
things, that the borrower sells the real property subject to the mortgage and the loan is not repaid. The average life of
mortgage loans tends to increase when current mortgage loan rates are higher than rates on existing mortgage loans and,
conversely, decrease when current mortgage loan rates are lower than rates on existing mortgage loans (due to
refinancings of adjustable-rate and fixed-rate loans at lower rates). Under the latter circumstances, the weighted average
yield on loans decreases as higher yielding loans are repaid or refinanced at lower rates.

Loan Origination, Purchase and Sale Activity. The following table shows the loan origination, purchase and sale

activity of the Bank during the periods indicated.

Gross loans at beginning of period'”
Loan originations for investment:
Real estate:
Residential
Commercial and multi-family
Construction
Home equity and lines of credit
Total real estate loans originated for investment
Consumer
Commercial business
Total loans criginated for investment
Participations purchased”
Loans originated for resale

Total originations
Deduct:
Principal loan repayments and prepayments
Transferred to real estate owned

Loans sold in secondary market
Subtotal
Net (decrease) increase in loans'”

Gross loans at end of period"

Year Ended September 30,
2003 2002 2001

(Dollars in thousands)

$303,624 $268,233 $247,532

80,722 60,719 25,889
13,890 31,300 11,265
24,578 28,741 18,503
29,920 21,710 10,363
149,110 142,470 66,020
2,927 2,825 1,287
17.548 21,555 12,102
169,585 166,850 79,409
- - 1,124

30,995 3,712 20,685
~200.580 170,562 101,218
(171,489) (131,374) (56,086)
(2,122) (361) (872)
(26.998) (3.436) (23.559)
200.609) (135.171) (80,517)
(29) 35,391 20,701
$303,595 $303.624 $268.233

M Includes loans held for sale of $4.5 million, $501,000 and $225,000 at September 30, 2003, 2002

and 2001, respectively.

2 Consist of commercial real estate loans.




The residential lending activities of the Bank are subject to written underwriting standards and loan origination
procedures established by the Bank's Board of Directors and management. Loan applications may be taken at all of the
Bank's branch offices by the branch manager or other designated loan officers. Applications for single-family residential
mortgage loans for portfolio retention are obtained predeminately through loan originators who are employees of the
Bank. The Bank's residential loan originators will take loan applications outside of the Bank's offices at the customer's
convenience and are compensated on a commission basis. The Residential Lending Department supervises the process of
obtaining credit reports, appraisals and other documentation involved with aloan. In most cases, the Bank requires that a
property appraisal be obtained in connection with all new first mortgage loans. Generally, appraisals are not required on
home equity loans because alternative means of valuation are used (i.e. tax assessments). Property appraisals generally
are performed by an independent appraiser from a list approved by the Bank's Board of Directors. The Bank requires
that title insurance (other than with respect to home equity loans) and hazard insurance be maintained on all security
properties and that flood insurance be maintained if the property is within a designated flood plain.

Residential mortgage loan applications are primarily developed from referrals from real estate brokers and
builders, existing customers and walk-in customers. Commercial and multi-family real estate loan applications are
obtained primarily from previous borrowers, direct solicitations by Bank personnel, as well as referrals. Consumer loans
originated by the Bank are obtained primarily through existing and walk-in customers who have been made aware of the
Bank's programs by advertising and other means.

Applications for single-family residential mortgage loans which are originated for resale in the secondary market
or loans designated for portfolio retention that conform to the requirements for resale into the secondary market and do
not exceed Fannie Mae (“FNMA”) or Freddie Mac (“FHLMC”) limits are approved by at least one of the following: the
Bank'’s Senior Vice President of Residential Lending, the Vice President of Residential Lending, the Senior Mortgage
Loan underwriter or the Loan Committee (a committee comprised of four directors and the Vice President of Residential
Lending). Residential mortgage loans in excess of FNMA/FHLMC maximum amounts (currently $322,700) but less than
$1.0 million must be approved by the Loan Committee. All mortgage loans in excess of $1.0 million must be approved
by the Bank's Board of Directors or the Executive Committee thereof. Commercial and multi-family residential real
estate loans in excess of $200,000 and construction loans must be approved by the Board of Directors. All mortgage
loans which do not require approval by the Board of Directors are submitted to the Board at its next meeting for review
and ratification. Home equity loans and lines of credit up to $150,000 can be approved by the Vice President of
Residential Lending, the Vice President of Construction Loans, the Vice President of Residential Lending or the Senior
Mortgage Loan Underwriter. Loans in excess of such amount must be approved by the Loan Committee.

Single-Family Residential Loans. Substantially all of the Bank's single-family residential mortgage loans consist
of conventional loans. Conventional loans are loans that are neither insured by the Federal Housing Administration or
partially guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs. The vast majority of the Bank's single-family residential
mortgage loans are secured by properties located in Pennsylvania, primarily in Delaware and Chester counties, and are
originated under terms and documentation which permit their sale to FHLMC or FNMA. The Bank, consistent with its
asset/liability management strategies, sells some of its newly originated longer term fixed-rate residenttal mortgage loans
and to a limited degree, existing longer term fixed-rate residential mortgage loans while retaining adjustable-rate
mortgage loans and shorter term fixed-rate residential mortgage loans. See "- Mortgage-Banking Activities.”

The single-family residential mortgage loans offered by the Bank currently consist of fixed-rate loans, including
bi-weekly and balloon loans and adjustable-rate loans. Fixed-rate Joans generally have maturities ranging from 15 to 30
years and are fully amortizing with monthly loan payments sufficient to repay the total amount of the loan with interest by
the end of the loan term. The Bank's fixed-rate loans are originated under terms, conditions and documentation which
permit them to be sold to U.S. Government-sponsored agencies, such as FHLMC or FNMA, and other purchasers in the
secondary mortgage market. The Bank also offers bi-weekly loans under the terms of which the borrower makes
payments every two weeks. Although such loans have a 30 year amortization schedule, due to the bi-weekly payment
schedule, such loans repay substantially more rapidly than a standard monthly amortizing 30-year fixed-rate loan. The
Bank also offers five and seven year bailoon loans which provide that the borrower can conditionally renew the loan at
the fifth or seventh year at a then to-be-determined interest rate for the remaining 25 or 23 years, respectively, of the
amortization period. At September 30, 2003, $147.8 million, or 89.0% of the Bank's single-family residential mortgage
loans held in portfolio were fixed-rate loans, including $12.4 million of bi-weekly, fixed-rate residential mortgage loans.




The adjustable-rate loans currently offered by the Bank have interest rates which adjust every one, three or five
years in accordance with a designated index, such as U.S. Treasury obligations, adjusted to a constant maturity ("CMT™),
plus a stipulated margin. The Bank's adjustable-rate single-family residential real estate loans generally have a cap of 2%
on any increase or decrease in the interest rate at any adjustment date, and a cap and floor of 6% on any such increase or
decrease over the life of the loan. In order to increase the originations of adjustable-rate loans, the Bank has been
originating loans which bear a fixed interest rate for a period of three to five years after which they convert to one-year
adjustable-rate loans. The Bank's adjustable-rate loans require that any payment adjustment resulting from a change in
the interest rate of an adjustable-rate loan be sufficient to result in full amortization of the loan by the end of the loan term
and, thus, do not permit any of the increased payment to be added to the principal amount of the loan, creating negative
amortization. Although the Bank does offer adjustable-rate loans with initial rates below the fully indexed rate, loans tied
to the one-year CMT are underwritten using methods approved by FHLMC or FNMA which require borrowers to be
qualified at 2% above the discounted loan rate under certain conditions. At September 30, 2003, $18.2 million, or
11.0%, of the Bank's single-family residential mortgage loans held for portfolio were adjustable-rate loans.

Adjustable-rate loans decrease the risks associated with changes in interest rates but involve other risks, primarily
because in the event interest rates increase, the loan payment by the borrower also increases to the extent permitted by the
terms of the loan, thereby increasing the potential for default. In addition, adjustable-rate loans tend to prepay and
convert to fixed rates when the overall interest rate environment is low. Moreover, as with fixed-rate loans, as interest
rates increase, the marketability of the underlying collateral property may be adversely affected by higher interest rates.
The Bank believes that these risks, which have not had a material adverse effect on the Bank to date, generally are less
than the risks associated with holding fixed-rate loans in an increasing interest rate environment.

For conventional residential mortgage loans held in portfolio and also for those loans originated for sale in the
secondary market, the Bank's maximum loan-to-value (“LTV”) ratio is 97%, and is based on the lesser of sales price or
appraised value. On loans with a LTV ratio of over 80%, private mortgage insurance may be required to be obtained or
the Bank may lend the excess as a home equity loan.

Commercial and Multi-Family Residential Real Estate Loans. In fiscal 2003, the Bank has maintained its
increased investment in commercial and multi-family residential lending. Such loans are being made primarily to small-
and medium-sized businesses located in the Bank's primary market area, a segment of the market that the Bank believes
continues to be under served in recent years. Loans secured by commercial and multi-family residential real estate
amounted to $59.0 million, or 19.7%, of the Bank's total loan portfolio, at September 30, 2003. The Bank's commercial
and multi-family residential real estate loans are secured primarily by professional office buildings, small retail
establishments, warehouses and apartment buildings (with 36 units or less) located in the Bank's primary market area.

The Bank's adjustable-rate multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans generally are either three or
five-year adjustable-rate loans indexed to the CMT plus a margin. In addition, depending on collateral value and strength
of the borrower, fixed-rate balloon loans and longer term fixed-rate loans may be originated. Generally, fees of 1% to
3% of the principal loan balance are charged to the borrower upon closing. Although terms for multi-family residential
and commercial real estate loans may vary, the Bank's underwriting standards generally provide for terms of up to 25
years with amortization of the principal over the term of the loan and LTV ratios of not more than 75%. Generally, the
Bank obtains personal guarantees of the principals of the borrower as additional security for any commercial real estate
and multi-family residential loans and requires that the borrower have at least a 25% equity investment in any such

property.




The Bank evaluates various aspects of commercial and multi-family residential real estate loan transactions in an
effort to mitigate risk to the extent possible. In underwriting these loans, consideration is given to the stability of the
property's cash flow history, future operating projections, current and projected occupancy, position in the market,
location and physical condition. Inrecent periods, the Bank has generally imposed a debt coverage ratio (the ratio of net
cash from operations before payment of debt service to debt service) of not less than 110%. The underwriting analysis
also includes credit checks and a review of the financial condition of the borrower and guarantor, if applicable. An
appraisal report is prepared by a state-licensed and certified appraiser (generally an appraiser who is qualified as a
Member of the Appraisal Institute ("MAI")) commissioned by the Bank to substantiate property values for every
commercial real estate and multi-family loan transaction. All appraisal reports are reviewed by the commercial loan
underwriter prior to the closing of the loan.

Multi-family residential and commercial real estate lending entails different and significant risks when compared
to single-family residential lending because such loans often involve large loan balances to single borrowers and because
the payment experience on such loans is typically dependent on the successful operation of the project or the borrower's
business. These risks also can be significantly affected by supply and demand conditions in the local market for
apartments, offices, warehouses or.other commercial space. The Bank attempts to minimize its risk exposure by limiting
such lending to proven developers/owners, only considering properties with existing operating performance which can be
analyzed, requiring conservative debt coverage ratios, and periodically monitoring the operation and physical condition
of the collateral. During fiscal 2003, the Bank continued to experience difficulties with two borrowers in its commercial
real estate loan portfolio which has increased non-performing assets.  See “Non-performing Assets” for further
discussion of these non-performing loans.

Construction Loans. Substantially all of the Bank's construction loans consist of loans for acquisition and
development of properties to construct single-family properties extended either to individuals or to selected developers
with whom the Bank is familiar to build such properties on a pre-sold or limited speculative basis.

To a lesser extent, the Bank provides financing for construction to permanent commercial real estate properties.
Commercial construction loans have a maximum term of 24 months during the construction period with interest based
upon the prime rate published in the Wall Street Journal ("Prime Rate") plus a margin and have LTV ratios of 80% or
less of the appraised value upon completion. The loans convert to permanent commercial real estate loans upon
completion of construction. With respect to construction loans to individuals, such loans have a maximum term of 12
months, have variable rates of interest based upon the Prime Rate plus a margin and have LTV ratios of 80% or less of
the appraised value of the property upon completion and generally do not require the amortization of principal during the
term. Upbn completion of construction, the borrower is required to refinance the loan although the Bank may be the
lender of the permanent loan secured by the property.

The Bank also provides construction loans (including acquisition and development) and revolving lines of credit to
developers. The majority of construction Joans consist of loans to selected local developers with whom the Bank is
familiar and who build single-family dwellings on a pre-sold or, to a significantly lesser extent, on a speculative basis.
The Bank generally limits to two the number of unsold units that a developer may have under construction in a project.
Such loans generally have terms of 36 months or less, have generally a maximum LTV ratios of 75% of the appraised
value of the property upon completion and do not require the amortization of the principal during the term. The loans are
made with variable rates of interest based on the Prime Rate plus a margin adjusted on a monthly basis. The Bank also
receives origination fees that generally range from .5% to 3.0% of the loan commitment. The borrower is required to
fund a portion of the project’s costs, the exact amount being determined on a case-by-case basis. Loan proceeds are
disbursed by percentage of completion of the cost of the project after inspections indicate that such disbursements are for
costs already incurred and which have added to the value of the project. Only interest payments are due during the
construction phase and the Bank may provide the borrower with an interest reserve from which it can pay the stated
interest due thereon. ’

At September 30, 2003, residential construction loans totaled $16.4 million, or 5.5%, of the total loan portfolio,
primarily consisting of construction loans to developers. At September 30, 2003, commercial construction loans totaled
$2.1 million, or .71%, of the total loan portfolio.




The Bank also originates ground or land loans to individuals to purchase a property on which they intend to build
their primary residences, as well as to developers to purchase lots to build speculative homes at a later date. Such loans
have terms of 36 months or less with a maximum LTV ratio of 75% of the lower of appraised value or sale price. The
loans are made with variable rates based on the Prime Rate plus a margin. The Bank also receives origination fees, which
generally range between 1.0% and 3.0% of the loan amount. At September 30, 2003, land loans (including loans to
acquire and develop land) totaled $10.4 million, or 3.5%, of the total loan portfolio.

Loans to developers include both secured and unsecured lines of credit (which are classified as commercial
business loans) with outstanding commitments totaling $2.2 million. ANl have personal guaranties of the principals and
are cross-collateralized with existing loans. At September 30, 2003, loans outstanding under builder lines of credit
totaled $1.4 million, or .47%, of the total loan portfolio, of which $788,000 were unsecured and given only to the Bank's
most creditworthy long standing customers.

Prior to making a commitment to fund a construction loan, the Bank requires an appraisal of the property by an
appraiser approved by the Board of Directors. In addition, during the term of the construction loan, the project is
inspected by an independent inspector.

Construction financing generally is considered to involve a higher degree of risk of loss than long-term financing
on improved, owner-occupied real estate. Risk of loss on a construction loan is dependent largely upon the accuracy of
the initial estimate of the property's value at completion of construction or development and the estimated cost (including
interest) of construction. During the construction phase, a number of factors could result in delays and cost overruns. If
the estimate of value proves to be inaccurate, the Bank may be confronted, at or prior to the maturity of the loan, with a
project, when completed, having a value which is insufficient to assure full repayment. Loans on lots may run the risk of
adverse zoning changes as well as environmental or other restrictions on future use.

Home Equity Loans and Lines of Credit. Home equity loans and home equity lines of credit are secured by the
underlying equity in the borrower’s primary residence or, occasionally, other types of real estate. Home equity loans are
amortizing loans with fixed interest rates and generally maximum terms of 15 years while equity lines of credit have
adjustable interest rates indexed to the Prime Rate. Generally home equity loans or home equity lines of credit do not
exceed $100,000. The Bank's home equity loans and lines of credit generally require combined LTV ratios of 80% or
less. Loans with higher LTV ratios are available but with higher interest rates and stricter credit standards. At September
30, 2003, home equity loans and lines of credit amounted to $33.5 million, or 11.2%, of the Bank's total loan portfolio.

Consumer Lending Activities. The Bank also offers a variety of consumer loans in order to provide a full range of
retail financial services to its customers. At September 30, 2003, $1.4 million, or .5 %, of the Bank's total loan portfolio
was comprised of consumer loans. The Bank originates substantially all of such loans in its market area. At September
30, 2003, the Bank's consumer foan portfolio was comprised of credit card, deposit, unsecured personal loans and other
consumer loans. The Bank’s credit card program is primarily offered to only the Bank’'s most creditworthy customers.
At September 30, 2003, these loans totaled $620,000, or .2%, of the total loan portfolio. Another component of the
consumer loan portfolio is unsecured loans amounting to $547,000, or .2%, of the Bank’s loan portfolio at September 30,
2003.

Consumer loans generally have shorter terms and higher interest rates than mortgage loans but generally involve
more credit risk than mortgage loans because of the type and nature of the collateral and, in certain cases, the absence of
collateral. '

Commercial Business Loans. The Bank has also emphasized the growth in commercial business loans by granting
such loans directly to business enterprises that are located in its market area. The majority of such loans are for less than
$1.0 million. The Bank actively targets and markets to small- and medium-sized businesses. Applications for commercial
business Joans are obtained from existing commercial customers, branch and customer referrals, direct inquiry and those
that are obtained by our commercial lending officers. As of September 30, 2003, commercial business loans amounted to
$10.2 million, or 3.4%, of the Bank’s total loan portfolio.
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The commercial business loans consist of a limited number of commercial lines of credit secured by real estate,
securities, some working capital financings secured by accounts receivable and inventory and, to a limited extent,
unsecured lines of credit. Commercial business loans originated by the Bank ordinarily have terms of five years or less
and fixed rates or adjustable rates tied to the Prime Rate plus a margin.

Although commercial business loans generally are considered to involve greater credit risk than other certain types
of loans, management intends to continue to offer commercial business loans to small- and medium-sized businesses in an

effort to better serve our community’s needs, obtain core non-interest-bearing déposits and increase the Bank’s interest
rate spread.

Mortgage-Banking Activities. Due to customer preference for fixed-rate loans, the Bank has continued to originate
fixed-rate loans. Long-term (generally 30 years) fixed-rate loans not taken into portfolio for asset/liability purposes are
sold into the secondary market. The Bank's net gain on sales of mortgage loans amounted to $410,000, $84,000, and
$122,000 during the fiscal years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. Profits from sales of loans
held for sale significantly increased due to the increased originations in 30-year loans resulting from the low interest rate
environment. The Bank had $4.5 million and $501,000 of mortgage loans held for sale at September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively. Subsequent to fiscal year end, management determined, based on its asset liability position, to retain a
substantial portion of such loans in its loan portfolio.

The Bank's conforming mortgage loans sold to others are sold, generally with servicing retained, on a loan-by-loan
basis primarily to FHLMC or FNMA. A period of less than five days generally elapses between the closing of the loan
by the Bank and its purchase by the investor. Mortgages with established interest rates generally will decrease in value
during periods of increasing interest rates. Accordingly, fluctuations in prevailing interest rates may result in a gain or
loss to the Bank as a result of adjustments to the carrying value of loans held for sale or upon sale of loans. The Bank
attempts to protect itself from these market fluctuations through the use of forward commitments entered into at the same
time of the commitment by the Bank of a loan rate to the borrower. These commitments are mandatory delivery contracts
with FHLMC or FNMA within a certain time frame and within certain dollar amounts by a price determined at the
commitment date. Market risk does exist as non-refundable points paid by the borrower may not be sufficient to offset
fees associated with closing the forward commitment contract. See Note 13 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.

Loan Origination Fees and Servicing. Borrowers may be charged an origination fee, which is a percentage of the
principal balance of the loan. In accordance with the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
("SFAS") No. 91, “"Accounting for Nonrefundable Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and
Initial Direct Costs of Leéases,” the various fees received by the Bank in connection with the origination of loans are
deferred and amortized as a yield adjustment over the lives of the related loans using the interest method. However,
when such loans are sold, the femaining unamortized fees (which is all or substantially all of such fees due to the
relatively short period during which such loans are held) are recognized as income on the sale of loans held for sale.

The Bank, for conforming loan products, generally retains the servicing on ali loans sold to others. In addition, the
Bank services substantially ali of the loans that it retains in its portfolio. Loan servicing includes collecting and remitting
loan payments, accounting for principal and interest, making advances to cover delinquent payments, making inspections
as required of mortgaged premises, contacting delinquent mortgagors, supervising foreclosures and property dispositions
in the event of unremedied defaults and generally administering the loans. Funds that have been escrowed by borrowers
for the payment of mortgage-related expenses, such as property taxes and hazard and mortgage insurance premiums, are
maintained in noninterest-bearing accounts at the Bank.
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The following table presents information regarding the loans serviced by the Bank for others at the dates indicated.
Substantially all the loans were secured by properties in Pennsylvania. A small percentage of the loans are secured by
properties located in Delaware, Maryland or New Jersey.

September 30,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Loans originated by the Bank and serviced for:

FNMA $ 822 $ 1054 $ 1,726
FHLMC 50,373 50,405 64,195

* Others 352 367 380
Total loans serviced for others $51.547 $51.826  $66.301

The Bank receives fees for servicing mortgage loans, which generally amount to 0.25% per annum on the
declining principal balance of mortgage loans. Such fees serve to compensate the Bank for the costs of performing the
servicing function. Other sources of loan servicing revenues include late charges. The Bank retains a portion of funds
received from borrowers on the loans it services for others in payment of its servicing fees received on loans serviced for
others. For fiscal years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the Bank earned gross fees of $140,000, $160,000
and $191,000, respectively, from loan servicing.

Loans-to-One Borrower Limitations. Regulations impose limitations on the aggregate amount of loans that a
savings institution could make to any one borrower, including related entities. Under such regulations, the permissible
amount of loans-to-one borrower follows the national bank standard for all loans made by savings institutions, which
generally does not permit loans-to-one borrower to exceed 15% of unimpaired capital and surplus. Loans in an amount
equal to an additional 10% of unimpaired capital and surplus also may be made to a borrower if the loans are fully
secured by readily marketable securities. At September 30, 2003, the Bank's six largest loans or groups of loans-to-one
borrower, including related entities, ranged from an aggregate of $4.3 million to $5.8 million. The Bank's loans-to-one
borrower limit was $6.8 million at such date.

Asset Quality

General. As a part of the Bank's efforts to improve its asset quality, it has developed and implemented an asset
classification system. All of the Bank's assets are subject to review under the classification system, but particular
emphasis is placed on the review of multi-family residential and commercial real estate loans, construction loans and
commercial business loans. All assets of the Bank are periodically reviewed and the classification recommendations
submitted to the Asset Classification Committee at least monthly. The Asset Classification Committee is composed of
the President and Chief Executive Officer, the Chief Financial Officer, the Vice President of Loan Administration, the
Internal Auditor and the Vice President of Construction Lending. "All assets are placed into one of the four following
categories: Pass, Substandard, Doubtful and Loss. The criteria used to review and establish each asset's classification are
substantially identical to the asset classification system used by the Office of Thrift Supervision (the "OTS") in
connection with the examination process. As of September 30, 2003, the Bank did not have any assets which it had
classified as doubtful or loss. See "- Non-Performing Assets” and "- Other Classified Assets” for a discussion of certain

_of the Bank's assets which have been classified as substandard and regulatory classification standards generally.
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When a borrower fails to make a required payment on a loan, the Bank attempts to cure the deficiency by
contacting the borrower and requesting payment. Contact is generally made after the expiration of the grace period
(usually fifteen days) in the form of telephone calls and/or correspondence. In most cases, deficiencies are cured
promptly. If the delinquency increases, the Bank will initiate foreclosure actions or legal collection actions if a borrower

fails to enter into satisfactory repayment arrangements. Such actions generally commence at sixty to ninety days of
delinquency. . :

Loans are placed on non-accrual status when, in the judgment of management, the probability of collection of
interest is deemed to be insufficient to warrant further accrual. When a loan is placed on non-accrual status, previously
accrued but unpaid interest is deducted from interest income. As a matter of policy, the Bank does not accrue interest on
loans past due 90 days or more. See Note 2 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.

Real estate acquired by the Bank as a result of foreclosure or by deed-in-lieu of foreclosure is classified as real
estate owned until sold. Real estate owned is initially recorded at the lower of fair value less estimated costs to sell the
property, or cost (generally the balance of the loan on the property at the date of acquisition). After the date of
acquisition, all costs incurred in maintaining the property are expenses and costs incurred for the improvement or
development of such property are capitalized up to the extent of their net realizable value.

Under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America ("GAAP"), the Bank is required to
account for certain loan modifications or restructurings as "troubled debt restructurings” under SFAS No. 15. In general,
the modification or restructuring of a debt constitutes a troubled debt restructuring if the Bank, for economic or legal
reasons related to the borrower's financial difficulties, grants a concession to the borrower that the Bank would not
otherwise consider under current market conditions. Debt restructuring or loan modifications for a borrower do not
necessarily always constitute troubled debt restructuring, however, and troubled debt restructuring does not necessarily
result in non-accrual loans.
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Non-performing Assets. The following table sets forth the amounts and categories of the Bank's non-performing
assets and troubled debt restructurings at the dates indicated.

September 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands)

Non-performing loans:

Single-family residential $ 688 $1,237 $1,924 $2,109 $2,312
Commercial and multi-family'” 381 238 33 - 289
Construction'? -- -- - -- 556
Consumer 16, 19 314 48 16
Commercial business . 268 138 - 3 6
Total non-performing loans 1,353 3,780 2,271 2,160 3.179
Accruing loans more than 90 days delinquent 203 1,358 31 355 1
Total non-performing loans 1,556 5,138 2,302 2515 3.180
Real estate owned 1,420 248 887 | 947 297
Total non-performing assets $2.976 $5.386 $3,189 $3.462 $3.477
Troubled debt restructurings $ - I $ - 5§ - $ 24

Total non-performing loans and
troubled debt restructurings
as a percentage of gross loans
receivable : 053%  1.76% 0.92% 1.07% 1.39%

Total non-performing assets
as a percentage of total assets
053%  L104%  065%  015%  0J1%
Total non-performing assets and
troubled debt restructurings as
percentage of total assets

0.53%  104%  0.65%  075%  0J18%

D" Consists of one loan at September 30, 2003, three loans at September 30, 2002, one loan at September 30, 2001 and

two loans at September 30, 1999.

@ Consists of three loans made to two borrowers at September 30, 1999.

@ Consists of one commercial real estate loan of $1.3 million which returned to current status subsequent to September

30, 2002

@ Consists of lease financing receivables at September 30, 1999 from the Bennett Funding Group of Syracuse, New

York ("Bennett Funding”). The troubled debt restructurings entered into in 1997 performed in accordance with the
terms of the agreements since the restructurings.

" Includes loans receivable and loans held for sale, less construction and land loans in process and deferred loan

origination fees and discounts.
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- The $688,000 of non-performing single-family residential loans at September 30, 2003 consisted of 16 loans with
principal balances ranging from $2,700 to $164,000, with an average balance of approximately $43,000. Included within
the 16 loans are four loans aggregating $291,000 to credit impaired borrowers.

At September 30, 2003, non-performing commercial real estate loans were comprised of two commercial real
estate loans totaling $381,000 with the largest of the two having a carrying value of $320,000. The Bank owns a 25%
participation interest in this loan which is secured by a partially completed storage facxllty in Clifton Heights,
Pennsylvania. Subsequent to fiscal year end, the loan was paid off.

Non-performing commercial business loans comprised of four loans with an average balance of approximately
$67, OOO and the largest loan having a carrying value of $125,000.

At September 30, 2003, the $1.4 million of real estate owned (including in-substance foreclosure) consisted of
two single-family residential properties with an average carrying value of $167,600 and a $1.1 million commercial real
estate property. The commercial real estate property is an 18-hole golf course and golf house, located in Avondale,
Pennsylvania. The golf facility is fully operational and continues to generate revenues. Foreclosure is expected to occur
in December 2003 and the property is currently being marketed. During fiscal 2003, the Bank incurred expenses in the
amount of $299,000 relating to the workout of these loans. Management expects the costs associated with these loans to
continue into the next fiscal year.

Other Classified Assets. Federal banking regulations require that each insured savings association classify its
assets on a regular basis. In addition, in connection with examinations of insured institutions, federal examiners have
authority to identify problem assets and, if appropriate, classify them. There are three classifications for problem assets:
"substandard,” "doubtful” and "loss.” Substandard assets have one or more defined weaknesses and are characterized by
the distinct possibility that the insured institution will sustain some loss if the deficiencies are not corrected. Doubtful
assets have the weaknesses of substandard assets with the additional characteristic that the weaknesses make collection or
liquidation in full, on the basis of currently existing facts, conditions and values questionable, and there is a high
possibility of loss. An asset classified loss is considered uncollectible and of such little value that continuance as an asset
of the institution is not warranted.

At September 30, 2003, the Bank had $3.1 million of assets classified as substandard, and no assets classified as
doubtful or loss. Substantially all classified assets consist of non-performing assets.

Allowance for Loan Losses. The Bank's policy is to establish reserves for estimated losses on delinquent loans
when it determines that losses are probable. The allowance for losses on loans is maintained at a level believed by
management to cover all known and inherent losses in its loan portfolio. Management's analysis of the adequacy of the
allowance is based on an evaluation of the loan portfolio, past loss experience, current economic conditions, volume,
growth and composition of the portfolio, and other relevant factors. The allowance is increased by provisions for loan
losses which are charged against income. The level of provisions increased in fiscal 2002 compared, to a large part, to
the nonperforming commercial assets aggregating $1.5 million as discussed above. As shown in the table below, at
September 30, 2003, the Bank's allowance for loan losses amounted to 127.63% and .68% of the Bank's non-performing
loans and gross loans receivable, respectively.

Management of the Bank presently believes that its allowance for loan losses is adequate to cover.any probable
losses in the Bank's loan portfolio. However, future adjustments to this allowance may be necessary, and the Bank's
results of operations could be adversely affected if circumstances differ substantlally from the assumptions used by
management in making its determinations in this regard.
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(2)

The following table provides information regarding the changes in the allowance for loan losses and other selected
statistics for the periods presented.

Allowance for loan losses, beginning of period
Charged-off loans:
Single-family residential
Multi-family and commercial
Construction
Consumer and commercial business
Total charged-off loans
Recoveries on loans previously charged off:
Single-family residential
Commercial leases "
Consumer and commercial business
Total recoveries

Net loans charged-off
Provision for loan losses

Allowance for loan losses, end of period

Net loans charged-off to average loans outstanding'®
Allowance for loan losses to gross loans receivable”
Allowance for loan losses to total non-performing loans
Net loans charged-off to allowance for loan losses
Recoveries to charge-offs

Relate to commercial lease purchases in prior years.

- Year Ending September 30,

2001

2003 2002 | 2000 1999
. (Dollars in thousands)

-$2358  $2,181  $2019  $1,928  $1,738
(50) GI7)  (492) (182) a2)
©941) - - - -

- . - 17 -
(111) (56) (40) (64) (60)
L12) B3 (32 _G6) (72)
4 1 11 - 2
L - 134 33 -
11 9 9 1 1
15 10 154 34 3
(1.087) - : .(363) ° (378)  (329) (69)
705 - 540, -540 420 259
$1.986 $2,358 . $2.181 $2,019  $1,928
'037% _013% . _016% _014% _0.03%
068% _081% . _087% _086% _0.84%
127.63%  45.89%  9474%  B8028%  60.63%
S4.73%  15.39% 17.33%  1630% _3.58%
C_L36% 268%  2895% _9.31% _4.11%

Gross loans receivable and average loans outstanding include loans receivable and loans
held for sale, less construction and land loans in process and deferred loan origination fees and discounts.
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Mortgage-Related Securities and Investment Securities

Mortgage-Related Securities. Federally chartered savings institutions have authority to invest in various
types of liquid assets, including U.S. Treasury obligations, securities of various federal agencies and of state and
municipal governments, certificates of deposit at federally insured banks and savings and loan associations,
certain bankers' acceptances and federal funds. Subject to various restrictions, federally chartered savings
institutions also may invest a portion of their assets in commercial paper, corporate debt securities and mutual
funds, the assets of which conform to the investments that federally chartered savings institutions are otherwise
authorized to make directly.

The Bank maintains a significant portfolio of mortgage-related securities (including mortgage-backed
securities and collateralized mortgage obligations (*CMOs") as a means of investing in housing-related mortgage
instruments without the costs associated with originating mortgage loans for portfolio retention and with limited
credit risk of default which arises in holding a portfolio of loans to maturity. Mortgage-backed securities {(which
also are known as mortgage participation.certificates or pass-through certificates) represent a participation
interest in a pool of single-family or multi-family residential mortgages. The principal and interest payments on
mortgage-backed securities are passed from the mortgage originators, as servicer, through intermediaries
(generally U.S. Government agencies and government-sponsored enterprises) that pool and repackage the
participation interests in the form of securities, to investors such as the Bank. Such U.S. Government agencies
and government sponsored enterprises, which guarantee the payment of principal and interest to investors,
primarily include FHLMC, FNMA and the Government National Mortgage Association ("GNMA"). The Bank
also invests in certain privately issued, credit enhanced mortgage-related securities rated AAA by national
securities rating agencies.

FHLMC is a public corporation chartered by the U.S. Government. FHLMC issues participation
certificates backed principally by conventional mortgage loans. FHLMC guarantees the timely payment of
interest and the ultimate return of principal on participation certificates. FNMA is a private corporation chartered
by the U.S. Congress with a mandate to establish a secondary market for mortgage loans. FNMA guarantees the
timely payment of principal and interest on FNMA securities. FHLMC and FNMA securities are not backed by
the full faith and credit of the United States, but because FHLMC and FNMA are U.S. Government-sponsored
enterprises, these securities are considered to be among the highest quality investments with minimal credit risks.
GNMA is a government agency within the Department of Housing and Urban Development which is intended to
help finance government-assisted housing programs. GNMA securities are backed by Federal Housing
Administration (“FHA”) insured and the Department of Veterans Affairs (“VA”) guaranteed loans, and the timely
payment of principal and interest on GNMA securities are guaranteed by the GNMA and backed by the full faith
and credit of the U.S. Government. Because FHLMC, FNMA and GNMA were established to provide support
for low- and middle-income housing, there are limits to the maximum size of loans that qualify for these
programs which is currently $322,700.

Mortgage-related securities typically are issued with stated principal amounts, and the securities are backed
by pools of mortgages that have loans with interest rates that are within a range and have varying maturities. The
underlying pool of mortgages can be composed of either fixed-rate or adjustable-rate loans. As aresult, the risk
characteristics of the underlying pool of mortgages (i.e., fixed-rate or adjustable rate) as well as prepayment risk,
are passed on to the certificate holder. Thus, the life of a mortgage-backed pass-through security thus
approximates the life of the underlying mortgages.

The Bank's mortgage-related securities include regular interests in CMOs. CMOs were developed in
response to investor concerns regarding the uncertainty of cash flows associated with the prepayment option of
the underlying mortgagor and are typically issued by governmental agencies, governmental sponsored enterprises
and special purpose entities, such as trusts, corporations or partnerships, established by financial institutions or
other similar institutions. A CMO can be (but is not required to be) collateralized by loans or securities which
are insured or guaranteed by FNMA, FHLMC or the GNMA. In contrast to pass-through mortgage-related
securities, in which cash flow is received pro rata by all security holders, the cash flow from the mortgages
underlying a CMO is segmented and paid in accordance with a predetermined priority to investors holding
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various CMO classes. By allocating the principal and interest cash flows from the underlying collateral among
the separate CMO classes, different classes of bonds are created, each with its own stated maturity, estimated
average life, coupon rate and prepayment characteristics.

The short-term classes of a CMO usually carry a lower coupon rate than the longer term classes and,
therefore, the interest differential cash flow on a residual interest is greatest in the early years of the CMO. As
the early coupon classes are extinguished, the residual income declines. Thus, the longer the lower coupon
classes remain outstanding, the greater the cash flow accruing to CMO residuals. As interest rates decline,
prepayments accelerate, the interest differential narrows, and the cash flow from the CMO declines. Conversely,
as interest rates increase, prepayments decrease, generating a larger cash flow to residuals.

A senior-subordinated structure often is used with CMOs to provide credit enhancement for securities
which are backed by collateral which is not guaranteed by FNMA, FHLMC or the GNMA. These structures
divide mortgage pools into various risk classes: a senior class and one or more subordinated classes. The
subordinated classes provide protection to the senior class. When cash flow is impaired, debt service goes first to
the holders of senior classes. In addition, incoming cash flows also may go into a reserve fund to meet any future
shortfalls of cash flow to holders of senior classes. The holders of subordinated classes may not receive any
funds until the holders of senior classes have been paid and, when appropriate, until a specified level of funds has
been contributed to the reserve fund.

Mortgage-related securities generally bear yields which are less than those of the loans which underlie such
securities because of their payment guarantees or credit enhancements which reduce credit risk to nominal levels.
However, mortgage-related securities are more liquid than individual mortgage loans and may be used to
collateralize certain obligations of the Bank. At September 30, 2003, $13.1 million of the Bank's mortgage-
related securities were pledged to secure various obligations of the Bank, treasury tax and loan processing and as
collateral for certain municipal deposits.

The Bank's mortgage-related securities are classified as either "held to maturity” or "available for sale”
based upon the Bank's intent and ability to hold such securities to maturity at the time of purchase, in accordance
with GAAP. As of September 30, 2003, the Bank had an aggregate of $128.1 million, or 22.9%, of total assets
invested in mortgage-related securities, net, of which $3.5 million was held to maturity and $124.6 million was
available for sale. The mortgage-related securities of the Bank which are held to maturity are carried at cost,
adjusted for the amortization of premiums and the accretion of discounts using a method which approximates a
level yield, while mortgage-related securities available for sale are carried at the current fair value. See Notes 2
and 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.




The following table sets forth the composition of the Bank's available for sale (at fair value) and held to
maturity (at amortized cost) of the mortgage-related securities portfolios at the dates indicated.

September 30,
2003 2002 2001
Available for sale: (Dollars in thousands)
Mortgage-backed securities:
FHLMC $ 6,950 $ 5,261 $ 9,175
FNMA 46,030 13,463 15,056
GNMA 13.639 33.621 43,907
Total mortgage-backed securities 66,619 52,345 68.138
Collateralized mortgage obligations:
FHLMC 20,239 9,509 10,994
FNMA 5,381 3,751 6,215
GNMA - - 17
Other 32417 20,069 ¥ 32,244 @
Total collateralized mortgage obligations 58.037 33,329 49.470
Total mortgage-related securities $124,656 385,674 $117.608
Held to maturity:
Mortgage-backed securities:
FHLMC $ 478 $1,433 $ 2,285
FNMA 2,123 3,574 4.684
Total mortgage-backed securities 2,601 5,007 6.969
Collateralized mortgage obligations:
FNMA 886 3.848 4,485
Total collateralized mortgage obligations 886 3,848 4.485
Total mortgage-related securities, amortized cost $3.487 $8.855 M
" Total fair value™ $3,560 $9.090 $11.550

" Includes “AAA” rated securities of Countrywide Home Loans, Washington Mutual, AMAC and First
Horizon with book values of $6.5 million, $6.8 million, $4.7 million and $ 3.6 million, respectively,
and fair values of $6.4 million, $6.7 million, $4.8 million and $3.5 million.

@ Includes “AAA" rated securities of Northwest Asset Securities Corporation, Credit Suisse First

Boston, Washington Mutual and Countrywide Home Loans with book values of $2.9 million, $4.1

million, $5.1 million and $2.7 million, respectively, and fair value of $3.0 million, $4.1 million, $5.1

million and $2.8 million, respectively.

® Includes “AAA” rated securities of Northwest Asset Securities Corporation, Chase Mortgage

Services, Washington Mutual and Countrywide Home Loans with book values of $5.5 million, $3.1

million, $4.2 million and $5.0 million, respectively, and fair values of $5.7 million, $3.1 million, $4.3

million and $5.0 million, respectively.

) See Note 4 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.
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The following table sets forth the purchases, sales and principal repayments of the Bank's mortgage-related
securities for the periods indicated.

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

Mortgage-related securities, beginning of period? $94.529  $129.062  $109.313
Purchases:

Mortgage-backed securities - available for sale 50,199 9,280 24,501

CMO:s - available for sale . 81,942 18,231 34,162
Sales:

Mortgage-backed securities - avallable for sale (4,493) - (6,888)

CMO:s - available for sale (3,064) - --
Repayments and prepayments:

Mortgage-backed securities  (32,563) (26,820) (21,568)

CMOs (55,941) (34,554) (14,808)
Decrease in net premium (1,128) (315 (145)
Change in net unrealized (loss) gain on mortgage -related ‘

securities available for sale (1.338) (355) 4,495
Net increase (decrease) in mortgage-related securities ‘ 33,614 (34.533) 19.749
Mortgage-related securities, end of period“)m $128.143 §$ 94,529  $129.062

D Includes both mortgage-related securities available for sale and held to maturity.
@ Calculated at amortized cost for securities held to maturity and at fair value for securities available for sale.

At September 30, 2003, the estimated weighted average maturity of the Bank's fixed-rate mortgage-related
securities was approximately 3.27 years. The actual maturity of a mortgage-backed security is less than its stated
maturity due to prepayments of the underlying mortgages. Prepayments that are faster than anticipated may shorten
the life of the security and adversely affect its yield to maturity. The yield is based upon the interest income and the
amortization of any premium or discount related to the mortgage-backed security. In accordance with GAAP,
premiums and discounts are amortized over the estimated lives of the securities, which decrease and increase interest
income, respectively. The prepayment assumptions used to determine the amortization period for premiums and
discounts can significantly affect the yield of the mortgage-backed security, and these assumptions are reviewed
periodically to reflect actual prepayments. Although prepayments of underlying mortgages depend on many factors,
including the type of mortgages, the coupon rate, the age of mortgages, the geographical location of the underlying
real estate collateralizing the mortgages and general levels of market interest rates, the difference between the interest
rates on the underlying mortgages and the prevailing mortgage ‘interest rates generally is the most significant
determinant of the rate of prepayments. During periods of declining mortgage interest rates, such as the Bank
experienced during fiscal 2003 and 2002, if the coupon rates of the underlying mortgages exceed the prevailing
market interest rates offered for mortgage loans, refinancings generally increase and accelerate the prepayment rate of
the underlying mortgages and the related securities. Conversely, during periods of increasing mortgage interest rates,
if the coupon rates of the underlying mortgages are less than the prevailing market interest rates offered for mortgage
loans, refinancings generally decrease and decrease the prepayment rate of the underlying mortgages and the related
securities. As aresult of the declining interest rate environment, the Bank experienced high levels of repayments and
accelerated prepayments, and consequently, the Bank reinvested the proceeds of such repayments and prepayments at
a lower yield. :
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Investment Securities. The following table sets forth information regarding the carrying and fair value of the
Company's investment securities, both held to maturity and available for sale, at the dates indicated.

At September 30,

2003 : 2002 2001
~ Carrying Fair Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
Value Value Value Value Value Value

: (Dollars in thousands)
FHLB stock $ 8,294 $ 8,294 $ 6,571 $ 6,571 $ 6917 $ 6917

U.S. Government and agency
obligations
1to 5 years 13,020 - 13,004 11,986 12,114 2,961 3,133
5 to 10 years 4,880 4,988 1,861 2,071 1,843 2,050
Municipal obligations . 17,373 17,895 19,012 19,800 21,890 22,626
Corporate bonds 20,621 21,693 14,299 14,720 14,333 14,087
Mutual funds . 14,009 13,952 14,009 14,045 5,009 5,004
Asset backed securities 1911 . 1,922 2,837 2,853 2,986 2,970
Preferred stocks : 5474 4,984 10,682 10,751 9474 - 9,197
Other equity investments 3.126 5712 3.476 4,269 2,778 3.497
Total 388,708 392444 - 384733  $87.194  $68.19]1  $69.481

At September 30, 2003, the Company had an aggregate of $92.4 million, or 16.5%, of its total assets invested
in investment securities, of which $8.3 million consisted of FHLB stock, $77.7 million was investment securities
available for sale and $6.5 million held to maturity. Included in U.S. Government and agency obligations are callable
bonds with a remaining term of approximately four years. The Bank's investment securities (excluding mutual funds,
equity securities and FHL.B stock) had a weighted average maturity to the call date of 6.0 years and a weighted
average yield of 6.1% (adjusted to a fully taxable equivalent yield).

Sources of Funds

General. The Bank's principal source of funds for use in lending and for other general business purposes has
traditionally come from deposits obtained through the Bank's branch offices. The Bank also derives funds from
contractual payments and prepayments of outstanding loans and mortgage-related securities, from sales of loans, from
maturing investment securities and from advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh and other borrowings. Loan
repayments are a relatively stable source of funds, while deposits inflows and outflows are significantly influenced by
general interest rates and money market conditions. The Bank uses borrowings to supplement its deposits as a source
of funds.

Deposits. The Bank’s current deposit products include passbook accounts, NOW accounts, MMDA,
certificates of deposit ranging in terms from 30 days to five years and non-interest-bearing personal and business
checking accounts. The Bank's deposit products also include Individual Retirement Account ("IRA") certificates and
Keogh accounts.

The Bank's deposits are obtained primarily from residents in Delaware and Chester counties in southeastern
Pennsylvania. The Bank attracts local deposit accounts by offering a wide variety of accounts, competitive interest
rates, and convenient branch office locations and service hours. The Bank utilizes traditional marketing methods to
attract new customers and savings deposits, including print media, radio advertising and direct mailings. However,
the Bank does not solicit funds through deposit brokers nor does it pay any brokerage fees if it accepts such deposits.
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The Bank has been competitive in the types of accounts and interest rates it has offered on its deposit products
but does not necessarily seek to match the highest rates paid by competing institutions. Even with the significant decline
in interest rates paid on deposit products in fiscal 2003 and 2002, due to generally declining returns on competing
investment opportunities as well as the effects of the stock market decline, the Bank did not experience disintermediation
of deposits into competing investment products in fiscal 2003 and 2002.

The following table shows the distribution of, and certain information relating to, the Bank's deposits by type of
deposit as of the dates indicated. ' ' :
September 30,

2003 2002 - 2001

Amount Percent Amount Percent Amount Percent

T ’ (Dollars in thousands)
Passbook 1 $ 47,089 . 1299% - $ 41,659 . .12.60% $ 37,806 12.13%

-MMDA 55,889 15.41 - 48,721 - 14.73 40,781 13.09
NOW 60,221 16.61 . 48,803 - . 14.75 45,161 1449
Certificates of deposit’ 178,489 4922 176,242 53.28 182,155 58.46
Non-interest-bearing 20917 577 15340 4.64 5,698 1.83
Total deposits =~ $362,605 -100.00%  $330,765 .100.00%  $311.601 100.00%

The following table sets forth the net savings flows of the Bank during the periods indicated.

Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001
‘ . ‘ e . (Dollars in thousands)
Increase before interest credited ‘ o $25,633 $10,477 . $27,876
Interest credited 6.207 8,687 11,163
Net savings increase $31,840 19.164 - $39,039

The following table sets forth maturities of the Bank's certificates of deposit of $100,000 or more at
September 30, 2003 and 2002 by time remaining to maturity (amounts in thousands).

September 30
‘ ‘ - 2003 2002
Three months or less $11,724 $10,764
Over three months through six months ) 6,581 5,509
Over six months through twelve months oo 5,984 6,679
Over twelve months - S - _9.889 9.618

$34.178  $32.570
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Borrowings. The Bank may obtain advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh upon the security of the common stock
it owns in the FHLB and certain of its residential mortgage loans and securities held to maturity, provided certain
standards related to creditworthiness have been met. Such advances are made pursuant to several credit programs, each
of which has its own interest rate and range of maturities. During fiscal 2003, the Company funded a portion of its asset
growth with overnight borrowings from FHLB. However, during fiscal 2002, the increase in core deposits funded asset
growth, therefore borrowing from the FHLB was not necessary. At September 30, 2003, the Bank had $126.4 million in
outstanding FHLB advances. The FHLB advances have certain call features whereby the FHLB of Pittsburgh can call
the borrowings after the expiration of certain time frames. The time frames on the callable borrowings range from three
months to seven years. See Note 9 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.

Subsidiaries

The Bank is permitted to invest up to 2% of its assets in the capital stock of, or secured or unsecured loans to,
service corporations, with an additional investment of 1% of assets when such additional investment is utilized primarily
for community development purposes. It may invest essentially unlimited amounts in subsidiaries deemed operating
subsidiaries that can only engage in activities that the Bank is permitted to engage in. Under such limitations, as of
September 30, 2003, the Bank was authorized to invest up to approximately $11.0 miilion in the stock of, or loans to,
service corporations. As of September 30, 2003, the net book value of the Bank's investment in stock, unsecured loans,
and conforming loans to its service corporations was $38,100.

At September 30, 2003, in addition to the Bank, the Company has six direct or indirect subsidiaries: First
Keystone Capital Trust I, First Keystone Capital Trust II, FKF Management Corp., Inc., State Street Services Corp., First
Pointe, Inc. and First Chester Services, Inc.

First Keystone Capital Trust I (the "Trust”) is a Delaware statutory business trust wholly owned by the Company
formed in 1997 for the purpose of issuing trust preferred securities and investing the proceeds there from in Junior
Subordinated Debentures issued by the Company. See Note 17 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial set forth in Item 8
hereof for further discussion regarding the issuance of trust preferred securities.

First Keystone Capital Trust I (the “Trust 11"} is a Delaware statutory business trust wholly owned by the
Company formed in 2001 for the purpose of issuing trust preferred securities and investing the proceeds in Junior
Subordinated Debentures issued by the Company. See Note 17 of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements set
forth in Item 8 hereof for further discussion regarding the issuance of trust preferred securities.

FKF Management Corp., Inc., a Delaware corporation, is a whoily owned operating subsidiary of the Bank
established in 1997 for the purpose of managing certain assets of the Bank. Assets under management totaled $150.5
million at September 30, 2003 and were comprised principally of investment and mortgage-related securities.

State Street Services Corp. is a wholly owned subsidiary of the Bank established in 1999 for the purpose of
offering a full array of insurance products through its ownership of a 51% interest in First Keystone Insurance Services,

LLC. In addition, it holds a 10% equity position in a title company which offers title services.

The Bank has two remaining subsidiaries, First Chester Services, Inc. and First Pointe, Inc., which were both
involved in real estate management but are now inactive.

Employees

The Bank had 88 full-time employees and 15 part-time employees as of September 30, 2003. None of these
employees is represented by a collective bargaining agreement. The Bank believes that it enjoys excellent relations with
its personnel.
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Regulation

The Company. The Company as a savings and loan holding company within the meaning of the Home Owners'
Loan Act, as amended ("HOLA"), is registered as such with the OTS and is subject to OTS regulations, examination,
supervision and reporting requirements. As a subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company, the Bank is subject to
certain restrictions in its dealings with the Company and affiliates thereof.

Federal Activities Restrictions. The Company operates as a unitary savings and loan holding company. Generally,
there are only limited restrictions on the activities of a unitary savings and loan holding company which applied to
become or was a unitary saving and loan holding company prior to May 4, 1999 and its non-savings institution
subsidiaries. Under the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (the “GLBA"), companies which apply 1o the OTS to become
unitary savings and loan holding companies will be restricted to only engaging in those activities traditionally permitted
to multiple saving and loan holding companies. However, if the Directorof the OTS determines that there is reasonable
cause to believe that the continuation by a savings and loan holding company of an activity constitutes a serious risk to
the financial safety, soundness or stability of its subsidiary savings association, the Director may impose such restrictions
as deemed necessary to address such risk, including limiting (i) payment of dividends by the savings association; (ii)
transactions between the savings association and its affiliates; and (iii) any activities of the savings association that might
create a serious risk that the liabilities of the holding company and its affiliates may be imposed on the savings
association. Notwithstanding the above rules regarding permissible business activities of grandfathered unitary savings
‘and loan holding companies under the GLBA (such as the Company), if the savings association subsidiary of such a
holding company fails to meet the Qualified Thrift Lender (“QTL") test, then such unitary holding company also shall
become subject to the activities restrictions applicable to multiple savings and loan holding companies and, unless the
savings association qualifies as a QTL within one year thereafter, shall register as, and become subject to the restrictions
applicable to, a bank holding company.

If the Company were to acquire control of another savings association, other than through merger or other business
combination with the Bank, the Company would thereupon become a multiple savings and loan holding company and
-would thereafter be subject to further restrictions on its activities.

The GLBA also imposes financial privacy obligations and reporting requirements on all financial institutions. The
privacy regulations require, among other things, that financial institutions establish privacy policies and disclose such
policies to its customers at the commencement of a customer relationship and annually thereafter. In addition, financial
institutions are required to permit customers to opt out of the financial institution's disclosure of the customer's financial
information to non-affiliated third parties.

The HOLA requires every savings institution subsidiary of a savings and loan holding company to give the OTS at
least 30 days' advance notice of any proposed dividends to be made on its guarantee, permanent or other
nonwithdrawable stock, or else such dividend will be invalid. See "- The Bank - Restrictions on Capital Distributions."

Limitations on Transactions with Affiliates. Transactions between savings associations and any affiliate are
governed by Sections 23A and 23B of the Federal Reserve Act ("FRA") and OTS regulations issued in connection
therewith. Affiliates of a savings institution include, among other entities, the savings institution’s holding company and
companies that are controlled by or under common control with the savings institution. Generally, Sections 23A and 23B
(1) limit the extent to which the savings association or its subsidiaries may engage in "covered transactions” with any one
affiliate to an amount equal to10% of such association's capital stock and surplus, and contain an aggregate limit on all
such transactions with all affiliates to an amount equalto 20% of such capital stock and surplus and (i) require that all
such transactions be on terms substantially the same, or at least as favorable, to the association or subsidiary as those
provided to a non-affiliate. The term "covered transaction” includes, among other things, the making of loans or
extension of credit to an affiliate, purchase of assets, issuance of a guarantee and similar transactions. In addition to the
restrictions imposed by Sections 23A and 23B, under OTS regulations no savings association may (i) loan or otherwise
extend credit to an affiliate, except for any affiliate which engages only in activities which are permissible for bank
holding companies, (ii) a savings association may not purchase or invest in securities of an affiliate other than shares of a
subsidiary; (iii) a savings association and its subsidiaries'may not purchase a low-quality asset from an affiliate; (iv) and
covered transactions and certain other transactions between a savings association or its subsidiaries and an affiliate must
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be on terms and conditions that are consistent with safe and sound banking practices. With certain exceptions, each
extension of credit by a savings association to an affiliate must be secured by collateral with a market value ranging from
100% to 130% (depending on the type of collateral) of the amount of the loan or extension of credit.

OTS regulations generally exclude all non-bank and non-savings association subsidiaries of savings associations
from treatment as affiliates, except to the extent that the OTS or the Federal Reserve Board decides to treat such
subsidiaries as affiliates. The regulations also require savings associations to make and retain records that reflect affiliate
transactions in reasonable detail, and provide that certain classes of savings associations may be required to give the OTS
prior notice of affiliate transactions.

Restrictions on Acquisitions. Except under limited circumstances, savings and loan holding companies are
prohibited from acquiring, without prior approval of the Director of the OTS, (3) control of any other savings association
or savings and loan holding company or substantially all of the assets thereof; or (ii) more than 5% of the voting shares of
a savings association or holding company thereof which is not a subsidiary. Except with the prior approval of the
Director of the OTS, no director or officer of a savings and loan holding company or person owning or controlling by
proxy or otherwise more than 25% of such company's stock, may acquire control of any savings association, other than a
subsidiary savings association, or of any other savings and loan holding company.

Federal Securities Laws. The Company's Common Stock is registered with the SEC under the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended ("Exchange Act"). The Company is subject to the information, proxy sohcnatlon insider
trading restrictions and other requirements under the Exchange Act.

Shares of Common Stock owned by an affiliate of the Company are subject to the resale restrictions of Rule 144
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended ("Securities Act”). As long as the Company meets the current public
information requirements of Rule 144 under the Securities Act, each affiliate of the Company who complies with the
other conditions of Rule 144 (including those that require the affiliate’s sale to be aggregated with those of certain other
persons) generally is able to sell in the public market, without registration, a number of shares not to exceed, in any three-
month period, the greater of (1) 1% of the outstanding shares of the Company or (ii) the average weekly volume of trading
in such shares during the preceding four calendar weeks.

Sarbanes-Oxley Act 0f 2002. On July 30, 2002, the President signed into law the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the
“Act”) implementing legislative reforms intended to address corporate and accounting fraud. In addition to the
establishment of a new accounting oversight board which will enforce auditing, quality control and independence
standards and will be funded by fees from all publicly traded companies, the bill restricts provision of both auditing and
consulting services by accounting firms. To ensure auditor independence, any non-audit services being provided to an
audit client will require preapproval by the company's audit committee members. In addition, the audit partners must be
rotated. The Act requires chief executive officers and chief financial officers, or their equivalent, to certify to the
accuracy of periodic reports filed with the SEC, subject to civil and criminal penalties if they knowingly or willfully
violate this certification requirement. In addition, under the Act, counsel will be required to report evidence of a material
violation of the securities laws or a breach of fiduciary duty by a company to its chief executive officer or its chief legal
‘officer, and, if such officer does not appropriately respond, to report such evidence to the audit committee or other
similar committee of the board of directors or the board itself.

Longer prison terms and increased penalties will also be applied to corporate executives who violate federal
securities laws, the period during which certain types of suits can be brought against a company or its officers has been
extended, and bonuses issued to top executives prior to restatement of a company's financial statements are now subject
to disgorgement if such restatemnent was due to corporate misconduct. Executives are also prohibited from insider trading
during retirement plan “blackout” periods, and loans to company executives are restricted. In addition, a provision directs
that civil penalties levied by the SEC as a result of any judicial or administrative action under the Act be deposited to a
fund for the benefit of harmed investors. The Federal Accounts for Investor Restitution (“FAIR”) provision also requires
the SEC to develop methods of improving collection rates. The legislation accelerates the time frame for disclosures by
public companies, as they must immediately disclose any material changes in their financial condition or operations.
Directors and executive officers must also provide information for most changes in ownership in a company’s securities
within two business days of the change.
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The Act also increases the oversight of, and codifies certain requirements relating to audit committees of public
companies and how they interact with the company's "registered public accounting firm" ("RPAF"). Audit committee
members must be independent and are barred from accepting consulting, advisory or other compensatory fees from the
issuer. In addition, companies must disclose whether at least one member of the committee is a "financial expert” (as
such term is defined by the SEC in regulations promulgated thereby) and if not, why not. Under the Act, a RPAF is
prohibited from performing statutorily mandated audit services for a company if such company's chief executive officer,
chief financial officer, comptroller, chief accounting officer or any person serving in equivalent positions has been
employed by such firm and participated in the audit of such company during the one-year period preceding the audit
initiation date. The Act also prohibits any officer or director of a company or any other person acting under their
direction from taking any action to fraudulently influence, coerce, manipulate or mislead any independent public or
certified accountant engaged in the audit of the company's financial statements for the purpose of rendering the financial
statement's materially misleading. The ‘Act also requires the SEC to prescribe rules requiring inclusion of an internal
control report and assessment by management in the annual report to stockholders. The Act requires the RPAF that
issues the audit report to attest to and report on management's assessment of the company’s internal controls. In addition,
the Act requires that each financial report required to be prepared in accordance with (or reconciled to) accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America and filed with the SEC reflect all material correcting
adjustments that are identified by a RPAF in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America and the rules and regulations of the SEC. '

The Bank. The OTS has extensive regulatory authority over the operations of savings associations such as the
Bank. As part of this authority, savings associations are required to file periodic reports with the OTS and are subject to
periodic examinations by the OTS. The investment and lending authority of savings associations are prescribed by
federal laws and regulations and they are prohibited from engaging in any activities not permitted by such laws and
regulations. Those laws and regulations generally are applicable to all federally chartered savings associations and may
also apply to state-chartered savings associations. Such regulation and supervision is primarily intended for the
protection of depositors. ‘

Insurance of Accounts. The deposits of the Bank are insured to the maximum extent permitted by the SAIF, which
is administered by the FDIC, and are backed by the full faith and credit of the U. S. Government. As insurer, the FDIC is
authorized to conduct examinations of, and to require reporting by, FDIC-insured institutions. It also may prohibit any
FDIC-insured institution from engaging in any activity the FDIC determines by regulation or order to pose a serious
threat to the FDIC. The FDIC also has the authority to initiate enforcement actions against savings associations, after
giving the OTS an opportunity to take such action.

Under current Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation regulations, Savings Association Insurance Fund-
insured institutions are assigned to one of three capital groups which are based solely on the level of an institution’s
capital — “well capitalized,” “adequately capitalized” and “undercapitalized” — which are defined in the same manner
as the regulations establishing the prompt corrective action system discussed below. These three groups are then
divided into three subgroups which reflect varying levels of supervisory concern, from those which are considered to
be healthy to those which are considered to be of substantial supervisory concern. The matrix so created results in
nine assessment risk classifications, with rates during the first six months of 2003 ranging from zero for well
capitalized, healthy institutions, such as the Bank, to 27 basis points for undercapitalized institutions with substantial
supervisory concerns.

In addition, all institutions with deposits insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation are required to pay
assessments to fund interest payments on bonds issued by the Financing Corporation, 2 mixed-ownership government
corporation established to recapitalize the predecessor to the Savings Association Insurance Fund. The assessment rate
for the third quarter of 2003 was .016% of insured deposits and is adjusted quarterly. These assessments will continue
until the Financing Corporation bonds mature in 2019.

The FDIC may terminate the deposit insurance of any insured depository institution, including the Bank, if it

determines after a hearing that the institution has engaged or is engaging in unsafe or unsound practices, is in an unsafe or
unsound condition to continue operations, or has violated any applicable law, regulation, order or any condition imposed
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by an agreement with the FDIC. It also may suspend deposit insurance temporarily during the hearing process for the
permanent termination of insurance, if the institution has no tangible capital. If insurance of accounts is terminated, the
accounts at the institution at the time of the termination, less subsequent withdrawals, shall continue to be insured for a
period of six months to two years, as determined by the FDIC. Management is not aware of any existing circumstances
which could result in termination of the Bank's deposit insurance.

Capital requirements. Current OTS capital standards require savings associations to satisfy three different capital
requirements. Under these standards, savings associations must maintain "tangible” capital equal to 1.5% of adjusted
total assets, "core” capital equal to 4% (3% if the association receives the OTS’ highest rating) of adjusted total assets and
"total" capital (a combination of core and "supplementary” capital) equal to 8.0% of "risk-weighted" assets. For purposes
of the regulation, core capital generally consists of common stockholders’ equity (including retained earnings),
noncumulative perpetual preferred stock and related surplus, minority interests in the equity accounts of fully
consolidated subsidiaries, certain nonwithdrawable accounts and pledged deposits and "qualifying supervisory goodwill."

Tangible capital is given the same definition as core capital but does not include qualifying supervisory goodwill and is
reduced by the amount of all the savings association’s intangible assets, with only a limited exception for purchased
mortgage servicing rights ("PMSRs"). Both core and tangible capital are further reduced by an amount equal to a savings
association’s debt and equity investments in subsidiaries engaged in activities not permissible for national banks (other
than subsidiaries engaged in activities undertaken as agent for customers or in mortgage banking activities and subsidiary
depository institutions or their holding companies). In addition, under the Prompt Corrective Action provisions of the
OTS regulations, all but the most highly rated institutions must maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 4% in order to be
adequately capitalized. See "- Prompt Corrective Action.” At September 30, 2003, the Bank did not have any
investment in subsidiaries engaged in impermissible activities and required to be deducted from its capital calculation.

The Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation Improvement Act of 1991 ("FDICIA") granted the OTS the authority
to prescribe rules for the amount of PMSRs that may be included in a savings association’s regulatory capital and required
that the value of readily marketable PMSRs included in the calculation of a savings association's regulatory capital not
exceed 90% of fair market value and that such value be determined at least quarterly. Under OTS regulations, (i) PMSRs
do not have to be deducted from tangible and core regulatory capital, provided that they do not exceed 50% of core
capital, (i1) savings associations are required to determine the fair market value and to review the book value of their
PMSRs at least quarterly and to obtain an independent valuation of PMSRs annually, (ii1) savings associations that desire
to include PMSRs in regulatory capital may not carry them at a book value under GAAP that exceeds the discounted
value of their future net income stream and (iv) for purposes of calculating regulatory capital, the amount of PMSRs
reported as balance sheet assets should amount to the lesser of 90% of their fair market value, 90% of their original
purchase price or 100% of their remaining unamortized book value. At September 30, 2003, the Bank had PMSRs
totaling $197,600.

A savings association is allowed to include both core capital and supplementary capital in the calculation of its
total capital for purposes of the risk-based capital requirements, provided that the amount of supplementary capital does
not exceed the savings association's core capital. Supplementary capital generally consists of hybrid capital instruments;
perpetual preferred stock which is not eligible to be included as core capital; subordinated debt and intermediate-term
preferred stock; and, subject to limitations, general allowances for loan losses. Assets are adjusted under the risk-based
guidelines to take into account different risk characteristics, with the categories ranging from 0% (requiring no additional
capital) for assets such as cash to 100% for repossessed assets or loans more than 90 days past due. Single-family
residential real estate Joans which are not past-due or non-performing and which have been made in accordance with
prudent underwriting standards are assigned a 50% level in the risk-weighing system, as are certain privately-issued
mortgage-backed securities representing indirect ownership of such loans. Off-balance sheet items also are adjusted to
take into account certain risk characteristics.

The OTS amended its risk-based capital requirements that would require institutions with an “above normal” level
of interest rate risk to maintain additional capital. A savings association is considered to have a “normal” level of interest
rate risk if the decline in the market value of its portfolio equity after an immediate 200 basis point increase or decrease
in market interest rates (whichever leads to the greater decline) is less than two percent of the current estimated market
value of its assets. The market value of portfolio equity is defined as the net present value of expected cash inflows and
outflows from an association’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items. The amount of additional capital, that an
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institution with an above normal interest rate risk is required to maintain (the "interest rate risk component”) equals one-
half of the dollar amount by which its measured interest rate risk exceeds the normal level of interest rate risk. The
interest rate risk component is in addition to the capital otherwise required to satisfy the risk-based capital requirement.
Implementation of this component has been postponed by the OTS. The final rule was to be effective as of January 1,
1994, subject however to a three quarter lag time in implementation. However, because of continuing delays by the OTS,
the interest rate risk component has never been operative.

At September 30, 2003, the Bank exceeded all of its regulatory capital requirements, with tangible, core and
risk-based capital ratios of 8.0%, 8.0%, and 15.0%, respectively. See Note 11 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements included set forth in Item 8 hereof.

The OTS and the FDIC generally are authorized to take enforcement action against a savings association that fails
to meet its capital requirements, which action may include restrictions on operations and banking activities, the
imposition of a capital directive, a cease-and-desist order, civil money penalties or harsher measures such as the
appointment of a receiver or conservator or a forced merger into another institution. In addition, under current regulatory
policy, an association that fails to meet its capital requirements is prohibited from paying any dividends.
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Prompt Corrective Action. Under the prompt corrective action regulations of the OTS, an institution shall be
deemed to be (i) "well capitalized” if it has total risk-based capital of 10% or more, has a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of
6% or more, has a Tier I leverage capital ratio of 5% or more and is not subject to any order or final capital directive to
meet and maintain a specific capital level for any capital measure, (ii) "adequately capitalized" if it has a total risk-based
capital ratio of 8% or more, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio of 4% or more and a Tier I leverage capital ratio of 4% or
more (3% under certain circumstances) and does not meet the definition of "well capitalized,” (iii) "undercapitalized" if it
has a total risk-based capital ratio that is less than 8%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 4% or a Tier I
leverage capital ratio that is less than 4% (3% under certain circumstances), (iv) "significantly undercapitalized” if it has
atotal risk-based capital ratio that is less than 6%, a Tier I risk-based capital ratio that is less than 3% or a Tier 1 leverage
capital ratio that is less than 3%, and (v) "critically undercapitalized" if it has a ratio of tangible equity to total assets that
is equal to or less than 2%. Under specified circumstances, the OTS may reclassify a well capitalized institution as
adequately capitalized and may require an adequately capitalized institution or an undercapitalized institution to comply
with supervisory actions as if it were in the next lower category (except that the FDIC may not reclassify a significantly
undercapitalized institution as critically undercapitalized). At September 30, 2003, the Bank met the requirements of a
"well capitalized” institution under OTS regulations.

Qualified Thrift Lender Test (the “QTL”). A savings association can comply with the QTL test by either meeting
the QTL test set forth in the HOLA and the implementing regulations or qualifying as a domestic building and loan
association as defined in Section 7701(a)(19) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended ("Code™). Currently,
the portion of the QTL test that is based on the HOLA rather than the Code requires that 65% of an institution’s “portfolio
assets” (as defined) consist of certain housing and consumer-related assets on a monthly average basis in nine out of every
12 months. Assets that qualify without limit for inclusion as part of the 65% requirement are loans made to purchase,
refinance, construct, improve or repair domestic residential housing and manufactured housing, home equity loans,
mortgage-backed securities (where the mortgages are secured by domestic residential housing or manufactured housing),
stock issued by the FHLB, and direct or indirect obligations of the FDIC. In addition, small business loans, credit card
loans, student loans and loans for personal, family and household purposes are allowed to be included without limitation
as qualified investments. The following assets, among others, also may be included in meeting the test subject to an
overall limit of 20% of the savings institution’s portfolio assets: 50% of residential mortgage loans originated and sold
within 90 days of origination, 100% loans for personal, family and household purposes (other then credit card loans and
education loans) (limited to 10% of total portfolio assets) and stock issued by FHLMC or FNMA. Portfolio assets
consist of total assets minus the sum of (i) goodwill and other intangible assets, (ii) property used by the savings
institution to conduct its business, and (iii) liquid assets up to 20% of the institution’s total assets.

A savings institution that does not comply with the QTL test must either convert to a bank charter or comply with
certain restrictions on its operations. Upon the expiration of three years from the date the association ceases to be a QTL,
it must cease any activity and not retain any investment not permissible for a national bank and immediately repay any
outstanding FHLB advances (subject to safety and soundness considerations).

At September 30, 2003, approximately 71.6% of the Bank's assets were invested in qualified thrift investments,
which was in excess of the percentage required to qualify the Bank under the QTL test in effect at that time.

OTS regulations govern capital distributions by savings institutions, which include cash dividends, stock
repurchases and other transactions charged to the capital account of a savings institution to make capital distributions. A
savings institution must file an application for OTS approval of the capital distribution if any of the following occur or
would occur as a result of the capital distribution (1) the total capital distributions for the applicable calendar year exceed
the sum of the institution’s net income for that year to date plus the institution’s retained net income for the preceding two
years, (2) the institution would not be at least adequately capitalized following the distribution, (3) the distribution would
violate any applicable statute, regulation, agreement or OTS-imposed condition, or (4) the institution is not eligible for
expedited treatment of its filings. If an application is not required to be filed, savings institutions which are a subsidiary
of a holding company (as well as certain other institutions) must still file a notice with the OTS at least 30 days before the
Board of Directors declares a dividend or approves a capital distribution.
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OTS regulations also prohibit the Bank from declaring or paying any dividends or from repurchasing any of its
stock if, as a result, the regulatory (or total) capital of the Bank would be reduced below the amount required to be
maintained for the liquidation account established by it for certain depositors in connection with its conversion from
mutual to stock form. :

Community Reinvestment. Under the Community Reinvestment Act of 1977, as amended ("CRA"), as
implemented by OTS regulations, a savings association has a continuing and affirmative obligation consistent with its
safe and sound operation to help meet the credit needs of its entire community, including low and moderate income
neighborhoods. The CRA does not establish specific lending requirements or programs for financial institutions nor does
it Jimit an institution's discretion to develop the types of products and services that it believes are best suited to its
particular community, consistent with the CRA. The Bank received a satisfactory CRA rating as a result of its last OTS
evaluation.

Branching by Federal Saving Institutions. OTS policy permits interstate branching to the full extent permitted by
statute (which is essentially unlimited). Generally, federal law prohibits federal savings institutions from establishing,
retaining or operating a branch outside the state in which the federal institution has its home office unless the institution
meets the IRS’ domestic building and loan test (generally, 60% of a thrift’s assets must be housing-related) (“IRS Test”).

The IRS Test requirement does not apply if: (a) the branch(es) result(s) from an emergency acquisition of a troubled
savings institution (however, if the troubled savings institution is acquired by a bank holding company, does not have its
home office in the state of the bank holding company bank subsidiary and does not qualify under the IRS Test, its
branching is limited to the branching laws for state-chartered banks in the state where the savings institution is located);
(b) the law of the state where the branch would be located would permit the branch to be established if the federal savings
institution were chartered by the state in which its home office is located; or (c) the branch was operated lawfully as a
branch under state law prior to the savings institution’s reorganization to a federal charter.

Furthermore, the OTS will evaluate a branching applicant’s record of compliance with the Community
Reinvestment Act of 1977. An unsatisfactory Community Reinvestment Act record may be the basis for denial of a
branching application.

Federal Home Loan Bank System. The Bank is a member of the FHLB of Pittsburgh, which is one of 12 regional
FHLBs that administers the home financing credit function of savings associations. Each FHLB serves as a reserve or
central bank for its members within its assigned region. It is funded primarily from proceeds derived from the sale of
consolidated obligations of the FHLB System. It makes loans to members (i.e., advances) in accordance with policies
and procedures established by the Board of Directors of the FHLB. As of September 30, 2003, the Bank has overnight
borrowings and advances of $133.2 million from the FHLB or 26.4% of its total liabilities. The Bank currently has the
ability to obtain up to $156.9 million additional advances from FHLB of Pittsburgh.

As a member, the Bank is required to purchase and maintain stock in the FHLB of Pittsburgh in an amount equal
to at least 1% of its aggregate unpaid residential mortgage loans, home purchase contracts or similar obligations at the
beginning of each year or 5% of its advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh, whichever is greater. At September 30, 2003,
the Bank had $8.3 million in FHLB stock, which was in compliance with this requirement.

The FHLBs are required to provide funds for the resolution of troubled savings institutions and to contribute to
affordable housing programs through direct loans or interest subsidies on advances targeted for community investment
and low- and moderate-income housing projects. These contributions have adversely affected the level of FHLB
dividends paid and could continue to do so in the future and could also result in the FHLBs imposing higher interest rates
on advances to members. These contributions also could have an adverse effect on the value of FHLB stock in the future.

Federal Reserve System. The Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System ("FRB") requires all depository
institutions to maintain reserves against their transaction accounts (primarily NOW and Super NOW checking accounts)
and non-personal time deposits. At September 30, 2003, the Bank was in compliance with applicable requirements.
However, because required reserves must be maintained in the form of vault cash or a noninterest-bearing account at a
FRB, the effect of this reserve requirement is to reduce an institution’s earning assets.
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Savings institutions are authorized to borrow from a Federal Reserve Bank “discount window,” but FRB
regulations require savings banks to exhaust other reasonable alternative sources of funds, including FHLB advances,
before borrowing from a Federal Reserve Bank.

Safety and Soundness Guidelines. The OTS and the other federal banking agencies have established guidelines for
safety and soundness, addressing operational and managerial, as well as compensation matters for insured financial
institutions. Institutions failing to meet these standards are required to submit compliance plans to their appropriate
federal regulators. The OTS and the other agencies have also established guidelines regarding asset quality and earnings
standards for insured institutions.

Federal and State Taxation

General. The Company and the Bank are subject to the corporate tax provisions of the Code, as well as certain
additional provisions of the Code which apply to thrift and other types of financial institutions. The following discussion
of tax matters is intended only as a summary and does not purport to be a comprehensive description of the tax rules
applicable to the Company and the Bank.

Fiscal Year. The Company and the Bank and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return on a
fiscal year basis ending September 30.

Method of Accounting. The Bank maintains its books and records for federal income tax purposes using the
accrual method of accounting. The accrual method of accounting generally requires that items of income be recognized
when all events have occurred that establish the right to receive the income and the amount of income can be determined
with reasonable accuracy, and that items of expense be deducted at the later of (i) the time when all events have occurred
that establish the liability to pay the expense and the amount of such liability can be determined with reasonable accuracy
or (ii) the time when economic performance with respect to the item of expense has occurred.

Bad Debt Reserves. The Bank is permitted to establish reserves for bad debts and to make annual additions
thereto which qualify as deductions from taxable income. The Company, as of October 1, 1996, changed its method of
computing reserves for bad debts to the experience method (the "Experience Method"). The bad debt deduction
allowable under this method is available to small banks with assets less than $500 million. Beginning October 1, 2001,
the Company changed its method of computing reserves for bad debts to the specific charge-off method. The bad debt
deduction allowable under this method is available to large banks with assets greater than $500 million. Generally, this
method allows the Company to deduct an annual addition to the reserve for bad debts equal to it its net charge-offs.

The Bank treated such change as a change in a method of accounting determined solely with respect to the .
"applicable excess reserves” of the institution. The amount of applicable excess reserves is taken into account ratably
over a six taxable-year period, beginning with the first taxable year beginning after December 31, 1995. For financial
reporting purposes, the Company has not incurred any additional tax expense. Amounts that had been previously
deferred will be reversed for financial reporting purposes and will be included in the income tax return of the Company,
increasing income tax payable. The change from the experience method to the specific charge-off method in the current
year did not result in a recapture of bad debt reserves for tax purposes.

Prior to the Small Business Protection Act of 1996, bad debt reserves created prior to January 1, 1988 were
subject to recapture into taxable income if the Bank failed to meet certain thrift asset and definitional tests, New federal
legislation eliminated these thrift-related recapture rules. However, to the extent that the Bank makes “non-dividend
distributions” that are considered as made (i) from the reserve for losses on qualifying real property loans or (ii) from the
supplemental reserve for losses on loans, then an amount based on the amount distributed will be included in its taxable
income. Non-dividend distributions include distributions in excess of the Bank’s current and accumulated earnings and
profits, distributions in redemption of stock, and distributions in partial or complete liquidation. Dividends paid out of
the Bank’s current or accumulated earnings and profits, as calculated for federal income tax purposes, will not be
considered to result in a distribution from our bad debt reserve. As a result, any dividends that would reduce amounts
appropriated to bad debt reserve and deducted for federal income tax purposes would create a tax liability for the Bank.
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Minimum Tax. The Code imposes an alternative minimum tax at a rate of 20% on a base of regular taxable
income plus certain tax preferences ("alternative minimum taxable income” or "AMTI"). The alternative minimum tax is
payable to the extent such AMTT is in excess of an exemption amount. The Code provides that an item of tax preference
is the excess of the bad debt deduction allowable for a taxable year pursuant to the percentage of taxable income method
over the amount allowable under the experience method. The other items of tax preference that constitute AMTI include
(a) tax-exempt interest on newly-issued (generally, issued on or after August 8, 1986) private activity bonds other than
certain qualified bonds and (b) for taxable years beginning after 1989, 75% of the excess (if any) of (i) adjusted current
earnings as defined in the Code, over (ii) AMTI (determined without regard to this preference and prior to reduction by
net operating losses). Net operating losses can offset no more than 90% of AMTI. Certain payments of alternative
minimum tax may be used as credits against regular tax habilities in future years.

Audit by IRS. The Bank's consolidated federal income tax returns for taxable years through September 30, 1998
have been closed for the purpose of examination by the IRS.

State Taxation

The Company and the Bank’s subsidiaries are subject to the Pennsylvania Corporate Net Income Tax and Capital
Stock and Franchise Tax. The Corporate Net Income Tax rate for fiscal 2003 is 9.99% and is imposed on the Company's
unconsolidated taxable income for federal purposes with certain adjustments. In general, the Capital Stock and Franchise
Tax is a property tax imposed at the rate of 1.1% of a corporation's capital stock value, which is determined in
accordance with a fixed formula.

The Bank is taxed under the Pennsylvania Mutual Thrift Institutions Tax Act (the ("MTIT"), as amended to
include thrift institutions having capital stock. Pursuant to the MTIT, the Bank's tax rate is 11.5%. The MTIT exempts
the Bank from all other taxes imposed by the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania for state income tax purposes and from ail
local taxation imposed by political subdivisions, except taxes on real estate and real estate transfers. The MTIT is a tax
upon net earnings, determined in accordance with GAAP with certain adjustments. The MTIT, in computing GAAP
income, allows for the deduction of interest earned on state and federal securities, while disallowing a percentage of a
thrift's interest expense deduction in the proportion of interest income on those securities to the overall interest income of
the Bank. Net operating losses, if any, thereafter can be carried forward three years for MTIT purposes.
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Item 2. Properties.

At September 30, 2003, the Bank conducted business from its executive offices located in Media, Pennsylvania
and six full-service offices located in Delaware and Chester Counties, Pennsylvania. See also Note 7 of the Notes to-
Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item 8 hereof.

The following table sets forth certain information with respect to the Bank's offices at September 30, 2003. -

Net Book Value Amount of
Description/Address Leased/Owned of Property Deposits

(Dollar in thousands)
Executive Offices:

22 West State Street

Media, Pennsylvania 19063 Owned"” $1,223 ©°$103,141
Branch Offices:

3218 Edgmont Avenue

Brookhaven, Pennsylvania 19015 Owned 400 82,002

Routes 1 and 100

Chadds Ford, Pennsylvania 19318 - Leased® 63 : 28,883
23 East Fifth Street
Chester, Pennsylvania 19013 - Leased” 85 26,984

31 Baltimore Pike

Chester Heights, Pennsylvania 19017 Leased? 588 42,406
Route 82 and 926
Kennett Square, Pennsylvania 19348 " Leased® 34 - 15463
330 Dartmouth Avenue
Swarthmore, Pennsylvania 19081 Owned —2 —63.726
m Also a branch office.
@ Lease expiration date is September 30, 2005. The Bank has one five-year renewal option.
&) Lease expiration date is December 31, 2005. The Bank has one ten-year renewal option.
o Lease expiration date is December 31, 2028. The Bank has options to cancel on the 15*, 20"
and 25" year of the lease.
5) Lease expiration date is September 30, 2006. The Bank has three five-year renewal options.

The bank exercised its option to move the branch office to a new leased facility that is within a
short distance away.
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Item 3. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is involved in routine legal proceedings occurring in the ordinary course of business which, in the
aggregate, are believed by management to be immaterial to the financial condition of the Company.

In October 2002, the Bank was served with a Demand for Arbitration from Impac Funding Corp. before the
American Arbitration Association. The arbitration proceedings are captioned In the Matter of Arbitration between Impac
Funding Corp. and First Keystone Federal Savings Bank, American Arbitration Association, Arbitration No. 73-148-
00498-02-JUBA. In its arbitration demand, Impac asserted breach of contract claims relating to its purchase of five
residential mortgage loans. Impac Funding is claiming damages of $182,000 plus attorney fees. The Bank submitted
their response to the arbitration demand on November 20, 2002. The parties have agreed to settle the claims for a
payment by the Bank of $45,000.

Item4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders.

Not applicable.

PARTIL
Item 5. Market for Registrant's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters.

On January 25, 1995 the conversion and reorganization of the Bank and its mutual holding company parent was
completed. In connection with the consummation of the Conversion, the Holding Company issued 2,720,000 shares of -
common stock. As of September 30, 2003, there were 1,925,337 shares of common stock outstanding. As of September
16, 2003, the Holding Company had 415 stockholders of record not including the number of persons or entities holding
stock in nominee or street name through various brokers and banks.

The following table sets forth the high and low closing stock prices of the Holding Company's common stock as
reported by the Nasdaq Stock Market under the symbol "FKFS" during the periods presented. Price information appears
in a major newspaper under the symbol "FstKeyst".

Year Ended
September 30, 2003 September 30, 2002
High Low High Low
First Quarter $16.45 $13.80 $14.00 $13.31
Second Quarter $21.23 $16.11 $15.32 $14.00
Third Quarter $23.74 $21.16 $18.62 $15.19
Fourth Quarter $26.50  $21.90 $18.87 $14.45
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The following schedule summarizes the cash dividends per share of common stock paid by the Holding Company
during the periods indicated.

Year Ended
September 30, 2003 September 30, 2002
First Quarter $0.09 $0.08
Second Quarter 0.10 0.09
Third Quarter » © 0.10 0.09
Fourth Quarter 0.10 0.09

On November 12, 2003, the Board of Directors declared a quarterly cash dividend of $0.11 per share of
Common Stock, payable on January 2, 2004, to stockholders of record at the close of business on December 16,

2003.

See "Liquidity, Capital Resources and Commitments” set forth in Item 7 hereof and Notes 11 of the "Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements” set forth in Item 8 hereof for discussion of restrictions on the Holding
Company's ability to pay dividends.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data.

The selected consolidated financial and other data of First Keystone Financial, Inc. set forth below does
not purport to be complete and should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by, the more
detailed information, including the Consolidated Financial Statements and related Notes, appearing elsewhere
herein.

At or For the Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Selected Financial Data:
Total assets $558,667  $518,346 $489,050 $463,463 $450,126
Loans receivable, net 286,421 288,776 247,664 230,686 226,375
Mortgage-related securities held to maturity 3,487 8,855 11,454 13,056 14,497
Investment securities held to maturity 6,315 -- -- 10,000 16,532
Assets held for sale:

Mortgage-related securities 124,656 85,674 117,608 96,257 113,046

Investment securiiies 77,700 80,624 62,564 42,215 44 315

Loans 4,498 501 225 3,099 1,792
Real estate owned 1.420 248 887 947 297
Deposits - 362,605 330,765 311,601 272,562 260,826
Borrowings 136,272 126,384 126,234 142,902 142,437
Trust preferred securities 20,843 20,880 16,200 16,200 16,200
Stockholders’ equity 32,388 32,795 30,621 26,569 23,904
Non-performing assets 2,976 5,386 3,189 3,462 3,477
Selected Operations Data:
Interest income $ 27,212 % 30,121 $ 31,860 $ 31,068 $ 28,694
Interest expense 14,336 16,540 20,344 19,231 16,956
Net interest income 12,876 13,581 11,516 11,837 11,738
Provision for loan losses 715 540 540 420 259
Net interest income

after provision for loan losses 12,161 13,041 10,976 11,417 11,479
Service charges and other fees 1,013 1,000 952 941 934
Net gain (loss) on sales of interest-earning

assets 1,010 415 174 (680) 616
Other non-interest income 1,223 808 788 1,013 350
Non-interest expense 12,015 12,090 9.960 9,849 9,614
Income before income taxes 3,392 3,174 2,930 2,842 3,765
Income tax expense 653 448 459 480 917 J
Net income $ 2739 § 2726 §_ 2471 § 2362 5 _2.848
Per Share Data:
Basic earnings per share $1.44 $1.42 $1.22 $1.14 $1.40
Diluted earnings per share 1.35 1.34 1.18 1.11 1.32
Cash dividends per share 0.40 0.36 0.32 0.28 0.24
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At or For the Year Ended September 30,

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)
Selected Operating Ratios: " _
Average yield earned on interest-eamning assets 5.48% 6.42% 7.25% 7.47% 7.15%
Average rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities 3.02 3.70 4.83 4.79 4.49
Average interest rate spread ) 2.46 2.72 242 2.68 2.65
Net interest margin 2.64 295 2.68 291 2.98
Ratio of interest-earning assets to interest-
_ bearing liabilities 106.06 106.54 105.87 104.91 107.91
 Efficiency ratio @ 74.52 76.50 74.16 75.12 70.49
an-imerest expense as a percent
of average assets 2.25 2.41 2.11 2.20 2.26
Retumn on average assets 0.51 0.54 0.52 0.53 0.67
Return on average equity 8.39 8.77 8.42 9.96 11.18
Ratio of average equity to average assets 6.12 6.17 6.22 5.29 5.99
_ Full-service offices at end of period 7 7 © 7 7 6
Asset Quality Ratios:*
Non-performing loans as a
percent of gross loans receivable 0.53% 1.76% 0.92% 1.07% 1.39%
Non-performing assets as a
percent of total assets 0.53 1.04 0.65 0.75 0.77
Allowance for loan losses as a
percent of gross loans receivable 0.68 0.81 0.87 0.86 0.84
Allowance for loan losses as a :
percent of non-performing loans 127.63 45.89 94.74 80.28 60.63
Net Joans charged-off to average
loans receivable 0.37 0.13 0.16 0.14 0.03
'Capital Ratios:®
Tangible capital ratio L 7.98% 8.07% 7.76% 8.32% 8.17%
Core capital ratio 7.98 8.07 7.76 8.32 8.17
Risk-based capital ratio 14.97 16.17 16.81 17.70 18.80

D Adjusted for the effects of tax-free investments. See presentation of reconciliation of tax-free investments in Management’s
Discussion and Analysis — “Average Balances, Net Interest Income and Yield Earned and Rates Paid.”

@ Reflects non-interest expense as a percent of the aggregate of net interest income and non-interest income.

) Asset Quality Ratios and Capital Ratios are end of period ratios except for the ratio of loan charge-offs to average loans. With the
exception of end of period ratios, all ratios are based on average daily balances during the indicated periods. Gross loans receivable
are net of loans in process.

* Regulatory capital ratios of the Company’s wholly owned subsidiary, First Keystone Bank.
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Item7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operation.

General

First Keystone Financial, Inc. (the “Company”) is the holding company for its wholly owned subsidiary, First
Keystone Bank (the “Bank”). For purposes of this discussion, references to the Company will include its whoily owned
subsidiaries, unless otherwise indicated. The Company is a community-oriented banking organization that focuses on
providing customer and business services within its primary market area, consisting primarily of Delaware and Chester
counties in the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Company’s consolidated financial statements
presented in Item 15 of this Annual Report on Form 10-K. The primary asset of the Company is its investment in the
Bank and, accordingly, the discussion below with respect to results of operations relates primarily to the operations of the
Bank.

The Company’s results of operations depend primarily on its net interest income which is the difference between
interest income on interest-earning assets, which principally consist of loans, mortgage-related securities and investment
securities, and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities, which principally consist of deposits and FHLB advances.
The Company’s results of operations also are affected by the provision for loan losses (the amount of which reflects
management’s assessment of the known and inherent losses in its loan portfolio that are both probable and reasonably
estimable), the level of its non-interest income, including service charges and other fees as well as gains and losses from
the sale of certain assets, the level of its operating expenses, and income tax expense.

Critical Account Policies

Accounting policies involving significant judgments and assumptions by management, which have, or could have,
a material impact on the carrying value of certain assets or comprehensive income, are considered critical accounting
policies. In management’s opinion, the most critical accounting policy affecting the Company’s financial statements is the
evaluation of the allowance for loan losses. The Company maintains an allowance for loan loss at a level management
believes is sufficient to provide for known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio. The determination of the allowance
for loan losses involves significant judgment and assumptions by management which may have a material impact on the
carrying value of net loans and potentially on the net income we recognize from period to period. Accordingly, there is
likelihood that materially different amounts would be reported under different, but reasonably plausible conditions or
assumptions. For a description of the methods the Company uses to determine the Company’s allowance for loan losses,
see “Results of Operations - Provisions for Loan Losses.”

Asset and Liability Management

The principal objectives of the Company’s asset and liability management are to (1) evaluate the interest rate risk
existing in certain assets and liabilities, (2) determine the appropriate level of risk given the Company’s business focus,
operating environment, capital and liquidity requirements and performance objectives, (3) establish prudent asset and
liability compositions, and (4) manage the assessed risk consistent with Board approved guidelines. Through asset and
liability management, the Company seeks to reduce both the vulnerability and volatility of its operations to changes in
interest rates and to manage the ratio of interest-rate sensitive assets to interest-rate sensitive liabilities within specified
maturities or repricing periods. The Company’s actions in this regard are taken under the guidance of the Asset/Liability
Committee (“ALCO”), which is chaired by the Chief Financial Officer and comprised of members of the Company’s
senior management. The ALCO meets no less than quarterly to review, among other things, liquidity and cash flow needs,
current market conditions and the interest rate environment, the sensitivity to changes in interest rates of the Company’s
assets and liabilities, the historical and market values of assets and liabilities, unrealized gains and losses, and the
repricing and maturity characteristics of loans, investment securities, deposits and borrowings. The ALCO reports to the
Company’s Board of Directors no less than once a quarter. In addition, management reviews at least weekly the pricing
of the Company’s commercial loans and customer deposits. The pricing of residential loans including originated for sale
in the secondary market is reviewed daily.
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The Company’s primary asset/liability monitoring tools consist of various asset/liability simulation models which
are prepared on a quarterly basis. The models are designed to capture the dynamics of the balance sheet as well as rate
and spread movements and to quantify variations in net interest income under different interest rate scenarios.

One of the models consists of an analysis of the extent to which assets and liabilities are interest rate sensitive and
measures an institution’s interest rate sensitivity gap. An asset or liability is said to be interest rate sensitive within a
specific time period if it will mature or reprice within that time period. An institution’s interest rate sensitivity gap is
defined as the difference between interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities maturing or repricing within a
given time period. A gap is considered positive when the amount of interest rate sensitive assets exceeds the amount of
interest rate sensitive liabilities and is considered negative when the amount of interest rate sensitive liabilities exceeds
interest rate sensitive assets. During a period of falling interest rates, a negative gap would tend to result in an increase in
net interest income, while a positive gap would tend to result in a decline in net interest income. Conversely, during a
period of rising interest rates, a negative gap would tend to result in a decline in net interest income, while a positive gap
would tend to result in an increase in net interest income. :

For purposes of the gap table, annual prepayment assumptions range from 6% to 40% for fixed-rate mortgage
loans and mortgage-related securities and 5% to 15% for adjustable-rate mortgage loans and mortgage-related securities.
Passbook and statement savings accounts are assumed to decay at a rate of 14.0% per year. Money market deposit
accounts (“MMDA?”) are assumed to decay at a rate of 25% per year. Negotiable order of withdrawal (“NOW”") accounts
are assumed to decay at a rate of 20% per year. '

The Bank’s passbook, statement savings, MMDA and NOW accounts are generally subject to immediate
withdrawal. However, management considers a portion of these deposits to be core deposits {which consists of passbook,
statement saving, MMDA and NOW accounts) having significantly longer effective maturities based upon the Bank’s
experience in retaining such deposits in changing interest rate environments. Borrowed funds are included in the period in
which they can be called or when they mature.

Management believes that the assumptions used to evaluate the vulnerability of the Bank’s operations to changes
in interest rates are considered reasonable. However, certain shortcomings are inherent in the method of analysis
presented in the table below. For example, although certain assets and liabilities may have similar maturities or periods
to repricing, they may react in different degrees to changes in market interest rates, while interest rates on other types may
lag behind changes in market rates. Additionally, certain assets, such as adjustable-rate loans, have features which restrict
changes in market rates both on a short-term and over the life of the asset. Further, in the event of a change in interest
rates, prepayments and early withdrawal levels would likely deviate significantly from those assumed in calculating the
table.
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The following table summarizes the anticipated maturities or repricing of the Company’s interest-earning assets
and interest-bearing liabilities as of September 30, 2003 based on the information and assumptions set forth above.

More Than More Than

Within Six to One Year to Three
Six Twelve Three Years to Over Five
Months Months Years Five Years Years Total
(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets: .
Loans receivable, net'” $ 79,161 $25,780 ' 84,739 $37420  $ 57,765  $284,865
Mortgage-related securities 31,271 23,023 48,345 22,435 3,069 128,143
Loans held for sale . 4,498 - - - - 4,498
Investment securities” : - 19,401 4,580 5,374 19,585 43369 - 92,309
Interest-earning deposits 10,751 = - = - 10,751
Total interest-earning assets $145.082 $53.383 $138,458 79,440 3104203  $520.566
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits - $104,679 $55,765 $115,365 $73,331 $ 13454  $362,594
Borrowed funds 110,684 = 25,000 259 329 136272 -
Total interest-bearing liabilities $215,363 355,765 $140,365 $7359 $ 13783  $498.866
Excess (deficiency) of interest-earning assets
over interest-bearing liabilities 3(70.281) - 5.(2.382) 3 (1,907) $ 5.850 $.90420 § 21700

Cumulative excess (deficiency) of interest-
earning assets over interest-bearing liabilities $(70.28D)  $(72.663) $(74.570) $(68.720) $ 21,700
Cumulative excess (deficiency) of ' o
interest-earning assets over
interest-bearing liabilities as a : ' .
percentage of total assets (12.58)% U3.01)% (13.35)% (12,30)% 3,88%

«y  Balances have been reduced for non-accruing loans, which amounted to $1.6 million at September 30, 2003.
@  Balance includes Federal Home Loan Bank stock.

Although an analysis of the interest rate sensitivity gap measure may be useful, it is limited in its ability to predict
trends in future earnings. It makes no presumptions about changes in prepayment tendencies, deposit or loan maturity
preferences or repricing time lags that may occur in response to a change in the interest rate environment. As a
consequence, the Company also utilizes an analysis of the market value of portfolio equity, which addresses the estimated
change in the value of the Bank’s equity arising from movements in interest rates. The market value of portfolio equity is
estimated by valuing the Bank’s assets and liabilities under different interest rate scenarios. The extent to which assets
gain or lose value in relation to gains or losses of liabilities as interest rates increase or decrease determines the
appreciation or depreciation in equity on a market value basis. Market value analysis is intended to evaluate the impact of
immediate and sustained shifts of the current yield curve upon the market value of the Bank’s current balance sheet.

The Company utilizes reports prepared by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”) to measure interest rate risk.
Using data submitted by the Bank, the OTS performs scenario analysis to estimate the net portfolio value ("NPV") of the
Bank over a variety of interest rate scenarios. The NPV is defined as the present value of expected cash flows from
existing assets less the present value of expected cash flows from existing liabilities plus the present value of net expected
cash inflows from existing off-balance sheet contracts.
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The table below sets forth the Bank’s NPV assuming an immediate change in interest rates of plus and minus 100,
200 and 300 basis points. Due to the low prevailing interest rate environment, the OTS did not provide a calculation for
the minus 200 and minus 300 basis point change in rates. Dollar amounts are expressed in thousands as of September 30,
2003. ‘

Net Portfolio Value

Net Portfolio Value as a % of Assets
Changes in
Rates in Basis Dollar Percentage NPV ‘
Points Amount Change Change Ratio Change
300 $25,819 $(21,30D) (45)% 4.83% (341) bp

200 34,002 (13,118) (28) 6.22 (202)
100 41,322 (5,798) (12) 7.38 - (86)

0 47,120 - -- 8.24 -
(100) 46,000 (1,120) 2) 7.95 . (29)
(200) N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
(300) N/A - N/A N/A N/A N/A

As is the case with interest rate sensitivity gap, certain shortcomings are inherent in the methodology used in the
above interest rate risk measurements. Modeling changes in NPV require the making of certain assumptions which may
or may not reflect the manner in which actual yields and costs respond to changes in market interest rates. In this regard,
the NPV model presented assumes that the composition of the Bank’s interest sensitive assets and liabilities existing at
the beginning of a period remains constant over the period being measured and also assumes that a particular change in
interest rates is reflected uniformly across the yield curve regardless of the duration to maturity or repricing of specific
assets and liabilities. Although the NPV measurements and net interest income models provide an indication of the
Bank’s interest rate risk exposure at a particular point in time, such measurements are not intended to and do not provide
a precise forecast of the effect of changes in market interest rates on the Bank’s net interest income and may differ from
actual results.

The Company is aware of its interest rate risk exposure in the event of rapidly rising rates. Due to the Company’s
recognition of the need to control interest rate exposure, the Company’s current policy is to sell new 30-year fixed-rate
single-family residential mortgage loans into the secondary market. In addition, in recent years, the Company has
emphasized the origination of construction and land, multi-family and commercial real estate and consumer loans which
generally have either adjustable interest rates and/or shorter contractual terms than single-family residential loans. The
Company plans to continue these lending strategies.

Derivative financial instruments include futures, forwards, interest rate swaps, option contracts, and other financial
instruments with similar characteristics. The Company currently does not enter into futures, forwards, swaps or options.
However, the Company is party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to
meet the financing needs of our customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit. These
instruments involve, to varying degrees, elements of credit and interest rate risk in excess of the amount recognized in the
consolidated statements of financial condition. Commitments generally have fixed expiration dates and may require
additional collateral from the borrower if deemed necessary. Commitments to extend credit are not recorded as an asset
or liability until the instruments are exercised.

The Company is subject-to certain market risks and interest rate risks from thie time a commitment is issued to
originate new loans. In an effort to protect the Company against adverse interest rate movements, at the time an
application is taken for a fixed-rate loan, the Company typically enters into an agreement to sell the loan, or aloan within
the same interest-rate range, into the secondary market. This is known as a "matched sale” approach and reduces interest-
rate risk with respect to these loans. There is still some portion of these loans which may never close for various reasons.
However, the agencies the Company sells loans to permit some flexibility in delivering loan product to them. In certain
instances, if the loans delivered for sale do not match the characteristics outlined in the forward sale commitments, the
gain on sale may be reduced.

45




Changes in Financial Condition

General. Tota] assets of the Company increased by $40.3 million, or 7.8%, from $518.3 million at September 29,
2002 to $558.7 million at September 30, 2003. The increase primarily reflected growth of mortgage-related securities
available for sale and to a lesser extent, investment securities held to maturity, partially offset by a decrease in mortgage-
related securities held to maturity and investment securities available for sale. The asset growth was primarily funded by
increases in customer deposits and advances from the FHLB.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents, which consists of cash on hand and deposited in other
banks in interest-earning and non-interest-earning accounts, amounted to $21.1 million and $24.6 million at September
30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The decrease in cash and cash equivalents was due to a $9.1 million, or 45.9%, decrease
in interest-bearing depaosits as a result of the Company investing the cash into interest-earning assets offset in part by a
$5.7 million increase in cash due to higher reserve requirements at the Federal Reserve Bank. Cash and cash equivalents
are available as a source of funds for originations of new loans and purchases of additional securities investments.

Investment Securities Held to Maturity and Investment Securities Available for Sale. Total investment
securities increased by $3.4 million, or 4.2%, from $80.6 million at September 30, 2002 to $84.0 million at September
30, 2003. The increase in investment securities resulted from reinvesting the cash flows from the high level of
prepayments from the loan and investment portfolios and the proceeds from the sale of certain investment securities.

Mortgage-Related Securities Held to Maturity and Mortgage-Related Securities Available For Sale. Mortgage-
related securities held to maturity and mortgage-related securities available for sale increased in the aggregate by $33.6
million, or 35.6%, tc $128.1 million at September 30, 2003 compared to $94.5 million at September 30, 2002. The
significant increase in morigage-related securities was part of the Company’s strategy to increase this portfolio due to
high levels of cash flows being experienced by the loan portfolio coinciding with the limited demand for originations of
new Joans at interest rates deemed acceptable to the Company.

Loans Held for Sale. At September 30, 2003, $4.5 million of fixed-rate single-family residential loans were
classified as held for sale compared to $501,000 at September 30, 2002. The increase of $4.0 million is related to
increased secondary market activity as a result of the low interest rate environment. During fiscal year 2003, the
Company originated $31.0 million and sold $27.0 million of such loans. Subsequent to fiscal year end, management
reevaluated its asset liability position and determined to retain in its loan portfolio the majority of the loans held for sale
at September 30, 2003. '

Loans Receivable, Net. Total loans receivable, net, decreased slightly to $286.4 million at September 30, 2003
compared to $288.8 million at September 30, 2002. The decrease was primarily due to a $7.7 million, or 4.4%, decrease
in single-family residential loans partially offset by a $5.9 million, or 21.3%, increase in home equity loans and lines of
credit. Although the Company had significant loan originations in single-family residential loans during fiscal 2003, total
loans decreased due to the accelerated prepayments experienced by the portfolio and the Company’s decision to sell 30-
year fixed-rate mortgages bearing low interest rates into the secondary market in order to minimize interest rate risk in a
rising interest rate environment.

Non-Performing Assets. The Company’s total non-performing loans and real estate owned decreased to $3.0
million, or 0.53% of 1otal assets, at September 30, 2003 compared to $5.4 mitlion, or 1.04% of total assets, at the end of
the prior fiscal year. The decrease in non-performing assets in fiscal 2003 was primarily attributable to a $1.3 million
commercial real estate loan returning to current status and a $549,000 decrease in non-accrual single-family residential
loans.

Deposits. Deposits increased by $31.8 million, or 9.6%, from $330.8 million at September 30, 2002 to $362.6
million at September 30, 2003. This increase was primarily due to a $29.6 million, or 19.2%, increase in the Company’s
core accounts (non-interest-bearing, NOW, passbook, and MMDA accounts) as a result of the Company’s continued
emphasis on increasing both the amount and the percentage of the deposit portfolio accounted for by these deposit
accounts. Certificates of deposit increased by $2.2 million, or 1.3%, to $178.5 million in the current fiscal year.
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Borrowings. The Company’s total borrowings increased to $136.3 million at September 30, 2003 from $126.4
million at September 30, 2002 as the Company primarily used deposit inflows in fiscal 2003 to fund asset growth. The
increase was principally due to a $6.8 million increase in FHLB overnight borrowings and to a lesser extent, $2.9 million
" increase in repurchase agreements. Borrowings had a weighted average interest rate of 5.20% at September 30, 2003.
See Note 9 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for further information.

Equity. At September 30, 2003, total stockholders equity was $32.4 million, or 5.8% of total assets, compared to
$32.8 million, or 6.3% of total assets, at September 30, 2002. The decrease was due to the cost of repurchasing 136,219
shares of common stock at a weighted average cost of $21.92 per share during fiscal 2003 and the payment of $798,000
in dividends partially offset by net income for the year of $2.7 million.

Average Balances, Net Interest Income and Yields Earned and Rates Paid. The following table sets forth, for the
periods indicated, information regarding (i) the total dollar amount of interest income of the Company from interest-
earning assets and the resultant average yields; (ii) the total dollar amount of interest expense on interest-bearing
liabilities and the resultant average rate; (iii) net interest income; (iv) interest rate spread; and (v) net interest margin.
Information is based on average daily balances during the indicated periods; yields were adjusted for the effects of tax-
free investments using the statutory tax rate.

The adjustment of tax exempt securities to a tax equivalent yield in the table below may be considered to include
non-GAAP financial information. Management believes that it is a standard practice in the banking industry to present net
interest margin, net interest rate spread and net interest income on a fully tax equivalent basis when a significant
proportion of interest-earning assets are tax-free. Therefore, management believes, these measures provide useful
information to investors by allowing them to make peer comparisons. A GAAP reconciliation also is included below.

Year Ended September 30,
Yield/Cost 2003 2002 2001
at Average Average Average
Sept. 30, Average Yield/ Average Yield/  Average Yield/
2003 Balance Interest Cost Balance Interest Cost Balance  Interest Cost

(Dollars in thousands)
Interest-earning assets:

Loans receivable!””? 6.08% $290,357 $18,937 6.52% $267.208 $19,379 7.25% $237419 $18711  7.88%
Mortgage-related securilies"’ 4.37 114,833 4,464 389 113,827 6,441 5.66 130,283 8,605  6.60
Investment securities®” 425 84,038 4,094 4.87 76,826 4,509 5.87 63,545 4,396 6.92
Other interest-earning assets 0.86 14,390 120 0.83 17.946 223 124 14,165 560 395
Total interest-earning assets 523 _503.618 $27.615 548 _475.807 30,552 6.42 445412 $32272 7.25
Non-interest-earning assets 30411 27855 __26,389
Total assets $534.020 $503.662 $471,801
Interest-bearing liabilities: : ‘
Deposits 177 $343,727 $ 7,353 214 $319344 $ 9,599 3.01 $294,731 $ 13,062 4.43
FHLB advances and other borrowings 5.20 131,136 __6.983 5.33 127,264 6,941 5.44 125,988 7282 577
Total interest-bearing liabilities 2.70 474,863 _14.336 3.02 446,608 16,540 3.70 420,719 _ 20344 4.83
Interest rate spread 2.53% =2.46% —2.12% —2482%
Non-interest-bearing liabilities 26,502 25,977 21,744
Total liabilities 501,365 472,585 442,463
Stockholders’ equity 32,664 _ 307 _ 29338
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $534.029 $503.622 $471.801
Net interest-earning assets 3 28.755 : $ 29.199 $ 24,603
Net interest income 13279 514,012 $11.928
Net interest margin"’ —2.64% —2.95% —2.68%
Ratio of average interest-earning assets
to average interest-bearing liabilities 106.06% 106.54% 105.87%

" Includes non-accrual loans.
D Includes assets classified as either available for sale or held for sale.
3 Net interest income divided by interest-earning assets.
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Although management believes that the above mentioned non-GAAP financial measures enhance investor’s
understanding of the Company’s business and performance, these non-GAAP financials measures should not be
considered an alternative to GAAP. ‘The reconciliation of these non-GAAP financials measures from GAAP to non-
GAAP is presented below. ) ‘

(Doilars in thousands) For the Year Ended September 30,
: ‘ ' 2003 2002 2001
Average . Average Average
Interest Yield/Cost Interest Yield/Cost Interest Yield/Cost
Investment securities — nontaxable $ 3,691 439%% $ 4,078 5.31% $ 3984 627%
Tax equivalent adjustments 403 431 412

Investment securities — nontaxable to a

taxable equivalent yield $ 4094 487% $ 4509 587% $4396 6.92%
Net interest income . $12,876 $13,581 : 311,516
Tax equivalent adjustment. 403 431 412
Net interest income, tax equivalent $13.279 : 14,012 $11,928
Net interest rate spread, no tax

adjustment 2.38% 2.63% 2.32%
Net interest margin, no tax adjustment ‘ 2.56% 2.86% 2.59%

Rate/Volume Analysis. The following table describes the extent to which changes in interest rates and changes in
the volume of interest-related assets and liabilities have affected the Company’s interest income and expense during the
periods indicated. For each category of interest-earning asset and interest-bearing liability, information is provided on
changes attributable to (i) changes in volume (change in volume multiplied by prior year rate), (ii) changes in rate
(change in rate multiplied by prior year volume), and (i11) total change in rate and volume. The combined effect of
changes in both rate and volume has been allocated proportionately to the change due to rate and the change due to
volume. The table below has been prepared on a tax-equivalent basis.

Year Ended September 30,

2003 vs. 2002 2002 vs. 2001
Increase (Decrease) Due To Increase (Decrease) Due To
Rate Volume Total Rate Volume Total
- Increase Increase
(Decrease) {Decrease)
Interest-earnings assets: :
Loans receivable!” $(3,156) $2,713 $ (443) $ (1,166) $1.834 $ 668
Mortgage-related securities'” (2,035) 58 (1,977 (1L,150) (1014  (2,164)
Investment securities @ : (926) 510 (416) (299) 412 113
Other interest-earning assets (64) (38) (102) (551) 214 (337
Total interest-earning assets v (6.181) _3.243 = _(2.938) _ (3.166) _ 1446 (1.720)
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Deposits (3,055) 809 (2,246)  (4,677) 1,214 (3,463)
FHLB advances and other borrowings o (146) 187 41 413) 74 (339
Total interest-bearing liabilities (3,201 996 (2,205) _ (5.090) 1,288 (3.802)
Increase (decrease) in net interest income $ (2980 $2.247 $ 733y $ 1924 § 158 § 2082

™ Includes assets classified as either available for sale or held for sale.
@ Total increase (decrease) in investment securities on a nontaxable equivalent basis would be $(388) and $93, resulting in a (decrease) increase
in net interest income of $(705) and $2,065, respectively.
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Results of Operations

General. The Company reported net income of $2.7 million, $2.7 million and $2.5 million for the years ended
September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The $13,000 increase in net income for the year ended September 30, 2003 compared to the year ended September
30, 2002 was primarily due to a $1.0 million, or 46.0%, increase in non-interest income combined with a $75,000, or
0.6%, decrease in non-interest expense partially offset by a $880,000, or 6.7%, decrease in net interest income after
provision for loan losses.

The $255,000 increase in net income for the year ended September 30, 2002 compared to the year ended
September 30, 2001 was primarily due to the $2.1 million, or 17.9%, increase in net interest income combined with a
$309,000, or 16.1%, increase in non-interest income partially offset by a $2.1 million, or 21.3%, increase in non-interest
expense.

Net Interest Income. Net interest income is determined by the interest rate spread (the difference between the
yields earned on interest-earning assets and the rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities) and the relative amounts of
interest-earning assets and interest-bearing liabilities. All percentages are reported on a fully tax-equivalent basis (see the
tables on the prior page for a recalculation of such percentages). The Company’s average interest-rate spread was 2.46%,
2.72% and 2.42% for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002, and 2001, respectively. The Company’s interest-rate
spread was 2.53% at September 30, 2003. The Company’s net interest margin (net interest income as a percentage of
average interest-earning assets) was 2.64%, 2.95% and 2.68% for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively. Due to the historically low interest rate environment existing during fiscal 2003, the interest rate
compression experienced by the Company reflects the effects of the accelerated rate of repayments and prepayments of
loans and mortgage-related securities, requiring the Company to reinvest the resulting proceeds at current lower market
rates of interest without a corresponding decrease in the rates paid on deposits and borrowings. As the refinancing and
prepayment activity comes to an end, management anticipates that the net interest spread and margin will stabilize or
increase slightly during fiscal 2004 providing the Company can maintain its cost of funds at levels substantially similar to
those existing at the end of fiscal 2003.

Net interest income decreased to $12.9 million in fiscal 2003 as compared to $13.6 million in fiscal 2002. The
$705,000, or 5.2%, decrease came as a result of a $2.9 million, or 9.7%, decrease in interest income partially offset by a
$2.2 million, or 13.3%, decrease in interest expense. The decrease in net interest income was primarily due to interest-
earning assets repricing downward due to the prolonged low interest rate environment without a corresponding decrease
in rates paid. :

Net interest income increased to $13.6 million in the year ended September 30, 2002 as compared to $11.5 million
in fiscal 2001. The $2.1 million, or 17.9%, increase was the result of lower short-term interest rates which impacted the
rates paid on the Company’s interest-bearing core deposits and shorter term certificates of deposit by repricing downward
at a greater degree than its interest-earning assets.

Interest Income. The $2.9 million, or 9.7%, decrease in total interest income during the year ended September 30,
2003 as compared to fiscal 2002 was primarily due to a $2.0 million, or 30.7%, decrease in interest income from
mortgage-related securities as a result of a 177 basis point decrease in the yield earned offset, in part, by 2 $1.0 million,
or .9%, increase in the average balance of the mortgage-related securities portfolio. Interest income on loans decreased
$442,000, or 2.3%, due to a 73 basis point decrease in the average yield earned offset partially by a $23.1 million, or
8.7%, increase in the average balance of the loan portfolio. The decline in yield was due to the declining interest rate
environment experienced in fiscal 2003 causing accelerated repayments of loans with the proceeds being reinvested in
lower yielding assets. In addition, the accelerated prepayments of mortgage-related securities resulted in significant
amortization of premiums. Additionally, interest income on investment securities and other interest-earning assets
decreased $490,000, or 11.4%, due to a 141 basis point decrease in the average yield earned offset partially by a $3.7
million, or 3.9%, increase in the average balance.

Total interest income amounted to $30.1 million for the year ended September 30, 2002 compared to $31.9 million
for the year ended September 30, 2001. The decrease in fiscal 2002 was primarily due to a $2.2 million, or 25.1%,
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decrease in interest income from mortgage-related securities as a result of a 94 basis point decrease in the yield earned
combined with a $16.5 million, or 12.6%, decrease in the average balance of the securities portfolic. The decrease was
offset, in part, by an increase in interest income on loans. Interest income on loans increased $668,000, or 3.6%, dueto a
$29.8 million, or 12.5%, increase in the average balance thereof offset, in part, by a 63 basis point decrease in the
average yield earned. The increase in the average balance of loans was due to increases in the amount of commercial real
estate and commercial business loans reflecting the Company’s continued emphasis on expanding its commercial loan
portfolio since such loans generally bear higher rates of interest and have shorter contractual maturities than single-family
residential loans.

Interest Expense. Total interest expense amounted to $14.3 million for the year ended September 30, 2003 as
compared to $16.5 million for fiscal 2002. Total interest expense decreased by $2.2 million, or 13.3%, during the year
ended September 30, 2003 compared to fiscal 2002 due to a $2.2 million decrease in interest expense on deposits
partially offset by a $42,000 increase in interest expense on borrowings. The decrease in interest expense on deposits was
due to a 87 basis point decrease in the average rate paid thereon partially offset by a $24.4 million increase in the average
balance of deposits. The increase in interest expense on borrowings was due to a $3.9 million increase in the average
balance of borrowings offset by a 11 basis point decrease in the average rate paid. Deposits grew due to the Company’s
continued marketing of its core deposit products and was used to fund purchases of investment and mortgage-related
securities. The decrease in the rates paid on deposits and borrowings was due to declining interest rates experienced
during the fiscal year 2003.

Total interest expense decreased by $3.8 million, or 18.7%, during the year ended September 30, 2002 compared
to fiscal 2001 primarily due to a $3.5 million decrease in interest expense on deposits and a $341,000 decrease in interest
expense on borrowings. The decrease in interest expense on deposits was due to a 142 basis point decrease in the average
rate paid offset, in part, by a $24.6 million increase in the average balance of deposits. The decrease in interest expense
on borrowings was due to a 33 basis point decrease in the average rate paid off set by a $1.3 million increase in the
average balance of borrowings. The increased level of deposits was due to the decline in the equities market combined
with the marketing efforts of the Company to attract deposits, particularly core deposits. The deposit inflow was used to
fund loan originations, to purchase investment securities and to repay shorter term borrowings.

Provisions for Loan Losses. Provisions for loan losses are charged to earnings to maintain the total allowance for
loan losses at a level believed by management to cover all known and inherent losses in the Company’s loan portfolio.
Management’s analysis includes consideration of the Company’s histcrical experience, the volume and type of lending
conducted by the Company, the amount of the Company’s classified assets, the status of past due principal and interest
payments, general economic conditions, particularly as they relate to the Company’s primary market area, and other
factors related to the collectibility of the Company’s loan and loans held for sale portfolios. Management of the Company
assesses the allowance for loan losses on a monthly basis and makes provisions for loan losses as deemed necessary in
order to maintain the allowance for loan losses at a level management believes covers all known and inherent losses that
are both probable and reasonably estimable. For the years ended September 30, 2003, the provision for loan loss was
$715,000 as compared to $540,000 for each of fiscal 2002 and 2001. During fiscal 2003, the Company increased its
provision for loan losses as compared to fiscal 2002 primarily due to its assessment of the amount of losses it would incur
with respect to the non-performing commercial real estate loans. At September 30, 2003, the Company’s allowance for
loan losses totaled $2.0 million which amounted to 127.63% of total non-performing loans and .53% of gross loans
receivable. The provision for allowance for loan losses for fiscal 2002 remained at the same level as fiscal 2001 due to
the Company’s re-evaluation of its estimate of losses with respect to its non-conforming loans based on its loss
experience and the reallocation of a portion of the allowance to commercial real estate and commercial business loans
due to the continued increased investment in such loans.

Although management of the Company believes that the Company’s allowance for loan losses was adequate at
September 30, 2003, based on facts and circumstances available to it, there can be no assurance that additions to such
allowance will not be necessary in future periods, which would adversely affect the Company’s results of operations for
such periods, In addition, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically
review the Company’s provision for loan losses and the carrying value of its other non-performing assets based on their
judgments about information available to them at the time of their examination. Such agencies may require the Company
to make additional provisions for estimated loan losses based on judgments different from those of management.
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Non-interest Income. For the year ended September 30, 2003, the Company reported non-interest income of $3.2
million compared to $2.2 million for the year ended September 30, 2003. The primary reason for the $1.0 million, or
46.0%, increase in non-interest income in fiscal 2003 were a $326,000 and $269,000 increases in gain on the sale of
loans and investments and mortgage-related securities, respectively. These increases were the result of the Company’s
strategy to sell certain single-family fixed rate loans and to restructure the securities portfolio in order to benefit in this
low interest rate environment. Gain on the sale of loans was partially offset by the recording of loans held for sale of
loans at its fair value. In addition, due to the overall improvement in the U.S. equities market, the Company experienced a
$303,000 increase in the cash surrender value of certain insurance policies used to fund certain post-retirement benefits.

The $309,000, or 16.1%, increase in non-interest income for the year ended September 30, 2002 as compared to
fiscal 2001 was primarily due to a $279,000 increase in the gain on sale of $7.1 million of investment securities along
with a $48,000 increase in service charges and other fees offset, in part, by a $38,000 decrease in gains on sale of loans
held for sale.

Non-interest Expense. Non-interest expense include salaries and employee benefits, occupancy and equipment

expense, Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC) deposit insurance premiums, professional fees, data processing
expense, advertising and other items.

Non-interest expense decreased $75,000, or 0.6%, for the year ended September 30, 2003 compared to the year
ended September 30, 2002 primarily due to the absence of any litigation expenses which amounted to $570,000 in fiscal
2002 and related to the settlement of a lawsuit in the prior year. In addition, the Company experienced decreases of
$99,000 and $74,000 in professional fees and advertising expenses, respectively, offset, in part by a $562,000 increase in
salaries and employee benefits. Salaries and employee benefits increased primarily due to the increased cost of employee
stock ownership plan resulting from the appreciation of the Company’s 'stock price as well as general compensation
increases and costs of medical and retirement plans.

Non-interest expense increased $2.1 million, or 21.3%, for the year ended September 30, 2002 compared to the
year ended September 30, 2001 and amounted to $12.1 million in fiscal 2002 compared to $10.0 million in fiscal 2001.
The primary reasons for the increase were a $708,000 increase in salaries and employee benefits, a $570,000 expense
related to a settlement of a lawsuit and a $533,000 increase in other operating expense. Salaries and employee benefits
increased primarily due to a $431,000 write-down in the cash surrender value of certain life insurance policies resulting
from the decline in the U.S. equities market as well as general compensation increases and higher costs of employee
benefit plans. With respect to the settlement expense, it related to a lawsuit that was instituted by the purchaser of five
residential mortgage loans from the Bank that alleged that it suffered losses in connection with these loans and that the
Bank was required to either purchase the loans or compensate the purchaser for its alleged losses. Other non-interest
expense increased $533,000 primarily due to a $213,000 expense relating to the workout of three non-performing
commercial real estate loans aggregating $2.4 million combined with increases in service charges and cash loss. In
addition, the increase was attributable to a $51,000 increase in occupancy and equipment expense, a $77,000 increase in
data processing, a $111,000 increase in advertising and a $78,000 increase in minority interest in expense of subsidiaries.

Income Taxes. The Company recognized income tax expense of $653,000, or 19.3%, of pre-tax income, for the
year ended September 30, 2003, compared to $448,000, or 14.1%, of pre-tax income, for the year ended September 30,
2002. The Company recognized income tax expense of $459,000, or 15.7%, of pre-tax income, for fiscal 2001. The
primary reason for the increase in the Company’s effective tax rate for fiscal year 2003 resulted from the reduction in tax-
fee income as well as the increase in income before income taxes. Comparing fiscal years 2002 and 2001, the decrease in
the lower effective tax rate in fiscal 2002 was due to a increase in tax-free income resulting from purchases of tax-exempt
securities and bank owned life insurance as the Company employed various strategies to reduce taxes.
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Liquidity, Capital Resources and Commitments

The Company’s liquidity, represented by cash and cash equivalents, is a product of its operating, investing and
financing activities. The Company’s primary sources of funds are deposits, amortization, prepayments and maturities of
outstanding loans and mortgage-related securities, sales of loans, maturities of investment securities and other short-term
investments, borrowings and funds provided from operations. While scheduled payments from the amortization of loans
and mortgage-related securities and maturing investment securities and short-term investments are relatively predictable
sources of funds, deposit flows and loan and mortgage-related securities prepayments are greatly influenced by general
interest rates, economic conditions and competition. In addition, the Company invests excess funds in overnight deposits
and other short-term interest-earning assets which provide liquidity to meet lending requirements. The Company has the
ability to obtain advances from the FHLB of Pittsburgh through several credit programs with the FHLB in amounts not to
exceed the Bank’s maximum borrowing capacity and subject to certain conditions, including holding a predetermined
amount of FHLB stock as collateral. As an additional source of funds, the Company has access to the Federal Reserve
discount window, but only after it has exhausted its access to the FHLB of Pittsburgh. At September 30, 2003, the
Company had $126.4 million of outstanding advances and $6.8 million of overnight borrowings from the FHLB of
Pittsburgh.

Liquidity management is both a daily and long-term function of business management. Excess liquidity is
generally invested in short-term investments such as overnight deposits. On a longer term basis, the Company maintains a
strategy of investing in various lending products and mortgage-related securities. The Company uses its sources of funds
primarily to meet its ongoing commitments, to pay maturing savings certificates and savings withdrawals, fund loan
commitments and maintain a portfolio of mortgage related and investment securities. At September 30, 2003, the total of
approved loan commitments outstanding amounted to $5.9 million. At the same date, commitments under unused lines of
credit and loans in process on construction loans amounted to an aggregate of $40.8 million. Certificates of deposit
scheduled to mature in one year or less at September 30, 2003 totaled $106.8 million. Based upon its historical
experience, management believes that a significant portion of maturing deposits will remain with the Company.

The Company has not used, and has no intention to use, any significant off-balance sheet financing arrangements
for liquidity purposes. The Company’s primary financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk are limited to loan
servicing for others, its obligations to fund loans to customers pursuant to existing commitments and commitments to
purchase and sell mortgage loans. In addition, the Company has not had, and has no intention to have, any significant
transactions, arrangements or other relationships with any unconsolidated, limited purpose entities that could materially
affect its liquidity or capital resources. The Company has not, and does not intend to, trade in commodity contracts.

The OTS requires that the Bank meet minimum regulatory tangible, core, tier 1 risk-based and total risk based
capital requirements. At September 30, 2003, the Bank exceeded all regulatory capital requirements and was deemed a
well capitalized institution for regulatory purposes. See Note 11 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

The Company’s assets consist primarily of its investment in the Bank and investments in various corporate debt
and equity instruments. Its only material source of income consists of earnings from its investment in the Bank and
interest and dividends earned on other investments. The Company, as a separately incorporated holding company, has no
significant operations other than serving as the sole stockholder of the Bank and paying interest to its subsidiaries, First
Keystone Capital Trust I and II, for junior subordinated debt issued in conjunction with the issuance of trust preferred
securities. See Note 17 to the Consolidated Financial Statements. On an unconsolidated basis, the Company has no paid
employees. The expenses primarily incurred by the Company relate to its reporting obligations under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, related expenses incurred as a publicly traded company, and expenses relating to the issuance of
the trust preferred securities and the junior subordinated debentures issued in connection therewith. Management believes
that the Company has adequate liquidity available to respond to its liquidity demands. Under applicable federal
regulations, the Bank may pay dividends to the Company (as sole stockholder) within certain limits after providing
written notice to or obtaining the approval of the OTS. See Note 11 of the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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Investment Securities

At September 30, 2003, the Company’s investment securities available for sale portfolio, including short-term
investments, were carried at a fair value of $77.7 million and had an amortized cost of $74.1 million. The average credit
quality on the portfolio is AA. The net unrealized gain on its investment assets at September 30, 2003 was $3.6 million,
or 4.9% of the amortized cost basis. The net unrealized gain included gross unrealized gains of $4.6 million and gross
unrealized losses of $1.0 million. '

The Company reviews the securities in our fixed income portfolio on a periodic basis to specifically review
individual securities for any meaningful decline in market value below amortized cost. The analysis addresses all
securities whose fair value is significantly below amortized cost at the time of the analysis, with additional emphasis
placed on securities whose fair value has been below amortized cost for an extended period of time. As part of the
periodic review process, the Company utilizes the expertise of outside professional asset managers who provide an
updated assessment of each issuer’s current credit situation based on recent issuer activities, such as quarterly earnings
announcements or other pertinent financial news for the issuer, recent developments in a particular industry, economic
outlook for a particular industry and rating agency actions.

In addition to issuer-specific financial information and general economic data, the Company also considers the
ability and intent of its operations to hold a particular security to maturity or until the market value of the security
recovers to a level in excess of the carrying value.

Nine securities in portfolio that have been in an unrealized loss position for a substantial period of time. Eight of
these securities have an unrealized loss of less than $480,000 and/or less than 13% of their amortized cost. These eight
securities have an average unrealized loss per security of approximately $29,000 and have fair values at September 30,
2003 that are 87% or more of the amortized cost basis. There is only one security with an unrealized loss in excess of
$500,000 at September 30, 2003 with a market value of $4.5 million and a cost of $5.0 million. The security is an equity
security and is rated AAA. The Company has no current plans to dispose of this security.

For all securities that are in an unrealized loss position for an extended period of time, an evaluation is performed
of the specific events attributable to the decline in the market value of the security. Factors that are considered are the
length of time and extent to which the security’s market value has been below cost as well as the general market
conditions, industry characteristics and the fundamental operating results of the issuer to determine if the decline is due to
changes in interest rates, changes relating to a decline in credit quality of the issuer, or general market conditions. An
additional part of the evaluation is the Company’s intent and ability to hold the security until its market value has
recovered to a level at least equal to the amortized cost. If the security’s unrealized loss is other than temporary, a
realized loss is recognized in the period in which the decline in value is determined to be other than temporary.

Based on our evaluation as of September 30, 2003, the Company determined the declines in market value of
securities of these nine securities were temporary. The Company will continue to review these securities and evaluate the

temporary nature of the impairment on a quarterly basis.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

For discussion of recent accounting proncuncements, see Note 2 of the Consolidated Financial Statements set forth
in Item 8 hereof.
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Impact of Inflation and Changing Prices

The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company and related notes presented herein have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America which require the measurement
of financial position and operating results in terms of historical dollars, without considering changes in the relative
purchasing power of money over time due to inflation.

Unlike most industrial companies, substantially all of the assets and liabilities of a financial institution are
monetary in nature. As a result, interest rates have a more significant impact on a financial institution’s performance than
the effects of general levels of inflation. Interest rates do not necessarily move in the same direction or in the same
magnitude as the prices of goods and services, since such prices are affected by inflation to a larger extent than interest
rates. In the current interest rate environment, liquidity and the maturity structure and repricing characteristics of the
Company’s assets and liabilities are critical to the maintenance of acceptable performance levels.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference to ““Asset and Liability Management” set forth in Item
7 above.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Board of Directors and Stockholders of
First Keystone Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries
Media, Pennsylvania 19063

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial condition of First Keystone
Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of September 30, 2003 and 2002, and the related
consolidated statements of income, stockholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in
the period ended September 30, 2003. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility
of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basts, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
staternents. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, such consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all matenial respects, the
consolidated financial position of First Keystone Financial, Inc. and subsidiaries as of
September 30, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended September 30, 2003 in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

D;/.JQ Ffonche LLP

December 12, 2003

A member firm of .
Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS

Cash and amounts due from depository institutions

Interest-bearing deposits with depository institutions
Total cash and cash equivalents

Investment securities available for sale

Mortgage-related securities available for sale

Loans held for sale

Investment securities held to maturity (approximate fair value of $6,450 at
September 30, 2003)

Mortgage-related securities held to maturity - at amortized cost
(approximate fair value of $3,560 and $9,090 at September 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively)

Loans receivable (net of allowance for loan losses of $1,986 and $2,358
at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively)

Accrued interest receivable

Real estate owned

Federal Home Loan Bank stock at cost

Office properties and equipment, net

Cash surrender value of life insurance

Prepaid expenses and other assets

Total Assets

September 30

2003 2002

$ 10439 § 4,753

10,751 19.870
21,190 24,623
77,700 80,624
124,656 85,674
4,498 501
6,315 --
3,487 8,855

286,421 288,776

2,654 2,971
1,420 248
8,294 6,571
3,427 3,491
15,365 14,362
3,240 1,650

$558.667 3518346

LIABILITIES, MINORITY INTEREST IN SUBSIDIARIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Liabilities:
Deposits
Advances from Federal Home Loan Bank and other borrowings
Accrued interest payable
Advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance
Deferred income taxes
Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Total liabilities
Company-obligated mandatory redeemable preferred securities
of subsidiary trusts holding solely junior subordinated
debentures of the Company
Stockholders’ Equity:
Preferred stock, $.01 par value, 10,000,000 shares authorized; none issued
Common stock, 3.01 par value, 20,000,000 shares authorized; issued
and outstanding: September 30, 2003 and 2002, 1,925,337
and 2,008,611 shares, respectively
Additional paid-in capital
Employee stock ownership plan
Treasury stock at cost: 787,219 and 703,945 shares at September 30, 2003
and 2002, respectively
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Retained earnings-partially restricted

Total stockholders’ equity

Total Liabilities, Minority Interest in Subsidiaries and Stockholders” Equity
See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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$362,605  $ 330,765
136,272 126,384

814 1,000
958 832
581 424

4,206 5.266

505,436 464,671

20,843 20,880
14 14
13,443 13,622
(830) (995)
(11,378) (9,175)
3,069 3,200
28,070 26,129
32,388 32,795

$558.667 $518346




FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(Dollars in thousands, expect per share data)

INTEREST INCOME

Interest on:
Loans
Mortgage-related securities
Investment securities:
Taxable
Tax-exempt
Dividends
Interest-bearing deposits

Total interest income
INTEREST EXPENSE:

Interest on:
Deposits )
Federal Home Loan Bank advances and other borrowings
Total interest expense
Net interest income
Provision for loan losses
Net interest income after provision for loan losses

NON-INTEREST INCOME:

Service charges and other fees

Net gain on sale of:
Investments and mortgage-related securities
Loans held for sale

Increase in cash surrender value

Other income

Total non-interest income
NON-INTEREST EXPENSE:

Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy and equipment
Professional fees
Federal deposit insurance premium
Net cost of operation of other real estate
Data processing
Advertising
Litigation settlement™ _
Minority interest in expense of subsidiaries
Other L
Total non-interest expense
Income before income tax expens
Income tax expense o :
Net income
Earnings per common share:
Basic
Diluted

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended September 30
2003 2002 2001
$ 18,937 $19,379 $18,711

4,464 6,441 8,605
2,295 2,445 2,030
1,040 1,203 1,370

356 430 - 584
120 223 560
27,212 30,121 31,860
7,353 9,599 13,062
6.983 6,941 7,282
14,336 16,540 20,344
12,876 13,581 11,516
715 540 540
12,161 13,041 10,976
1,013 1,000 952
600 33) 52
410 84 122
960 680 664
263 128 124
3,246 2,223 1914
5,358 4,796 4,088
1,242 1,229 1,178
679 778 749
55 57 55
38 @) 25
467 478 401
397 471 360
-- 570 --
1,615 1,649 1,571
2,164 2,066 1,533
12,015 12,090 9,960
3,392 3,174 2,930 -
653 448 459
$ 2739 $2726 $2471
$ 144 $ 142 $ 122
$ 135 $ 134 $ 1.18
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

{Dollars in thousands)

Employee

Additional stock

Accumulated Retained

other

earn|

ings- Total

Common  paid-in ownership Treasury comprehensive partially stockholders’

stock capital plan stock income (loss) restricted equity
Balance October 1, 2000 $14 $13.491 $(1.287) $(5,622) $(2,386) $22,359 $26.569
Comprehensive income:
Net income - -- -- - - 2,471 2,471
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net unrealized gain on securities
net of reclassification adjustment'” = - - - 5.050 - 5.050
Comprehensive income - -- -- - - -- 7.521
ESOP stock committed to be released - - 140 -- -- -- 140
Excess of fair value above cost of ESOP
shares committed to be released -- 111 - -- -- -- 111
Exercise of stock options - (66) -- 84 -- -- 18
Purchase of treasury stock - - - (3,045) -- - (3,045)
Dividends paid - - - - - (693) (693)
Balance at September 30, 2001 14 13,536 (1,147 (8.583) 2,664 24,137 30.621
Comprehensive income:
Net income - -- - - - 2,726 2,726
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net unrealized gain on securities
net of reclassification adjustment'" - - - -- 536 - 536
Comprehensive income = - -- -~ - - 3.262
ESOP stock committed to be released -- -- 152 - - -- 152
Excess of fair value above cost of ESOP
shares committed to be released -- 161 -- - -- -- 161
Exercise of stock options - (8] - 421 - - 346
Purchase of treasury stock - - - (1,013) - - (1,013)
Dividends paid = - -: -- - (734) (134)
Balance at September 30, 2002 _14 13.622 (995) 9.175) 3.200 26,129 32,795
Comprehensive income:
Net income -- - -- -- -- 2,739 2,739
Other comprehensive income, net of tax:
Net unrealized loss on securities
net of reclassification adjustment'" - - I - 31 -- 131
Comprehensive income - -- _ - - -- -- 2,608
ESOP stock committed to be released -- - 165 -- - .- 165
Excess of fair value above cost of ESOP
shares committed to be released - 23] - - - - 231
Exercise of stock options - (410) -- 783 - - 373
Purchase of treasury stock -- - - (2,986) -- - (2,986)
Dividends paid - - -- - - (798) 798
Balance at September 30, 2003 Sl4 $13.443 $(830) $(11.378) $3.069 $28.070 $32.388
M Disclosure of reclassification amount, net of tax for the years ended: 2003 2002 2001
Net unrealized (depreciation) appreciation arising during the year $265 $754 $5,084
Less: reclassification adjustment for net gains included in net income _ 396 218 _ 34
Net unrealized (loss) gain on securities $(131) $536  $5.050

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in thousands)

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash

provided by (used in) operating activities:

Provision for depreciation and amortization

Amortization of premiums and discounts

(Gain) loss on sales of:
Loans held for sale
Investment securities available for sale
Mortgage-related securities available for sale
Real estate owned

Provision for loan losses

Provision for real estate owned losses

Amontization of employee stock ownership plan

Deferred income taxes

Changes in assets and liabilities which provided (used) cash:
Origination of loans held for sale
Loans sold in the secondary market
Accrued interest receivable
Prepaid expenses and other assets
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expenses

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Loans originated
Purchases of:
Investment securities available for sale
Investment securities held to maturity
Mortgage-related securities available for sale
(Purchase) redemption of FHLB stock
Proceeds from sales of investment and
mortgage-related securities available for sale
Proceeds from sales of real estate owned
Principal collected on loans
Proceeds from maturities, calls or repayments of:
Investment securities available for sale
Montgage-related securities available for sale
Mortgage-related securities held to maturity
Purchase of property and equipment
Net expenditures on real estate owned

Net cash used in investing activities
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in deposit accounts
Net increase (decrease) in FHLB advances and other borrowings
Net increase (decrease) in advances from borrowers for taxes and insurance
Issuance of trust preferred securities
Purchase of trust preferred securities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options
Purchase of treasury stock
Cash dividends

Net cash provided by financing activities
(Decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash payments for interest on deposits and borrowings
Cash payments of income taxes
Transfers of loans receivable into real estate owned

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Year Ended September 30
2003 2002 2001
$ 2739 $ 2726 $ 2471
426 457 429
1,202 3 (123)
(410) (84) (122)
(660) (331) (14)
60 - (38)
L (124) (49)
715 540 540
.- 18 .
396 384 251
225 (135) -
(30,995) (3,712) (20,685)
26,998 3,436 23,559
317 - 382 20
(2,593) (455) 5,544
(186) (804) (490)
(1,060) 3,637 (388)
(2.825) 5932 10,905
(173,407) (172,860) (70,781)
(23.334) (37.909) (32,137)
(6,329) - -
(132,141) (27,511) (58,663)
(1,723 346 (245)
14,600 8,936 14,931
150 1,003 © 849
175,198 131,402 53,046
20,793 12,343 7,000
83,135 58,779 34,782
5,369 2,595 1,594
(362) (258) (495)
== an (180)
(39.051) (23,145) (50,299)
31,840 19,164 39,039
9,888 167 (16,832)
126 136 (76)
- 8,000 -
-- (3,290) --
373° . 275 18
(2,986) (1,013) (3,045)
(798) - (134 (693)
38,443 22,705 18411
(3,433) 5,492 (20,983)
24,623 19,131 40,114
$ 21,190 3 24623 $ 19131
$ 14,522 $ 17,331 $ 15,605
800 650 125
2,122 361 872
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

1. Nature of Operations and Organization Structure

The primary business of First Keystone Financial, Inc. (the "Company") is to act as a holding company for First
Keystone Bank (the "Bank"), a federally chartered stock savings association founded in 1934, and First Keystone Capital
Trust I and Capital Trust II which are companies that are used to issue trust preferred securities. The Bank has two active
subsidiaries, FKF Management Corp., Inc, which manages investment securities, and State Street Services Corporation,
which has ownership interest in an insurance agency and title company. The primary business of the Bank is to offer a
wide variety of commercial and retail products through its branch system located in Delaware and Chester counties in
Pennsylvania. The Bank is primarily supervised and regulated by the Office of Thrift Supervision (“OTS”).

2 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company, the Bank, and the
Company’s and the Bank’s wholly owned subsidiaries. Intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the consolidated financial
statements and the reported amounts of income and expense during the reporting periods. Actual results could differ from
those estimates.

Securities Held to Maturity and Securities Available for Sale

Securities held to maturity are carried at amortized cost only if the Company has the positive intent and ability to
hold these securities to maturity. Securities available for sale are carried at fair value with the resulting unrealized gains
or losses recorded in equity, net of tax. For the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company did not maintain
a trading portfolio.

Allowance for Loan Losses

An allowance for loan losses is maintained at a level that management considers adequate to provide for probable
losses based upon an evaluation of known and inherent losses in the loan portfolio. Management’s evaluation of the
portfolio is based upon past loss experience, current economic conditions and other relevant factors. While management
uses the best information available to make such evaluation, future adjustments to the allowance may be necessary if
conditions differ substantially from the assumptions used in making the evaluations.

Impaired loans are predominantly measured based on the fair value of the collateral. The provision for loan losses
charged to expense is based upon past loan loss experience and an evaluation of probable losses and impairment existing
in the current loan portfolio. A loan is considered to be impaired when, based upon current information and events, it is
probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due in accordance with the original contractual terms of
the loan. An insignificant delay or insignificant shortfall in amounts of payments does not necessarily result in the loan
being identified as impaired. For this purpose, delays less than 90 days are considered to be insignificant. Large groups of
smaller balance homogeneous loans, including residential real estate and consumer loans, are collectively evaluated for
impairment, except for loans restructured under a troubled debt restructuring.

Mortgage Banking Activities

The Company originates mortgage loans held for investment and for sale. At origination, the mortgage loan is
identified as either held for sale or for investment. Mortgage loans held for sale are carried at the lower of cost or forward
committed contracts (which approximates market), determined on a net aggregate basis.
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At Septernber 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, loans serviced for others totaled approximately $51,547, $51,826, and
$66,301, respectively. Servicing loans for others consists of collecting mortgage payments, maintaining escrow accounts,
disbursing payments to investors, and processing foreclosures. Loan servicing income is recorded on a cash basis and
includes servicing fees from investors and certain charges collected from borrowers, such as late payment fees. The
Company has fiduciary responsibility for related escrow and custodial fundsaggregating approx1mately $603 and $584 at
September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively. '

The Company assesses the retained interest in the. serv:cmg asset or liability assoc1ated wnth the sold loans based
on the relative fair values. The servicing asset or liability is-amortized in proportion to and over the period during which
estimated net servicing income or net servicing loss, as appropriate, will be received. Assessment of the fair value of the
retained interest is performed on a continual basis. At September 30, 2()03 and 2002, mortgage servicing rights of $198
and $89, respectively, were included in other assets.-

Transfers of F manctal Assets

Transfers of financial assets are accounted for as sales when control over the assets has been surrendered. Control
is surrendered when (1) the assets have been isolated from the Company, (2) the transferee obtains the right (free of
conditions that constrain it from taking advantage of that right) to pledge or exchange the transferred assets, and (3) the
Company does not maintain effective control over the transferred assets through an agreement to repurchase them before
their maturity.

Income Recognition on Loans

Interest on loans is credited to income when earned. Accrual of loan interest is discontinued and a reserve
established on existing accruals if management believes after considering, among other things, economic and business
conditions and collection efforts, that the borrowers financial condition is such that collection of interest is doubtful.

Real Estate Owned

Real estate owned consists of properties acquired by foreclosure or deed in-lieu of foreclosure. These assets are
initially recorded at the lower of carrying value of the loan or estimated fair value less selling costs at the time of
foreclosure and at the lower of the new cost basis or net realizable value thereafter. The amounts recoverable from real
estate owned could differ materially from the amounts used in arriving at the net carrying value of the assets at the time of
foreclosure because of future market factors beyond the control of the Company. Costs relating to the development and
improvement of real estate owned properties are capitalized and those relating to holding the property are charged to
expense.

Office. Propemes and Equipment

Office properties and equipment are recorded at cost. Deprec1at10n is computed using the straight-line method over
the expected useful lives of the assets. The costs of maintenance and repairs are expensed as they are incurred, and
renewals and betterments are capitalized.

Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance:

The Bank funded the purchase of insurance policies on the lives of officers and employees of the Bank. The
Company has recognized any increase in cash surrender value of life insurance, net of insurance costs, in the consolidated
statements of income. The cash surrender value of the insurance policies is recorded as an asset in the statements of
financial condition. : :
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Interest Rate Risk

At September 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company’s assets consisted primarily of assets that earned interest at either
adjustable or fixed interest rates and the average life of which is longer term. These assets were funded primarily with
shorter term {iabilities that have interest rates which vary over time with market rates and, in some cases, certain call
features that are affected by changes in market rates. The shorter duration of the interest-sensitive liabilities indicates that
the Company is exposed to interest rate risk because, in a rising rate environment, liabilities will be repricing faster at
higher interest rates, thereby reducing the market value of long-term assets and net interest income.

. Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. Diluted earnings per common share is computed based on the weighted average number of shares of
common stock outstanding increased by the number of common shares that are assumed to have been purchased with the
proceeds from the exercise of stock options. Weighted average shares used in the computation of earnings per share were
as follows:

Year Ended September 30
. 2003 2002 2001
Average common shares outstanding ' 1,901,682 1,915,818 2,021,332
Increase in shares due to options 127,310 118,100 78.396
Adjusted shares outstanding - diluted 2,028,992 2033918 2,099,728

For the year ended September 30, 2003, there were no outstanding options that were antidilutive. For the years
ended September 30, 2002 and 2001, 9,000 shares and 9.600 shares, respectively, related to outstanding options were
excluded from the calculation of diluted EPS because the effect was antidilutive.

Income Taxes

Deferred income taxes are recognized for the tax consequences of temporary differences by applying enacted
statutory tax rates applicable to future years to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts and the tax
bases of existing assets and liabilities. The effect on deferred taxes of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the
period that includes the enactment date.

Accounting for Stock Options

The Company accounts for stock options in accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards
(“SFAS”) No. 123, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,” which allows an entity to choose between the intrinsic
value method, as defined in Accounting Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25, “Accounting for Stock Issued to
Employees” or the fair value method of accounting for stock-based compensation described in SFAS No. 123. An entity
using the intrinsic value method must disclose pro forma net income and earnings per share as if stock-based
compensation was accounted for using the fair value method (see Note 12). The Company continues to account for stock-
based compensation using the intrinsic value method and, accordingly, has not recognized compensation expense under
this method. :

Other Comprehensive Income

The Company presents as a component of comprehensive income the amounts from transactions and other events
which currently are excluded from the statement of income and are recorded directly to stockholders’ equity.
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Accounting for Derivative Instruments

SFAS No. 133 “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,” as amended by SFAS Nos. 137
and 138 and interpreted by the FASB and the Derivative Implementation Group through Statement 133 Implementation
Issues, requires that an entity recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the statement of financial condition
and measure those instruments at fair value. Under SFAS No. 133, the accounting for changes in the fair value of a
derivative depends on the intended use of the derivative and the resulting designation. The Company adopted this
statement on October 1, 2000. The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
position or results of operations. Currently, the Company does not have any embedded derivatives. The Company
currently does not employ hedging activities that require designation as either fair value or cash flow hedges, or hedges of
a net investment in a foreign operation.

Statement of Cash Flows

For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash and amounts due from depository
institutions and interest-bearing deposits with depository institutions.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In November 2002, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued FASB Interpretation No. 45, “Guarantor's
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others.”
This Interpretation elaborates on the disclosures to be made by a guarantor in its interim and annual financial statements
about its obligations under certain guarantees that it has issued. It also clarifies that a guarantor is required to recognize,
at the inception of a guarantee, a liability for the fair value of the obligation undertaken in issuing the guarantee. This
Interpretation also incorporates, without change, the guidance in FASB Interpretation No. 34, “Disclosure of Indirect
Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others,” which is being superseded. The initial recognition and initial measurement
provisions of this Interpretation are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31,
2002, irrespective of the guarantor's fiscal year-end. The disclosure requirements in this Interpretation are effective for
financial statements of interim or annual periods ending after December 15, 2002. The Company currently has no
guarantees that would be required to be recognized, measured or disclosed under this Interpretation.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, “Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities.” The Interpretation
clarifies the application of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51, “Consolidated Financial Statements,” to certain
entities in which equity investors do not have the characteristics of a controlling financial interest or do not have
sufficient equity at risk for the entity to finance its activities without additional subordinated financial support from other
parties. The Company has participated in the issue of trust preferred securities through a trust established for such
purpose. Currently, the Company classifies such securities after total liabilities and before stockholders’ equity on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet. The Company is currently assessing the trust preferred securities structure and the continued
consolidation of the related trust pursuant to FIN No. 46. Management does not believe the resuits of such assessment
will result in a material impact on the Company’s financial statements upon the deferred adoption of FIN No. 46 in the
first quarter of fiscal 2004.

In July 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, "Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities".
The standard requires companies to recognize costs associated with exit or disposal activities when they are incurred
rather than at the date of a commitment to an exit or disposal plan. Examples of costs covered by the standard include
lease termination costs and certain employee severance costs that are associated with a restructuring, discontinued
operation, plant closing, or other exit or disposal activity. SFAS No. 146 is to be applied prospectively to exit or disposal
activities initiated after December 31, 2002. The Company adopted this statement and it did not have a material impact
on the Company’s financial statements. ' ‘
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In October 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 147, "Acquisitions of Certain Financial Institutions", which
provides guidance on the accounting for the acquisition of a financial institution. This statement requires that the excess
of the fair value of liabilities assumed over the fair value of tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired in a
business combination which represents goodwill be accounted for under SFAS No. 142. Thus, the specialized accounting
guidance in paragraph 5 of SFAS No. 72, will not apply after September 30, 2002. If certain criteria in SFAS No. 147
are met, the amount of the unidentifiable intangible asset will be reclassified to goodwill upon adoption of the statement.
Financial institutions meeting the conditions outlined in SFAS No. 147 will be required to restate previously issued
financial statements. Additionally, the scope of SFAS No. 144, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-
Lived Assets”, 1s amended to include long-term customer-relationship intangible assets such as deposit or/and borrower-
relationship intangible assets and credit cardholder intangible assets. This statement became effective for the Company
for its fiscal year beginning October 1, 2002. This statement did not have any impact on the Company's financial
statements upon adoption.

In December 2002 SFAS” No. 148, “Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation --Transition and Disclosure, an
amendment of FASB Statement No. 123.” SFAS No. 148 amends SFAS No. 123 to provide alternative methods of
transition in connection with a voluntary change to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation. In addition, this Statement amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require prominent
disclosures in both annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee
compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. This statement is effective for financial statements
for fiscal years ending after December 15, 2002. The Company adopted certain disclosure provisions for interim periods
beginning after December 15, 2002. This statement did not have a material impact on the Company’s financial
statements in adopting this statement.

In April 2003, the SFAS No. 149, “Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities.” SFAS No. 149 amends and clarifies accounting for derivative instruments and hedging activities under
Statement 133. In addition, this Statement clarifies under what circumstances a contract with an initial net investment
meets the characteristic of a derivative and when a derivative contains a financing component that warrants special
reporting in the statement of cash flows. This statement is effective for contracts entered into or modified after June 30,
2003. The Company adopted this statement as it relates to the Company’s loan commitments and it did not have a
material impact on the Company’s financial statements.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, “Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with
Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity.” This statement requires that certain financial instruments, which
previously could be designated as equity, now be classified as liabilities on the balance sheet. The Company currently
classifies its trust preferred securities after total habilities and before stockholders’ equity on the Consolidated Balance
Sheet. Under the provisions of SFAS No. 150, these securities would be reclassified as borrowed funds. The effective
date of SFAS No. 150 has been indefinitely deferred by the FASB when certain criteria are met. As the structure of the
Company’s trust preferred securities meets such criteria, the Company qualifies for this limited deferral. Therefore, the
Company will assess the classification of the trust preferred securities in conjunction wnlh adoption of FIN No. 46 in the
first quarter of fiscal 2004, as noted above.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications have been made to the September 30, 2002 and 2001 consolidated financial statements to
conform with the September 30, 2003 presentation. Such reclassifications had no impact on the reported net income.
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3. Investment Securities

The amortized cost and approximate fair value of investment securities available for sale and investment
securities held to maturity are as follows:

September 30, 2003
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available for Sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and securities
of U.S. Government agencies:
1to 5 years $13,020 $ 35 $ 51 $ 13,004
5 to 10 years ) 4,880 139 31 4,988
Municipal obligations 14,112 503 -- " 14,615
Corporate bonds 17,567 1,288 332 18,523
Mutual funds 14,009 - 57 13,952
Asset-backed securities 1,911 11 - 1,922
Preferred stocks 5,474 34 524 4,984
Other equity investments 3,126 2.586 -- 5712
Total , $74.099 $4,596 $995 $ 77,700
Held to Maturity:
Municipal obligations - $ 3,261 § 19 - $ 3,280
Corporate bonds 3054 116 -- 3.170
Total 3 6315 § 135 - $ 6450
September 30, 2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available for Sale:
U.S. Treasury securities and securities
of U.S. Government agencies:
1to S years $11,986 $ 128 $12,114
5 to 10 years 1,861 210 2,071
Municipal obligations 19,012 788 19,800
Corporate bonds 14,299 827 $ 406 14,720
Mutual funds 14,009 42 6 14,045
Asset-backed securities 2,837 16 2,853
Preferred stocks - . 10,682 293 224 10,751.
Other equity investments ' 3,476 884 90 4,270
Total $78162 $3.188 $726 $80.624 .

For the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, proceeds from sales of investment securities available
for sale amounted to $7,309, $7,066 arid $8,005, respectively. For such periods, gross realized gains on sales amounted
to $660, $351 and $34, respectively, while gross realized losses amounted to $0, $20 and $20, respectively. The tax
provision applicable to these net realized gains and losses amounted to $224, $112 and $5, respectively.

Investment securities with an aggregate carrying value of $4,930 and $2,986 were pledged as collateral for
financings at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively (see Note 8).
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4. Mortgage-Related Securities

Mortgage-related securities available for sale and mortgage-related securities held to maturity are summarized
as follows:

September 30, 2003
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available for Sale:
FHLMC pass-through certificates $ 6,862 $ 126 $ 38 $ 6950
FNMA pass-through certificates 45,740 412 122 46,030
GNMA pass-through certificates 13,043 596 - 13,639
Collateralized mortgage obligations 57,961 433 357 58,037
Total 5123606 $1,567 517 $124.656
Held to Maturity:
FHLMC pass-through certificates $ 478 $ 22 $ - $ 500
FNMA pass-through certificates 2,123 40 3 2,160
Collateralized mortgage obligations 886 14 - 900
Total § 3487 $ 76 $ 3 $ 3,560
September 30, 2002
Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Approximate
Cost Gain Loss Fair Value
Available for Sale:
FHLMC pass-through certificates $498 § 275 $-- $ 5,261
FNMA pass-through certificates 13,009 454 -- 13,463
GNMA pass-through certificates 32,407 1,214 -- 33,621
Collateralized mortgage obligations 32,884 449 4 33.329
Total $83.286 $2392 $4 $85.674
Held to Maturity:
FHLMC pass-through certificates $ 1,433 $ 77 $-- $ 1,510
FNMA pass-through certificates 3,574 96 -- 3,670
Collateralized mortgage obligations 3,848 62 - 3910
Total $8855 § 235 @3- $ 9.000

The collateralized mortgage obligations contain both fixed and adjustable classes of securities which are
repaid in accordance with a predetermined priority. The underlying collateral of the securities are loans which are
primarily guaranteed by FHLMC, FNMA, and GNMA. ‘

For the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2001, proceeds from sales of mortgage-related securities
available for sales amounted to $7,485 and $6,926, respectively. Gross realized gains amounted to $39 and $38 for
the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2001, respectively. Gross realized losses amounted to $99 for the year
ended September 30, 2003. The tax provision (benefit) applicable to these net realized gains and losses amounted to
$(38) and $13 for the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2001, respectively. During the year ended September 30,
2002, there were no sales of mortgage-related securities.

Mortgage-related securities with aggregate carrying values of $13,059 and $12,907 were pledged as collateral
for municipal deposits and financings at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively (see Note 8).
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5. Accrued Interest Receivable

The following is a summary of accrued interest receivable by category:

September 30
2003 2002
Loans $1438 $1,689
Mortgage-related securities 513 457
Investment securities 703 825
Total ' $2654 3$2971
6. Loans Receivable
Loans receivable consist of the following:
September 30
: 2003 2002
Single-family ‘ $166,042  $173,736
Construction and land 28,975 28,292
Multi-family and commercial 59,022 60,379
Home equity and lines of credit 33,459 27,595
Consumer loans - 1,438 1,202
Commerctal loans , 10,161 11,919
Total loans 299,097 303,123
Loans in process (10,655) (11,384)
Allowance for loan losses (1,986) (2,358)
Deferred loan fees - (35) (605)
Loans receivable net $286421  $288.776

The Company originates loans primarily in its local market area of Delaware and Chester Counties, Pennsylvania
to borrowers that share similar attributes. This geographic concentration of credit exposes the Company to a higher
degree of risk associated with this economic region.

The Company participated in the origination and sale of fixed-rate single family residential loans in the secondary
market. The Company recognized gains on sale of loans held for sale on sales of conforming agency loans of $410, $84
and $122 for fiscal years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Company offers loans to its directors and senior officers on terms permitted by Regulation O. There were
approximately $2,068, $1,703 and $1,550 of loans outstanding to senior officers and directors as of September 30, 2003,
2002 and 2001, respectively. The amount of repayments during the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
totaled $1,163, $948 and $165 respectively. There were $1,527, $725 and $772 of new loans granted during fiscal years
2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

The Company had undisbursed portions under consumer and commercial lines of credit as of September 30, 2003
of $30,147 and $10,349, respectively.

The Company originates both adjustable and fixed interest rate loans and purchases mortgage-related securities in
the secondary market. The originated adjustable-rate loans have interest rate adjustment limitations and are generally
indexed to U.S. Treasury securities plus a fixed margin. Future market factors may affect the correlation of the interest
rate adjustment with rates the Company pays on the short-term deposits that have been the primary funding source for
these loans. The adjustable-rate mortgage-related securities adjust to various national indices plus a fixed margin. At
September 30, 2003, the composition of these loans and mortgage-related securities was as follows:
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Fixed-Rate
Term to Maturity ' Book Value
1 month to 1 year $5,321
1 year to 3 years 6,451
3 years to 5 years 14,753
5 years to 10 years 58,643
Over 10 years 205,505
Total $290.673
Adjustable-Rate
Term to Rate Adjustment Book Value
1 month to 1 year $55,431 -
1 year to 3 years 25,879
3 years to 5 years 44,602
Total o $125.912
The following is an analysis of the allowance for loan losses:
Year Ended
September 30
: 2003 2002 2001
Beginning balance - $2,358 $2,181 $2,019
Provisions charged to income 715 540 540 |
Charge-offs , (1,102) (373) (532)
Recoveries 15 10 154

Total . $1986 $2358. $2.181

At September 30, 2003 and 2002, non-performing loans (which include loans in excess of 90 days delinquent)
amounted to approximately $1,556 and $5,138, respectively. At September 30, 2001, non-performing loans consisted of
loans that were collectively evaluated for impairment.

As of September 30, 2002, the Company had impaired }oans with a total recorded investment of $2. 4 million and
an average recorded investment-of $2.1 million. There was not any cash basis interest income recognized on these
impaired loans during the year ended September 30, 2002. Interest income of approximately $150 was not recognized as
interest income due to the non-accrual status of loans during 2002. o .

7. Office Properties and Equipment

Office properties and equipment are summarized by major classification as follows:

September 30
. , 2003 2002
Land and buildings $6,082 $5926
Furniture, fixtures and equipment ) ] 4,555 4.476
Total L 10,637 10,402
Accumulated depreciation and amortization o E (7.210) _(6911)
Net ‘ : $3427 $3491
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The future minimum rental payments required under operating leases that have initial or remaining non-cancelable
lease terms in excess of one year as of September 30, 2003 are as follows:

September 30

2004 $ 239
2005 . 267
2006 - ‘ 172
2007 158
2008 ' 167
Thereafter 754
Total minimum future rental payments ’ $1.757

Leasehold expense was approximately $375, $335 and $329 for the years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and
2001, respectively.

Depreciation expense amounted to $426, $457 and $429 for the years ended Septembcr 30 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

8. Deposits ]
Deposits consist of the following major classifications:
September 30
2003 2002
o Amount Percent Amount Percent
Non-interest-bearing $20917 58% $ 15,340 4.6%
NOW 60,221 16.6 48,803 14.8
Passbook 47,089 13.0 41,659 12.6
Money Market 55,889 15.4 48,721 147
Certificates of Deposit 178,489 _49.2 176,242 _53.3
Total . , $362.605 100.0%  $330.765 100.0%

The weighted average interest rates paid on deposits were 1.77% and 2.44% at September 30, 2003 and 2002,
respectively.

Included in deposits as of September 30, 2003 and 2002 are deposits greater than $100 totaling approximately
$103,734 and $81,976, respectively. Deposits in excess of $100 are not federally insured. ;

At September 30, 2003 and 2002, the Company pledged certain mortgage-related securities aggregating
approximately $12,867 and $7,371, respectively, as collateral for municipal deposits.

A summary of scheduled maturities of certificates is as follows: .

September 30
o 2003 ' 2002
Within one year ' ‘ $106,631 $109,694
One to two years 42,069 39,829
Two to three years 7,962 11,852
Thereafter ) 21,827 14,867
Total . : $178.489 $176,242
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A summary of interest expense on deposits is as follows:

Year Ended September 30
2003 2002 2001
NOwW $ 316 $ 401 $ 537
Passbook 530 750 907
Money Market 736 1,036 1,223
Certificates of Deposit 5,771 7412 10,395
Total $7353 $9.599 $13.062
9. Borrowings
A summary of borrowings is as follows:
September 30

2003 2002
FHLB advances $126,403 $126,237
Repurchase agreements 2,885 --
FHLB overnight borrowings 6,800 --
Other 184 147
Total borrowings $136272 3126384

Advances from the FHLB are made at fixed rates with remaining maturities, summarized as follows:

September 30

2003 2002
Over one year through five years ‘" $ 25,704 -
Over five years through ten years ‘¥ 100,500 126,032
Over 10 years 199 205

$126403 $126,237
D Although the contractual maturities of these borrowings are between one and ten years, the FHLB has the right to
convert these advances to adjustable-rate advances. The amount of FHLB advances with the convertible feature,
which are subject to conversion in each of fiscal 2004, 2005, and 2006, is $101.0 million, $10.0 million and 315.0
million, respectively.

Included in the table above at September 30, 2003 and 2002 are FHLB advances whereby the FHLB has the
option at predetermined times to convert the fixed interest rate to an adjustable rate tied to the London Interbank Offered
Rate (LIBOR). The Company then has the option to prepay these advances if the FHLB converts the interest rate. These
advances are included in the periods in which they mature. The average balance of FHLB advances was $126.4 million
with an average cost of 5.4% for the year ended September 20, 2003.

Advances from the FHLB are collateralized by all FHLB stock owned by the Bank in addition to a blanket pledge
of eligible assets in an amount required to be maintained so that the estimated fair value of such eligible assets exceeds, at
all times, 110% of the outstanding advances.

The Company enters into sales of securities under agreements to repurchase. These agreements are recorded as
financing transactions, and the obligation to repurchase is reflected as a liability in the consolidated statements of
financial condition. The securities underlying the agreements are delivered to the dealer with whom each transaction is
executed. The dealers, who may sell, loan or otherwise dispose of such securities to other parties in the normal course of
their operations, agree to resell to the Company substantially the same securities at the maturities of the agreements. The
Company retains the right of substitution of collateral throughout the terms of the agreement.

At September 30, 2003, outstanding FHLB repurchase agreements were secured by U.S. Government securities.
The average balance of FHLB repurchase agreements during the year ended September 30, 2003 was $8 with an average
cost of 25 basis points. The maximum amount outstanding at any month end during the year ended September 30, 2003
was $2.9 million.
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10. Income Taxes

The Company and its subsidiaries file a consolidated federal income tax return. The Company uses the specific
charge-off method for computing reserves for bad debts. The bad debt deduction allowable under this method is available
to large banks with assets greater than $500 million. Generally, this method allows the Company to deduct an annual
addition to the reserve for bad debts equal to its net charge-offs.

Retained earnings at September 30, 2003 and 2002 included approximately $2.5 million representing bad debt
deductions for which no income tax has been provided.

Income tax expense is comprised of the following:

Year Ended September 30
2003 2002 2001
Federal:
Current $428 $583 $456
Deferred 225 (135) --
State -- -- 3
Total $653 $448 $459

The tax effect of temporary differences that give rise to significant portions of the deferred tax accounts, calculated
at 34%, is as follows:

September 30
2003 2002
Deferred tax assets: ,
Accelerated depreciation $ 374 $346
Allowance for loan losses 840 769
Accrued expenses 146 463
Other -- --
Total deferred tax assets 1360 1578
Deferred tax liabilities:
Deferred loan fees (310) (306)
Unrealized gain on available for sale securities (1,581) (1,649)
Other ' (50) 47D
Total deferred tax liabilities (1,941) (2,002)
Net deferred income taxes $ (581 $429)
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The Company’s effective tax rate is less than the statutory federal income tax rate for the following reasons:

Year ended September 30
2003 2002 2001
Percentage Percentage Percentage
of Pretax . of Pretax - of Pretax
Amount  Income Amount Income Amount Income
Tax at statutory rate $1,153 34.0% $1,079 34.0% $991 34.0%
Increase (decrease) in taxes resulting from: .
Tax exempt interest, net 274) 8.1 (290) 9.1) (281) (9.6)
Increase in cash surrender value (223) (6.5) (231) (7.3) (226) 7.7
Other : 3) 0. 1109 3.5 (25) 1.0

Total ’ $653 193%  $ 448 141%  $459. 15.7%

11. Regulatory Capital Requirements

The Bank is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the federal banking agencies.
Failure to meet minimum regulatory capital requirements can result in certain mandatory, and possibly additional
discretionary, actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on the Company’s financial
statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action, the Bank must
meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and certain off-balance
sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The Bank’s capital amounts and classification are also
subject to qualitative judgments by regulators about components, risk weightings, and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require the Bank to maintain minimum
amounts and ratios (set forth below) of tangible and core capital (as defined in the regulations) to adjusted assets (as
defined), and of Tier I and total capital (as defined) to average assets (as defined). Management believes, as of September
30, 2003, that the Bank meets all capital adequacy requirements to which it is subject.

As of September 30, 2003, the most recent notification from the OTS categorized the Bank as well capitalized
under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective action. To be categorized as well capitalized, the Bank must
maintain minimum total risk-based, Tier-1 risk-based, and Tier-1 core capital ratios as set forth in the table below. There
are no conditions or events since that notification that management believes have changed the institution’s category.

Required for Well Capitalized
Capital Adequacy Under Prompt
Actual Purpose Corrective Action

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Amount Percentage

At September 30, 2003:

Core Capital (to Adjusted Tangible Assets) $43,852 8.0% $21,972 4.0%  $27,465 5.0%
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 43,852 144 N/A N/A 18,268 6.0
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 45,564 15.0 24,357 8.0 30,446 10.0
Tangible Capital (to Tangible Assets) 43,852 8.0 8,240 1.5 N/A N/A
At September 30, 2002:

Core Capital (to Adjusted Tangible Assets)  $ 40,873 8.1% $20,265 40% $25325 5.0%
Tier I Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 40,873 15.4 N/A N/A 15,941 6.0
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets) 42,957 16.2 21,255 8.0 26,569 10.0
Tangible Capital (to Tangible Assets) 40,873 8.1 7,597 1.5 N/A N/A
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The Bank’s capital at September 30, 2003 and 2002 for financial statement purposes differs from tangible, core
(leverage), and Tier-1 risk-based capital amounts by $ and $ , respectively, representing the inclusion of unrealized gain
on securities available for sale and a portion of capital securities (see Note 17) that qualifies as regulatory capital as well
as adjustments to the Bank’s capital that do not affect the parent company.

At September 30, 2003 and 2002, total risk-based capital, for regulatory requirements, was increased by $1,712
and $2,406, respectively, of general loan loss reserves, for a tota} of $45,564 and $42,957, respectively.

At the date of the Bank’s conversion from the mutual to stock form in January 1995 (the “Conversion”), the Bank
established a liquidation account in an amount equal to its retained income as of August 31, 1994, The liquidation
account is maintained for the benefit of eligible account holders and supplemental eligible account holders who continue
to maintain their accounts at the Bank after the Conversion. The liquidation account is reduced annually to the extent that
eligible account holders (as defined in the Bank’s plan of conversion) and supplemental eligible account holders have
reduced their qualifying deposits as of each anniversary date. Subsequent increases in such balances will not restore an
eligible account holder’s or supplemental eligible account holder’s interest in the liquidation account. In the event of a
complete liquidation of the Bank, each eligible account holder and supplemental eligible account holder will be entitled
to receive a distribution from the liquidation account in an amount proportionate to the current adjusted qualifying
balances for accounts then held. :

The principal source of cash flow for the Company is dividends from the Bank. Various federal banking
regulations and capital guidelines limit the amount of dividends that may be paid to the Company by the Bank. Future
payment of dividends by the Bank is dependent on individual regulatory capital requirements and levels of profitability.
In addition, loans or advances made by the Bank to the Company are generally limited to 10 percent of the Bank's capital
stock and surplus on a secured basis. Accordingly, funds available for loans or advances by the Bank to the Company
amounted to $4,431.

12. Employee Benefits
401(k) Profit Sharing Plan

The Bank’s 401 (k) profit sharing plan covers substantially all full-time employees of the Company and provides
for pre-tax contributions by the employees with matching contributions at the discretion of the Board of Directors
determined at the beginning of the calendar year. All amounts are fully vested. For calendar years 2003, 2002 and 2001,
the Company matched twenty-five cents for every dollar contributed up to 5% of a participant’s salary. The profit sharing
expense for the plan was $38, $36 and $32 for the fiscal years ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Employee Stock Ownership Plan

In connection with the Conversion, the Company established an employee stock ownership plan (“ESOP”) for the
benefit of eligible employees. At September 30, 2003, 244,865 shares were committed to be released, of which 19,229
shares have not yet been allocated to participant accounts. The Company accounts for its ESOP in accordance with
AICPA Statement of Position 93-6, Employers Accounting for Employee Stock Ownership Plans, which requires the
Company to recognize compensation expense equal to the fair value of the ESOP shares during the periods in which they
become committed to be released. To the extent that the fair value of the ESOP shares released differs from the cost of
such shares, this difference is charged or credited to equity as additional paid-in capital. Management expects the
recorded amount of expense in any given period to fluctuate from period to period as continuing adjustments are made to
reflect changes in the fair value of the ESOP shares. The Company’s ESOP, which is internally leveraged, does not report
the loan receivable extended to the ESOP as an asset and does not report the ESOP debt due the Company. The Company
recorded compensation and employee benefit expense related to the ESOP of $516, $395 and $308 for the years ended
September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.
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Recognition and Retention Plan

Under the 1995 Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust (the “RRP™), there are 81,600 shares authorized under
the RRP. At September 30, 2002, the Company awarded 79,350 shares to the Company’s Board of Directors and
executive officers subject to vesting and other provisions of the RRP. At September 30, 2003, all the shares awarded had
been allocated to plan participants.

Compensation expense was recognized ratably over the five year vesting period for the shares awarded. Since all
the shares awarded have been allocated, no compensation expense was recognized relating to the RRP for fiscal years
ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Stock Option Plans

Under the 1995 Stock Option Plan (the “Option Plan”), common stock totaling 272,000 shares has been reserved
for issuance pursuant to the exercise of options. During fiscal year 1999, stockholders approved the adoption of the 1998
Stock Option Plan (1998 Option Plan”) (collectively with the Option Plan, the “Plans”) which reserves an additional
111,200 shares of common stock for issuance. Options covering an aggregate of 357,106 shares have been granted to the
Company’s executive officers, nonemployee directors and other key employees, subject to vesting and other provisions of
the Plans. At September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the number of shares exercisable was 210,209, 261,913 and 271,889,
respectively, and the weighted average exercise price of those options was $9.19, $8.91 and $8.57, respectively.

The following table summarizes transactions regarding the stock option plans:

Weighted
Number of Average

Option Exercise Exercise Price
Shares Price Range per share
Outstanding at October 1, 2000 339,140 $ 7.50-14.25 $'9.05
Exercised (14.607) 7.50- 7.50 7.50
Outstanding at September 30, 2001 324,533 $ 7.50-14.25 $ 9.11
Granted 13,300 14.84 - 16.15 15.73
Exercised ' (30,856) 7.50-12.38 7.97
Outstanding at September 30, 2002 306,977 '$ 7.50-16.15 $ 952
Granted ' 3,000 16.15 -16.15 16.15
Exercised (62.678) 7.50-14.25 8.79
Outstanding at September 20, 2003 247,299 $ 7.50-16.15 $ 978

A summary of the exercise price range at September 30, 2003 is as follows:

Weighted Average Weighted Average

Number of Remaining Contractual ~ Exercise Price per
Option Shares  Exercise Price Range Life Share
146,769 $7.50-10.13 _ 2.24 $7.63
100,530 12.13-16.15 6.41 12.90
247,299 $750-16.15 3.93 $9.78
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The Company applies APB Opinion No. 25 in accounting for stock options and, accordingly, no compensation
expense has been recognized in the financial statements. Had the Company determined compensation expense based on
the fair value at the grant date for its stock options under. SFAS No. 123, the Company’s net income and income per share
would have been reduced to the pro forma amounts indicated below:

Year Ended September 30
2003 2002 2001
Net income:
As reported ) $2,739 $2,726 $2,471
Pro forma 2,665 2,649 2,405
Net income per common and common equivalent share: ‘
Earnings per common share )
- As reported $1.35 $ 134 $ 1.18
- Pro forma 1.31 1.30
Weighted average fair value of options granted during the
period $4.83 $ 9.67 N/A

The binomial option-pricing model was used to determine the fair value of options at the grant date. Significant
assumptions used to calculate the above fair value of the awards are as follows:

September 30
2003 2002 2001
Risk-free interest rate of return 3.03% 2.98% 3.77%
Expected option life (months) 100 100 60
Expected Volatility 27% 3% 52%
Expected dividends 1.8% 2.8% 2.3%

Other

The Company established an expense accrual in connection with the anticipated funding of a trust to be created to
formalize the Company’s deferred compensation arrangements with four former officers of the Company. A total of $31
and $85 was included in the Company’s liabilities at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

13. Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company concurrently adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 133, and SFAS No. 138, "Accounting for Certain
Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities -- an amendment of FASB Statement No. 133" on October 1,
2000. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 149 effective July 1, 2003. The Company's derivative
instruments outstanding during fiscal year end September 30, 2003 include commitments to fund loans available-for-sale
and forward loan sale agreements.

The Company adopted new accounting requirements relating to SFAS No. 149 which requires that mortgage loan
commitments related to loans originated for sale be accounted for as derivative instruments. In accordance with SFAS
No. 133 and SFAS No. 149, derivative instruments are recognized in the statement of financial condition at fair value and
changes in the fair value thereof are recognized in the statement of operations. The Company originates single-family
residential loans for sale pursuant to programs with FHLMC. Under the structure of the programs, at the time the
Company initially issues a loan commitment in connection with such programs, it does not lock in a specific interest rate.
At the time the interest rate is locked in by the borrower, the Company concurrently enters into a forward loan sale
agreement with respect to the sale of such loan at a set price in an effort to manage the interest rate risk inherent in the
locked loan commitment. The forward loan sale agreement also meets the definition of a derivative instrument under
SFAS No. 133. Any change in the fair value of the loan commitment after the borrower locks in the interest rate is
substantially offset by the corresponding change in the fair value of the forward loan sale agreement related to such loan.
The period from the time the borrower locks in the interest rate to the time the Company funds the loan and sells it to
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FHLMC is generally 60 days. The fair value of each instrument will rise or fall in response to changes in market interest
rates subsequent to the dates the interest rate locks and forward loan sale agreements are entered into. In the event that
interest rates rise after the Company enters into an interest rate lock, the fair value of the loan commitment will decline.
However, the fair value of the forward loan sale agreement related to such loan commitment should increase by
substantially the same amount, effectively eliminating the Company's interest rate and price risk.

At September 30, 2003, the Company had $1.5 million of loan commitments outstanding related to loans being
originated for sale. Of such amount, $230 related to loan commitments for which the borrowers had not entered into
interest rate locks and $1.3 million which were subject to interest rate locks. At September 30, 2003, the Company had
$1.3 million of forward loan sale agreements. Due to the structure of these transactions, the Company concluded that the
derivative instruments involving its loans held for sale were not material to the consolidated statements of the financial
condition and operations of the Company as of and for the year ended September 30, 2003 since the Company does not
bear any interest rate or price risk with respect to such transactions.

14. Commitments and Contingencies

The Company has outstanding loan commitments, excluding undisbursed portion of loans in process and equity
lines of credit, of approximately $5,922 and $10,621 as of September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, all of which are
expected to be funded within four months. Of these commitments outstanding, the breakdown between fixed and
adjustable-rate loans is as follows: o '

September 30

. 2003 2002
Fixed-rate (ranging from 4.49% to 6.75%) $5,578 $ 4,525
Adjustable-rate - 344 6.096
Total ' $5922  $10.621

Depending on cash flow, interest rate, risk management and other considerations, longer term fixed-rate residential
loans are sold in the secondary market. There was approximately $1,307 and $2,936 in outstanding commitments to sell
loans at September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2002, the Company settled a lawsuit related to certain loan sales. The lawsuit was
instituted by the purchaser of five residential mortgage loans from the Bank that alleged that it suffered losses in
connection with these loans and that the Bank was required to purchase the loans or compensate the purchaser for its
alleged losses. The Bank settled all the purchaser’s claims for $570.

There are various claims and pending actions against the Company and its subsidiaries arising out of the conduct
of its business. In the opinion of the Company’s management and based upon advice of legal counsel, the resolution of
these matters will not have a material adverse impact on the consolidated financial position or the results of operations of
the Company and its subsidiaries. ‘

15.  Related Party Transactions

The Company retains the services of a law firm in which one of the Company’s directors is a member. In addition
to providing general legal counsel to the Company, the firm also prepares mortgage documents and attends loan closings
for which it is paid directly by the borrower. '

The Company also utilizes one of the Company’s directors as a consultant on various real estate matters. In
addition, one of the Compahy’s board members has an interest in an insurance agency, First Keystone Insurance Services,
LLC in which one of the Bank's subsidiaries has a majority position.
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16. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the Company using available market information and
appropriate valuation methodologies. However, considerable judgment is required to interpret market data to develop the
estimates of fair value. Accordingly, the estimates presented herein are not necessarily indicative of the amounts the
Company could realize in a current market exchange. The use of different market assumptions and/or estimation
methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.

September 30
2003 2002
Carrying/ Estimated Carrying/ Estimated
Notional Fair Notional Fair
Amount _ Value Amount Value
Assets: )
Cash and cash equivalents : $21,190 $21,190 $ 24,623 $ 24,623
Investment securities ‘ 84,015 84,150 80,624 80,624
Loans . » 286,421 287,996 288,776 293,509
Loans held for sale 4,408 4,498 501 501
Morigage-related securities 128,143 129,646 94,529 94,764
FHLB stock ' 8,294 8,294 6,571 6,571
Liabilities:
Passbook deposits 47,089 47,089 41,659 41,659
NOW and money market deposits 116,110 116,110 102,770 102,770
Certificates of deposit 178,489 179,699 176,242 178,404
Borrowings 136,272 137,709 126,237 128,539
Off balance sheet commitments 43,024 43,024 35,732 35,732

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents is their carrying value due to their short-term nature. The fair value of
investments and mortgage-related securities is based on quoted market prices, dealer quotes, and prices obtained from
independent pricing services. The fair value of loans is estimated, based on present values using approximate current
entry value interest rates, applicable to each category of such financial instruments. The fair value of FHLB stock
approximates its carrying amount.

The fair value of NOW deposits, money market deposits and passbook deposits is the amount reported in the
financial statements. The fair value of certificates of deposit and FHLB advances is based on a present value estimate,
using rates currently offered for deposits and borrowings of similar remaining maturity. ‘

Fair values for off-balance sheet commitments are based on fees currently charged to enter into similar agreements,
taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the counterparties credit standings.

No adjustment was made to the entry-value interest rates for changes in credit performing commercial loans,
construction loans, and land loans for which there are no known credit concerns. Management believes that the risk factor
embedded in the entry-value interest rates, along with the general reserves applicable to the performing commerecial,
construction, and land loan postfolios for which there are no known credit concerns, result in a fair valuation of such
loans on an entry-value basis. The fair value of non-performing loans, with a recorded book value of approximately
$1,556 and $5,138 (which are collateralized by real estate properties with property values in excess of carrying amounts)
as of September 30, 2003 and 2002, respectively, was not estimated because it is not practicable to reasonably assess the
credit adjustment that would be applied in the marketplace for such loans. The fair value estimates presented herein are
based on pertinent information available to management as of September 30, 2003 and 2002. Although management is
not aware of any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts, such amounts have not been
comprehensively revalued for purposes of these financial statements since September 30, 2003 and 2002 and, therefore,
current estimates of fair value may differ significantly from the amounts presented herein.
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17. Capital Securities

On August 21, 1997, First Keystone Capital Trust I (the “Trust”), a trust formed under Delaware law, that is a
subsidiary of the Company, issued $16.2 million of preferred securities (the “Preferred Securities”) at an interest rate of
9.7%, with a scheduled maturity of August 15, 2027. The Company owns all the common stock of the Trust. The
proceeds from the issue were invested in Junior Subordinated Debentures (the “Debentures”) issued by the Company.
The Debentures are unsecured and rank subordinate and junior in right of payment to all indebtedness, liabilities and
obligations of the Company. The

Debentures represent the sole assets of the Trust. Interest on the Preferred Securities is cumulative and payable
semiannually in arrears. The Company has the option, subject to required regulatory approval, if any, to prepay the
securities beginning August 15, 2007.

The securities are shown on the balance sheet as Company-obligated mandatorily redeemable preferred securities
of a subsidiary trust holding solely junior subordinated debentures of the Company. The Company has, under the terms of
the Debentures and the related Indenture as well as the other operative corporate documents, agreed to irrevocably and
unconditionally guarantee the Trust’s obligations under the Debentures. The Company contributed approximately $6.0
million of the net proceeds to the Bank to support the Bank’s lending activities. The interest cost associated with this
issue is treated as a non-interest expense on the consolidated statement of income rather than interest expense.

On November 15, 2001, the Company purchased $3.5 million of the Preferred Securities.

On November 28, 2001, First Keystone Capital Trust II (the “Trust II), a trust formed under Delaware law, that is
a subsidiary of the Company, issued $8.0 million of securities (“‘Preferred Securities II") in a pooled securities offering at
a floating rate of 375 basis over the six month LIBOR with a maturity date of December 8, 2031. The Company owns all
the common stock of the Trust II. The proceeds from the issue were invested in Junior Subordinated Debentures (the
“Debentures I[I”") issued by the Company. The Debentures II are unsecured and rank subordinate and junior in right of
payment to all indebtedness, liabilities and obligations of the Company. The Debentures II represent the sole assets of the
Trust II. Interest on the Preferred Securities I1 is cumulative and payable semi-annuaily in arrears. The Company has the
option, subject to required regulatory approval, if any, to prepay the securities beginning December 8, 2006.
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18.

Parent Company Only Financial Information

Condensed financial statements of First Keystone Financial, Inc. are as follows:

Condensed Statements of Financial Condition

Assets:
Interest-bearing deposits
Investment securities available for sale
Investment in subsidiaries
Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities and Stockholders’ Equity
Junior subordinated debt
Other liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

Condensed Statements of Income

Interest and dividend income:
Dividends from subsidiary
Loan to ESOP
Interest and dividends on investments
Interest on deposits

Total Interest and dividend income

Interest on debt and other borrowed money

Other income
Operating expenses

(Loss) income before income taxes and equity
in undistributed income (loss) of subsidiaries

Income tax benefit

(Loss) income before equity in undistributed (loss) income

of subsidiaries

Equity in undistributed income (loss) of subsidiaries

Net income

September 30

2003 2002
$ 1,800 $2,269
6,246 7,060
46,482 44,192
1,089 1,798
$55.617 335319
$21,593  $21,630
1,636 894
23,229 22,524
. _32.388 32,795
$55.617  §55.319

Year Ended September 30

2003 2002 2001
$ 9 $ 5 $4500
79 92 105
286 502 608
50 67 7
424 666 5,220
1,677 1,723 1,762
241 44 25
194 154 403
(1,206)  (1,167) 3,080
(402) (385) (477)
(804) (782) 3,557
3543 3,508 (1.086)
$2739 $2726  $2471
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Condensed Statements of Cash Flows

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income
Adjustment to reconcile net income to cash provided by
(used in) operations:
Equity in undistributed (income) loss of subsidiaries
Amortization of common stock acquired by stock benefit plans
Gain (loss) on sales of investment securities available for sale
Amortization of premium
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Increase) decrease in other liabilities

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities
Cash flows from financing activities:
Purchase of investments available for sale
Proceeds from calls or repayments of investment securities
Proceeds from sale of investments available for sale

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

Cash flows from financing activities:

Issuance of preferred trust securities

Purchase of preferred trust securities

Repayment in other borrowed money

Purchase of treasury stock

Dividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of stock options

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities
Increase (decrease) in cash
Cash at beginning of year

Cash at end of year
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Year Ended September 30
2003 2002 2001
$2,739  $2,726 $2,471
(3,543) (3,508) 1,086
374 384 251
(241) 44 (25)
26 (22) 29
709 (1,205) 455
165 145 (459)
229 (1.436) _3.808
(3,870) (278)
1,100
1,591 4956 1,025
2.691 1.086 747
- 8,000 --
- (3,290) -
-- (815) (711
(2,986) (1,013) (3,045
(798) (734)  (693)
395 275 18
(3.389) 2423 (443D
(469) 2,073 124
2,269 196 72
$1800 32269 § 196
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19. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

Unaudited quarterly financial data for the years ended September 30, 2003 and 2002 is as follows:

2003 2002
lst ' znd . 3rd 4lh . .lst 2nd 3rd 4th
QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR QTR

Interest income $7,217 $6,973 $6,614 $6,407 $7,757  $7.416 $7,547 $7.403
Interest expense 3710 3,576 3,579 3470 . _4.64] 4157 3,899 3,843 -
Net interest income 3,507 3,397 3,035 2937 3;116 "3259- 3,648 3,560
Provision for loan losses 195 195 195 130 135 . 135 135 135
Net income after

provision for loan losses 3,312 3,202 2,840 2,807 2,981 3,124 3,513 3,425
Non-interest income 614 540 998 1,093 458 450 456 859w
Non-interest expense 2,921 2906 _3.020 _3.168 _2:666 2,753 3,053 _3.6220
Income before income taxes 1,005 836 818 732 773 821 916 662
Income tax expense 224 143 - 153 - 132 120 137 173 . 17
Net income $ 781 3693 $665 3600 $653 $684 $743 §$ 645
Per Share:

Earnings per share - basic $ 41 $ 36 $ 35 $.32 3§ 34 $ 35 $ 39 $ 34
Earnings per share - diluted $§ 39 § 34 § 33 §..29  § .32 $ 34- 8% 36 § 32
Dividend per share $ .10 $ .10 $ .10 $:0 $ .09 $ 09 $ 09 3 .09

™ During the fourth quarter, the Company sold and realized a pre-tax net gain on certain available for sale securities
of $331. Additionally, due to a settlement of a lawsuit concerning certain loan sales, a $570 expense was incurred.

Certain reclassifications have been made to the quarters presented to conform with the prcsentatxon Such
reclassifications had no impact on the reported net income. ’
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Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure.

Not applicable.

Item 9-A. Controls and Procedures.

Under the supervision and with the participation of the Company’s management, including its chief executive
officer and chief financial officer, the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its
disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30,2003, and based on their evaluation, the Company’s chief
executive officer and chief financial officer have concluded that these controls and procedures are designed to
ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the Company. The reports that it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized in the SEC’s rules and regulations and are operating in an
effective manner. No change in the Company’s internal control over financial reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15(d)-15(f) under the Exchange Act) occurred during the fourth fiscal quarter of fiscal 2003 that has
materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

PART 111

Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registrant.

The information required herein with respect to directors and executive officers of the Company is incorporated
by reference from the information contained in the section captioned “Information with Respect to Nominees for
Director, Directors Whose Terms Continue and Executive Officers” in the Company’s definitive Proxy Statement for the
Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be held January 28, 2004 (the “Proxy Statement”), a copy of which will be filed with
the SEC before the meeting date.

The Company has adopted a Code of Ethics that applies to its principal executive officer and principal financial
officer, as well as other officers and employees of the Company and the Bank. A copy of the Code of Ethics, included as
an exhibit to this Form 10-K and filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, may aiso be found on the
Company’s website at www. firstkeystone.com.

Item 11. Executive Compensation.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section
captioned “Executive Compensation” in of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement. The reports of the Audit Committee
and the Compensation Committee included in the Registrant’s Proxy Statement should be deemed filed or
incorporated into this filing or any other filing by the Company under the Exchange Act or the Securities Act of
1933 except to the extent the Company specifically incorporates said reports herein or therein by reference thereto.
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Item 12.

Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section

captioned “Beneficial Ownership of Common Stock by Certain Beneficial Owners and Management” in the Registrant's
Proxy Statement.

Equity Compensation Plan Information. The following table sets forth certain information for all equity

compensation plans and individual compensation arrangements (whether with employees or non-employees, such as
directors), in effect as of September 30, 2003. ‘

Number of Shares to be issued upon Weighted-Average Number of Shares Remaining Available

the Exercise of Outstanding Options, Exercise Price of for Future Issuance (Excluding Shares
Plan Category Warrants and Rights Outstanding Options Reflected in the First Column)
Equity Compensation Plans
Approved by Security Holders 247,299 . $9.78 26,094
Equity Compensation Plans Not
Approved by Security Holders - - -
Total 247.299 $9.78 26,094

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions.

The information required herein is incorporated by reference from the information contained in the section
captioned “Transactions with Certain Related Persons” in of the Registrant’s Proxy Statement.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services.

Not applicable.

PARTIV.

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K.

(a) Documents filed as part of this Report.

(1)  The following documents are filed as part of this report and are incorporated herein by reference
from the Registrant's Annual Report.

Report of Independent Auditors.
Consolidated Statements of Financial Condition at September 30, 2003 and 2002.
Consolidated Statements of Income for the Years Ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the Years Ended
September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the Years Ended September 30, 2003, 2002 and 2001.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements.
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3

- All schedules for which provision is made in the applicable accounting regulation of the SEC are
omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is included in the

Consolidated Financial Statements or notes thereto.

The following exhibits are filed as part of this Form 10-K, and this list includes the Exhibit Index.

No

- 3.1

32

4

10.1

10.2

103

10.4

10.5

10.6

10.8

109

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

Description

Amended and Restated Articles of Incorporation of First Keystone Financial, Inc. *

Amended and Restated Bylaws of First Keystone Financial, Inc. *
Specimen Stock Certificate of First Keystone Financial, Inc. *

Employee Stock.Ownership flan and Trusi of First Ke);stone Financial, Inc. *
401(K)/ Profit-sharing Plan of First Keystone Federal Savings Ba;nk. *

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and
Donald S. Guthrie dated May 26, 1999. **

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and
Stephen J. Henderson dated May 26, 1999, **

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and
Thomas M. Kelly dated May 26, 1999. **

Form of Severance Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and

Elizabeth M. Mulcahy dated May. 26, 1999, **

Form of Severance Agreement between First Keystone Financial, Inc. and
Carol Walsh dated May 26, 1999. **

1995 Stock Option Plan ***
1995 Recognition and Retention Plan and Trust Agreement. ***
1998 Stock Option Plan ****

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Federal Savings Bank and
Donald S. Guthrie dated May 26, 1999. **

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Federal Savings Bank and
Stephen J. Henderson dated May 26, 1999, **

Employment Agreement between First Keystone Federal Savings Bank and
Thomas M. Kelly dated May 26, 1999, **

Form of Severance Agreement between First Keystone Federal Savings Bank and

Elizabeth M. Mulcahy dated May 26, 1999. **

Form of Severance Agreement between First Keystone Federal Savings Bank and

Carol Walsh dated May 26, 1999. **




11

21

Statement re: computation of per share earnings. See Note 2 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements included in Item 8 hereof.

Subsidiaries of the Registrant - Reference is made to Item 1

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

Incorporated by reference from the Registration Statement Form S- 1 (Registration No.
33-84824) filed by the Registrant with the SEC on October 6, 1994, as amended.

Incorporated by reference from the Form 10-K filed by the Régisirant with the SEC
on December 29, 1999 (File No. 000-25328).

Incorporated by reference from the Form 10-K filed by the Reglstrant with SEC on
December 29, 1995 (File No. 000-25328). .

“Business,” for the required information.
23 Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLP.
31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer
31.2 Certification of Chief Financial Officer
32.1

of 2002
32.2

of 2002
99.1 Codes of Ethics
*)
**
(***)
(****)

Incorporated from Appendix A of the Registrant's definitive proxy statement dated
December 24, 1998 (File No. 000-25328).

(b) Reports filed on Form 8-K.

Date

Item and Description

08/01/03  -Item 12 - Filing of press release reporting the Company’s results of operation for

the three and nine months ended June 30, 2003.

(c) Exhibits. See the list set forth above under subsection (a) (3)

(d) Financial Statement Schedules.
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SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15 (d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

First Keystone Financial, Inc.

By:_/s/ Donald S. Guthrie
Donald S. Guthrie
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, this report had been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

/s/ Donald S. Guthrie December 23, 2003
Donald S. Guthrie

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer

(Principal Executive Officer)

/s/ Thomas M. Kelly December 23, 2003
Thomas M. Kelly

President and Chief Financial Officer

(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

/s Donald A. Purdy December 23, 2003
Donald A. Purdy
Director

/s/ Edward Calderoni December 23, 2003
Edward Calderoni
Director

/s/ Edmund Jones December 23, 2003
Edmund Jones
Director

/s/ Donald G. Hosier, Jr. December 23, 2003
Donald G. Hosier, Jr.
Director

/s/ Marshall J. Soss December 23, 2003
Marshall J. Soss
Director

/s/ William J. O'Donnell December 23, 2003
William J. O'Donneli
Director

/s/ Bruce C. Hendrixson December 23, 2003
Bruce C. Hendrixson
Director
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FIRST KEYSTONE FINANCIAL, INC. DIRECTORS

Donald S. Guthrie, Esquire
Chairman of the Board
Chief Executive Officer

Daonald A. Purdy, Esquire

Chairman Emeritus

Thomas M. Kelly
President and
Chief Financial Officer

Bruce C. Hendrixson
Quwner, Garnet Ford and
Garnet Volkswagen

Edward Calderoni
Associate Broker of
Century 21-Alliance

Donald G. Hosier, Jr.
Principal in Montgomery

Insurance Services, and
President, First Keystone
Insurance Services, LLC

Marshall J. Soss
President and
Chief Executive Officer,
KarMar Realty Group, inc.

Edmund Jones, Esquire
Member, Jones, Strobm & Guthrie, PC

William J. 0’Donnell, CPA
Information Technology Manager,
Wawa, Inc.

Stock Information

First Keystone Financial, Inc.
is traded on the Nasdag
National Market under the
symbol of “FKFS.” There
were approximately 415
shareholders of record as of
September 16, 2003, not
including the number of
persons or entities whose
stock is held in nominee or
street name through various
brokerage firms or banks.

The Annual Meeting of
Shareholders is scheduled for
Wednesday, January 28,
2004, at 2 p.m. to be held at
the Towne House Restaurant,
117 Veterans Square, Media,
Pennsylvania.

e e—

Executive Offices
22 West State Street
Media, PA 19063
(610) 565-6210

Independent Auditors
Deloitte & Touche LLP

25th Floor

1700 Market Street
Philadelphia, PA 19103-3984

Investor Information
Thomas M. Kelly
President and

Chief Financial Officer
(610) 565-6210

Shareholder Information
Cargl Walsh

Corporate Secretary
(610) 565-6210

SENIOR STAFF

Carol L. Walsh
Corporate Secretary

Rose M. DiMarco
Senior Vice President
Finance

Robin G. Otto
Senior Vice President
Marketing and

Business Development

Robert R. Hosier
Senior Vice President
Information Technology

Stephen J. Henderson
Senior Vice President
Lending

Elizaheth M. Mulcahy
Senior Vice President
Hunian Resources

A. Charles Amentt, Jr.
Senior Vice President
Commercial Lending

Transfer Agent

Registrar and Transfer Company
10 Commerce Drive

Cranford, NJ 07016-3572

Counsel

Lawrence G. Strohm, Jr., Esquire
Jones, Strohm & Guthrie, RC.
10 Beatty Road

Media, PA 19063

Special Counsel

Elias, Matz, Tiernan
and Herrick L.L.P
12th Floor

734 15th Street, N.W.
Washington, DC 20005
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